| ORIGINAL (Agency Use Only) 2
\-] Fee Received Y &7 N
S ) L/, Exemption # E. -
L4 il
ILLINOIS HEALTH FA‘JLITIES PLANNING BOARD R
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FOR THE E C E | vV E
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP FOR AN EXISTING HEALTH CARE FACILITY D
INFORMATION FOR EXISTING FACILITY APR 3 ¢ 2012
Current Facility Name Mercer County Hospital SEHH‘EAHH Fggj{ ITIES &
Address 409 NW Ninth Avenue iEW BOARD
City _Aledo Zip Code 61231 County __ Mercer
Name of current licensed entity for the facility Mercer County llinots
Does the current licensee: own this facility X OR lease this facility (if leased, check if subtease D)
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership X Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify
Iinois State Senator for the district where the facility is located: Sen._Mike Jacobs
State Senate District Number 36 Mailing address of the State Senator _ 606 19th St., Moline, 1L 61265

Jllinois State Representative for the district where the facility is located: Rep, Pat Verschoore
State Representative District Number 72 Mailing address of the State Representative 1504 3rd Ave.,
Rack Island, IL 61231

QUTSTANDING PERMITS. Does the facility have any projects for which the State Board issued a permit that will not
be completed (refer to 1130.140 "Completion or Project Completion” for a definition of project completion) by the time of
the proposed ownership change? Yes 0 No m. If yes, refer to Section 1130.520(f), and indicate the projects by Project #

FACILITY'S BED OR DIALYSIS STATION CAPACITY BY CATEGORY OF SERVICE (Complete
"APPENDIX A" attached to this application) Please see APPENDIX A.

FACILITY'S OTHER CATEGORIES OF SERVICE AS DEFINED IN 77 1AC 1100 (Complete "APPENDIX A"
attached to this application) Please see APPENDIX A.

NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after this page).
Exact Legal Name of Applicant _GMCM

Address 409 NW Ninth Ave.

City, State & Zip Code _Aledo, IL 61231

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity {check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X__ Not-for-Profit Corporation” For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

‘Please note thal the current licensed entity has governmaental ownership; the Applicant is owned by a nol-for-profit corperation.

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL BE THE LICENSEE/QOPERATING ENTITY OF THE FACILITY
NAMED IN THE APPLICATION AS A RESULT OF THIS TRANSACTION.

Exact Legal Name of Entity to be Licensed  GMCM

Address 409 NW Ninth Ave,

City, State & Zip Code Aledo, IL 61231

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation™ For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limijted Liability Company Other, specify

**Please nole that the cument licensed entity has governmental ownership; the proposed future licensee Is owned by a not-for-profil corporation,
BUILDING/SITE OWNERSHIP. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL, OWN THE "BRICKS AND MORTAR"
(BUILDING) OF THE FACILITY NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION IF DIFFERENT FROM THE
OPERATING/LICENSED ENTITY
Exact Lepgal Name of Entity That Will Own the Site GMCM
Address 408 NW Ninth Ave.
City, State & Zip Code Aledo, IL 1231
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation”™ For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify
““*Please note that the current ficensed entity has govemmantal ownership; the proposed future owner of the “bricks and mortar” is owned by a
not-for-profil corporation.
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5. NAME OF APPLICANT

Exact Legal Name of Applicant _Genesis Health System
Address 801 Hlini Drive

City, State & Zip Code _Silvis, IL 61282

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation™*” For Profit Cotporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

**““Pleasa note that the current licensed entity has govermmmental ownership; the Co-applicant is a not-for-profit corporalion.




b
TRANSACTION TYPE. CHECK THE FOLLOWING THAT APPLY TO THE TRANSACTION: PLEASE SEE 3
o Purchase resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from current licensee; ATTACHMENT 3

10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16,

18.

0 Lease resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from current licensee;

O Stock transfer resulting in the issuance of a license to a different entity from current licensee;

o Stock transfer resulting in no change from current licensee;

® Assignment or transfer of assets resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from the current licensee;

D Assignment or transfer of assets not resulting in the issuance of a license to an eatity different from the current licensee;

o Change in membership or sponsorship of a not-for-profit corporation that is the licensed entity;

0 Change of 50% or more of the voting members of a not-for-profit corporation's board of directors that controls a health
care facility's operations, license, certification or physical plant and assets;

o Change in the sponsorship or control of the person whe is licensed, certified or owns the physical plant and assets of a
governmental health care facility;

D Sale or transfer of the physical plant and related assets of a health care facility not resulting in a change of current
licensee;

O Any other transaction that results in a person obtaining control of a health care facility's operation or physical plant and
assets, and explain in "Attachment 3 Narrative Description”

APPLICATION FEE. Submit the application fee in the form of a check or money order for $2,500 payable to the Illinois
Department of Public Health and append as ATTACHMENT #1.

FUNDING. [ndicate the type and source of funds which will be used to acquire the facility {e.g., morigage through Heallh
Facilities Authority; cash gift from parent company, etc.) and append as ATTACHMENT #2.

ANTICIPATED ACQUISITION PRICE: $_0

FAIR MARKET VALUE OF THE FACILITY: $ 0 PLEASE SEE ADDENDUM 1
(to determine fair market value, refer to 77 IAC 1130.140)

DATE OF PROPOSED TRANSACTION:  9/1/2012

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION. Provide a narrative description explaining the transaction, and append it to the
application as ATTACHMENT #3.

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT {(co-applicants must also provide this information). Corporations and_Limited
Liability Companies must provide a current Certificate of Good Standing from the Hlinois Secretary of State. Partnerships
must provide the name and address of each partner and specify whether each is a general or limited partner. Append this
information to the application as ATTACHMENT #4.

TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS. Provide a copy of the document(s) which detail the terms and conditions of the
proposed transaction {purchase, lease, stock transfer, etc). Applicants should note that the document{s) submitted should
reflect the applicant's (and co-applicant's, if applicable) involvement in the transaction. The document must be signed by
both parties and contain fanguage stating that the transaction is contingent upon approval of the Iltinois Health Facilities
Planning Board. Append this document(s) to the application as ATTACHMENT #5.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION (co-applicants must also provide this information). Per 77 TAC 1130.520(b}(3), an
applicant must demonstrate it has sufficient funds to finance the acquisition and to operate the facility for 36 months by
providing evidence of a bond rating of “A™ or better (that must be less than two years old) from Fitch, Moody or Standard
and Poor's rating agencies or evidence of compliance with the financial viability review criteria (as applicable} to the type
of facility being acquired (as specified at 77 JAC 1120). Append as ATTACHMENT #6.

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON. Individual representing the applicant to whom all correspondence and inquiries
pertaining to this application are to be directed. (Note: other persons representing the applicant not named below will
need written avthorization from the applicant stating that such persons are also authorized to represent the applicant in
relationship to this application).

Name: kynn Gordon, Esq., Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison, Suite 3500

City, State & Zip Code: _ Chicago, IL 60602

Telephone { 312 ) 977-4134 Ext.




19,

20.

}

ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attomey, other individual who is also authorized to discuss this
application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name: Valerie Breslin Montague, Esq., Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison, Suite 3500

City, State & Zip Code: _Chicago, IL 60602

Telephone { 312 } 977-4485 Ext.

CERTJIFICATION — GMCM

I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief. I certify that the categories of service, number of beds and/or dialysis stations within the facility will not change as
part of this transaction. I certify that no adverse action has been taken against the applicant(s) by the federal government,
licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of Hlinois. I certify that I am fully aware that a change in
ownership will void any permits for projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be completed or
altered pursuant to the requirements in 77 TAC 1130.520(f) prior to the effective date of the proposed ownership change,
I also certify that the applicant has not already acquired the facility named in this application or entered into an agreement
to acquire the facility named in the application unless the contract contains a clause that the transaction is contingent upon

approval by the State Board. w

Signature of Authorized Officer AYVV/

Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer D&fm /é‘ i p (s ffg&___
Address: __¥n) S Tié Tari TH.

City, State & Zip Code: ___ B JA £ 2. S}z_.f,,r jr2

Title of Authorized Officer: _ A YReadprt
Telephone ( A05) 1 £/ &fnsza Date: ‘{!“2-“/-2.01‘3/'

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this page.
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20. CERTIFICATION -- Genesis Health System

I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best of my knowledge
and belief. [ certify that the categories of service, number of beds and/or dialysis stations within the facility will not
change as part of this transaction. I certify that no adverse action has been taken against the applicant{s) by the
federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of Illinois. I certify that T am
fully aware that a change in ownership will veid any permits for projects that have not been completed unless such
projects will be completed or altered pursuant to the requirements in 77 IAC 1130.520(f} prior to the effective date
of the proposed ownership change. I also certify that the applicant has not already acquired the facility named in
this application or entcred into an agreement to acquire the facility named in the application unless the contract

contains a clause that the transaction is conlingent upon Wy the State Board.

Signature of Authorized Officer —E" . o .
Typed or Printed Name of Autharjzed Officer o " oeertn » A

Title of Authorized Officer: 2 2£ A ea ?fa 7 g /Ty o ; .Jj
Address: &JZ - E‘- e W ‘}\,.,_1__:

City, State & Zip Code: == '¢ 1 701f it C £A87 .2

Telephone: §03f£ E‘gv '5‘\45 Z:., {7 Date: ‘Z;/IL:I 2017




APPENDIX A s
FACILITY BED AND DIALYSIS STATION CAPACITY AND CATEGORIES OF SERVICE

Complete the following for the facility for which the change of ownership is requested. The facility's bed and dialysis station
capacity must be consistent with the State Board's Inventory of Health Care Facilities.

FACILITY NAME Mercer County Hospital CITY: Aledg

1. Indicate (by placing an “X"} the type of facility for which the change of ownership is requested:
w Hospital; o Long-term Care Facility; o Dialysis Facility; o Ambulatory Surgical Treattnent Center.

2. Provide the bed capacity by category of service:

SERVICE #of Reds SERVICE # of Beds
Medical/Surgical e2™ Nursing Care 0
Obstetrics g Shelter Care 0
Pediatrics G DD Adults* 1]
Intensive Care 0 DD Children** 0
Acute Mental Illness 0 Chronic Mental [llness 0
Rehabilitation 0 Children's Medical Care 0

0]

Neonatal Intensive Care 0 Children’s Respite Care
*Includes ICF/DD 16 and fewer bed facilities; **Includes skilled pediatric 22 years and under

3. Chronic Renal Dialysis: Enter the number of ESRD stations: _ 7, Please note that the ESRD stations are owned and operated
by Quad Cities Kidney Center ("QCKC") and will continue to be owned and operated by QCKC after closing.

4. Indicate (by placing an “X™) those categories of service for which the facility is approved.  The change of ownership of the
hospital facility will have no impact

Cardiac Catheterization Open Heart Surgery  ©" the ESRD stations.
Subacute Care Hospital Mode! Kidney Transplantation
Selected Organ Transplantation Postsurgical Recovery Care Center Model

5. Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery and Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Centers

Indicate (by placing an “X") if the facility is a 0 limited or o multi-specialty facility and indicate the surgical specialties
provided.

Cardiovascular Ophthalmology
Dermatotogy Oral/Maxillofacial
Gastroenterology Orthopedic
General/Other (includes any procedure that is not Otolaryngelogy

included in the other specialties) Plastic Surgery
Neurological Padiatry
Obstetrics/Gynecology Thoracic

Urology

*** Please see additional detail on bed capacity inciuded in the narrative in Attachment 3.




Hospital Profile - CY 2010

Mercer County Hospital Aledo Page 1
wngrship, Managem: n era] Inform Patignts by Race Patlents by Ethnicity
ADMINISTRATOR NAME:  Edward J. Rogalski Whila 100.0% Hispanic or Latino: 0.3%
ADMINSTRATOR PHONE  300-5§2-3701 Black 0.0% Not Hispanic or Latino: 89.7%
CWNERSHIP: Mercar County Illinois Amariean Indian 0.0% Unknown: 0.0%
OPERATOR: County of Mercer Hospital
MANAGEMENT: M ¥ Astan 00% ™ pH Number: 3772
: County Hawallan/ Pacific 0.0%
CERTIFICATION: Critical Access Hospltal Unknawn: 0.0% HPA C-05
FACILITY DESIGNATION:  Genergl Hospitsl HEA i0
ADDRESS 408 N.W §th Avenue CITY: Aledo COUNTY: Mercer County
Mty Utiitzation Data by Category of Service
Authorized  Peak Beds Average Avarage CON Staff Bed
ts CON Bads Setup and Paak Inpatlent  Observation Length Dally Occupancy Dccupancy
Clinicat Sarvice 1203472010 Stafled Cansus  Admissions Days Days of Stay Gansus 1213112010 Rate %
Medlcal/’Surglcal 22 22 15 235 686 272 41 26 11.8 1.9
C-14 Years 5 8
1544 Yesrs 15 35
4564 Yoars 36 54
65-74 Years 47 117
75 Yesrs + o 132 432 e mm e —
Padlatric 0 0 0.0 0.0 00 0.0
Intensive Carg 0 0 0.0 a0 0.0 0.0
Direct Admission 0 o
Transfers 0 1)
CObstotrie/Gynecology 0 0 0 ] o 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Maternity 0 0
Clean Gynecology ] 0
Neonata! 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Long Term Care 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Swing Bods a4 704 8.5 2.2
Acute Mantal llinaas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Rahabllitation 0 1] o] 0 0 Q 0.0 0.0 0.0 00
Long-Term Acute Care [+] 4] 0 o] 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Dadcated Obsarvalion [ 0
Facllity Utllization 2 319 1,480 272 5.5 4.5 21.818
{includes ICU Direct Admissions Only)
( utpatients Serv T
Medicare Medicald Other Public Privatn insurance Private Pay  Charity Care Totals
72,1% 4.7% 14.7% 0.0% 4.7% 1%
inpationts 232 15 I 0 15 10 319
42.7% 13.3% 36,2% 0.0% 7.9% 0.3%
Qutpatiants BOST 2508 6633 0 1497 155 18,850
Finenciol Year Reported;  TH2008 0 B/30/2010 npatient and ent Net Revenus by Payor Soure Chari Total Charity
M arily Care Expense
odicare Medicald Other Public  Private Insurance  Private Pay Totais Care 262,611
Inpattent 79.9% 1.8% 0.0% 14.8% 3.5% 1000% EXPonse rotota: ’cm‘y
Revenuo { $) 1,499,504 34,703 0 277,696 65,371 1,877,364 33,298 | ‘Carg as % of
Outpatient 49.4% 3% 0.0% 44.3% 1.9% 100.0% Net Revenue
Revenue { §) 5,131,587 445 G8B Q 4600,773 199,008 10,380,445 228,712 2.1%
Birthing Data Newhormn Nurgory Utilization Qraan Trangolantation
Number of Total Births: b} Level 1 Patient Days 0 Kidney: ) o
Number of Live Births: 0 Level 2 Patiant Days 0 Heart'y ' 0
E":'"“g Rooms: g Level 2+ Patient Days 0 Lung: 0
abor Roams:
Total N P .
Delivery Rooms: ] otal Nursery Patientdays 0 Seartfl.un.g. g
Labor-Delivery-Recovery Rooms: 0 aborato: dia L;:creas. p
Labor-Delivery-Recovery-Postpartum Rooms; 0 Inpatlent Studies 1,567 i
C-Sectlon Rooms; V] Qutpatient Studies 17,718 Total; 0
CSections Parformed:; 0 Studies Performed Under Contract 1,428

APPENDIX A, PAGE 1
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HOSPITAL PROFILE - CY 2010

Mercer County Hospital Aledo Page 2
Surgery and Oparsting Room Utilization
Surgigat Speciatly Operafing Rooms Surgleal Cases Surgical Hours Hours per Case
Inpatient Qutpatient Combined Total Inpatient  Qutpatient Inpatient  Outpatieni Total Hours Inpatient Qutpatiant
Cardiovascular 0 1] c 0 4] 0 0 0 o 0.0 0.0
Demmatology 0 0 ¢ G 0 D ] 0 4] 0.0 0.0
General 0 Q 1 1 0 50 4] 143 143 0.0 2.9
Gastreenterology 0 (] 0 0 4] 0 1] Q 1] (t1] 0.0
Neurotogy 0 ¢ 0 0 ¢ o 0 0 o 0.0 0.0
OB/Gynecology 1] 1 0 ] ¢ ¢ 0 0 a 0.0 0.0
COralMaxlliofaciat 0 0 1] 4] 0 Q 0 0 0 0.0 0.0
Cphthalmology 0 0 ] 1 0 13 0 35 35 - 0o 2.7
Orthopedic ] o 1 1 0 ] 0 17 17 0.0 28
Otolaryngelogy 0 0 Q Q 0 0 4] 0 0 0.0 0.0
Plaslic Surgery 0 4 0 0 ] ] 0 (] [¢] 0.0 0.0
Podialry 0 4] 1 1 ] 3 0 121 121 0.0 iz
Thoracic -0 0 0 0 1] ) o 0 0 0.0 0.0
Urology ] 0 1] v] 0 o] 0 0 1] 0.0 0.0
Tatuls L} a i L o 102 0 146 M6 0.0 31
SURGICAL RECOVERY STATIONS Stage 1 Recovery Stations . Stage 2 Racovery Stations o
edicated and Non-Dedi Proced om Utilzaticn
Procedyre Rgems Surgical Cages Surgical Hoyry Houry per Caze
Procedure Type Inpatient Oufpatient Combined Total  Inpatient Outpatient Inpatient OQutpatiant Total Hours Inpatient Oulpatisnt
Gastrointesting! 4] 0 1 1 1 -2 . 67 €9 2.0 1.0
Laser Eye Procedures 0 0 0 0 a 0 [ 0 o 00 [1X+]
Pain Management 0 0 1 1 0 58 0 45 48 0.0 oe
Cystoscopy 0 0 0 0 o D 0 0 D 0.0 0.0
Mut ogg Non- Icated Roo
0 0 ] ¢] 0 0 o o 0 0.0 0.8
0 0 o o] 0 o o 0 1] 0.0 0.0
1] 4] 0 1] 0 4] o 0 0 0.0 0.0
Cardizc Cathatorization Labs Cardlac Cathgtorization Utilfzation
Tatal Cath Labs (Dedlcated+Nondedicated fabs); 0 Total Cardiac Cath Procedures: ']
Cath Lats vsed for Angiography progedurss o} Diagnostic Calheterizations (0-14) 0
Dedicated Diagnostic Cathaterization Labs ¢ Diagnostic Cathelerizations {15+) 0
Dadicated Interventional Catheterization Labs |+ Intarventional Catheterzations (0-14): 0
Dedicated EP Catheterization Labs 0 Interventional Catheterization (15+) 0
Emergency/Trauma Care EP Catheterlzations (15+) 0
Certified Trauma Canter No Cardia 5
¥ t ] £ Su!ggﬂ ﬂg
Level of Trauma Servica N otlf;:l: t:abl a thL::;r{cabie Total Candiac Surgery Cases: 1]
Operating Rooms Dedicated for Trauma Care 0 Pedialric (0 - 14 Years). ¢
Number of Trauma Visits: 0 Adutt (15 Years and Qider): 0
Patients Admitted from Trauma 0 Coronary Artery Bypass Grafis (CABGS)
performed of total Cardiac Cases | 0
Emergancy Sarvica Typa: Comprehensive
Number of Emergency Room Stations 4 Total Outpst tMMLW e ata 18,059
. 0 en g
Persans Treated by Emergency Se.rvices. 381t OutpatiSnt Visits :t the Hospitall Campus: 18,358
Patients Admitted from Emergency: 282 Outpatient Vislts Offsite/off campus 701
Total ED Vislts (Emargency+Trauma); 3,511
Diagnosticiinterventianal Equipment Examinations Radiation Equipm Therapie:
Own Contract Inpatient Quipt Contract Owned Contract Treatments
General Radiography/Fluoroscopy 2 Il 182 3,960 o  Lthatripsy 0 o o
Nuciear Medicing 0 1 8 "1 o Lingar Acceleralor 0 o o
Mammography 1 (] 0 602 o Image Guided Rad Therapy ¢ ] 0
Ufrra_sound 1 (] 32 473 0 Intensity Modutated Rad Thrpy O 1] o
Angiography 0 0 High Dose Brachytherepy 0 0 o
f)iagnasﬂc Anglography 0 4] 0 Proton Beam Therspy D 0 0
ntarventional Anglography Y o 0 Gemme Knife 0
Positron Emission Tomography (PET) 0 1 1] 7 0 0 0
Computerized Axial Tomography (CAT} 1 o 69 1,363 0 Cyber knife ¢ 0 [
Magnetlc Resonsnce imaging 0 1 B I 0

Source: 2030 Annual Hospital Questionnaire, llinols Department of Public Health, Heatth Systerns Devalopment,

APPENDIX A, PAGE 2
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ATTACHMENT 1
Application Fec

UHDOCS 2130991-1
ATTACHMENT 1
9




ATTACHMENT 2
Funding

The proposed change of ownership does not involve a financial transaction. As described further
in Attachment 3, as part of the transaction, GMCM agrees to take on certain of Mercer County

Hospital's debt and to fund capital improvements in the amount of $11,500,000 (subject to any
necessary regulatory approvals).

UHDOCS 21309911

ATTACHMENT 2
10 .




ATTACHMENT 3
Narrative

GMCM and Genesis Health System ("Genesis™} hereby seek a Certificate of Exemption ("COE")
from the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board ("Board") to allow a proposed
transaction between GMCM, Mercer County, Illinois ("Mercer County”) and Mercer County
Hospital ("Hospital") (Mercer County and Hospital, collectively, "MCH Parties"), whereby
GMCM will assume title and rights to certain assets and liabilities of the MCH Parties (the
"Transaction"). In summary, Genesis' newly formed and wholly owned and controlled
subsidiary, GMCM, will acquire the Hospital assets, resulting in a change of ownership of the
hospital facility licensee, triggering the need for a COE prior to such transition. The proposed
change of ownership qualifies for review as a COE as a result of Genesis' "A-1" rating. A copy
of that rating is provided in Attachment 6.

Genesis is a not-for-profit corporation that is tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code ("Code") whose charitable health care mission is to improve the quality, extend
the scope, and enhance the accessibility of affordable health care and related services to the
residents of Western Illinois and Eastern Iowa. In furtherance thereof, Genesis operates an
integrated health system that includes three hospitals. These are Genesis Medical Center ~
Davenport, a tertiary care hospital which operates on two campuses in Davenport, lowa ("GMC
Davenport”); Genesis Medical Center — Illini, a general acute care hospital in Silvis, Illinois
("GMC - Illini"}; and Genesis Medical Center — DeWitt, a critical access hospital and
intermediate care facility located in DeWitt, lowa ("GMC DeWitt").

Genesis also operates a number of programs and services at multiple locations throughout the
Western Itlinois and Eastern Jowa arca, including physician practices, convenient care clinics, a
pain center, home health and hospice services, a psychology practice, and a workplace services
program. Additionally, Genesis operates a licensed skilled nursing facility known as Genesis
Restorative Care Center and an independent living facility known as Genesis Crosstown Square,
each located on the campus of GMC — Illini,

On February 3, 2012, Genesis formed GMCM, an lllinois not-for-profit corporation of which
Genesis is the sole corporate member, to assume ownership and control of the Hospital facility
and operations. As such, Genesis has retained certain significant control over GMCM. For
example, Genesis has exclusive authority to determine the number of Directors of GMCM and
elect, appoint, remove, or fill vacancies in the Board of Directors of GMCM ("Board of
Directors™). It also maintains the following reserved powers over GMCM:

(a) the interpretation of or any change in a statement of mission, philosophy, role, or
purpose of GMCM or any Affiliate;

(b}  the adoption of amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, or other
governing documents of GMCM or any Affiliate;

(c) the merger, dissolution, consolidation or reorganization of GMCM or any
Affiliate;

UHDOCS 2130991-1 ATTACHMENT 3, PAGE 1
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(d) the formation or restructuring of Affiliates;

{e) the acquisition, sale, lease, transfer, encumbrance or other alienation of property
of GMCM or any Affiliate, other than in the usval and regular course, when such
acquisition, sale, lease, transfer, encumbrance, or other alienation is above
specified financial levels set in accordance with policies established by Genesis;

®) the adoption or authorization of annual capital and operating budgets of GMCM
or any Affiliate as developed by its Board of Directors or Management or the
making of non-budgeted expenditures in excess of financial levels set in
accordance with policies established by Genesis;

(g)  the incumrence of debt or the guarantee of the debt of another by GMCM or an
Affiliate which is in excess of such limits as are established by Genesis;

(h)  the adoption of a plan of distribution or disposition of the assets of GMCM or any
Affiliate at the time of its dissolution;

(i) the adoption or approval of strategic and long-range financial plans for GMCM or
any Affiliate;

() the adoption of an internal auditing program for GMCM or any Affiliate which is
consistent with the internal auditing program established by Genesis;

(k)  the amendment, modification or exercise of any right or power hereunder granted;
and

) any action which is reserved as the right and power of Genesis in the Articles of
Incorporation or the Bylaws.

GMCM is applying for tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and will adhere to
the charity care and other patient access policies and procedures of Genesis, none of which arc
more restrictive than the Hospital's current policies and procedures.

The Hospital is a 22-bed critical access hospital located in Aledo, Illinots that is currently owned
by Mercer County. As a centrally-located critical access hospital and the only hospital in Mercer
County, the Hospital provides vital services to residents of Mercer County, a largely rural area
with approximately 16,500 residents. Without the Hospital's continued presence in Mercer
County, these residents would be required to travel longer distances for emergency and other
medical services. Due to increased costs and declining reimbursement that many hospitals are
facing in the industry, the Hospital has unmet capital needs. It also has nceded management
support from Genesis, as a larger, stronger provider in neighboring communities better able to
deal with the complexities and challenges providers are facing in a rapidly evolving health care
industry.

UHDOCS 2130991-1

ATTACHMENT 3, PAGE 2
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The Hospital was granted a permit in January 2009 to engage in a modernization of its facility,
part of which had been suggested through the Illinois Department of Public Health ("IDPH")
survey process. Approximately two and a half years later and after much due diligence the
Hospital was unable to secure the financing for the modernization and had to abandon that
portion of the project, formally advising the Board of the same. That same permit in 2009 also
approved the Hospital's discontinuing three intensive care unit ("ICU") beds and 14 long-term
care ("LTC"} beds. The Hospital no longer staffs the three ICU and 14 LTC beds and has
reported the related changed bed numbers accordingly in its annual reports to IDPH. A new
Certificate of Need application has been submitted to address the discontinuation of these beds.

Regarding needed management support, subject to the ultimate control, direction and authority of
the Mercer County Board, Genesis has provided management services to the Hospital for the
past three years in order to help ensure the Hospital's continued operation in the Mercer County
community.

The parties subsequently entered into an Option Agreement in November 2010 creating a formal
affiliation between Genesis and the MCH Partics, allowing Genesis to assume ownership and
control of the Hospital over a four year period. A copy of the complete Option Agreement, and
the related Genesis excrcise of such option on April 26, 2012 to acquire the Hospital, is attached
hereto at Attachment 5 {(please note that the schedules referenced therein are deliverables at
closing). Genesis, GMCM, and the MCH Parties also entered into a written Addendum to the
Option Agreement ("Addendum™) on March 6, 2012. The Addendum clarifies certain aspects of
the Transaction and provides that Genesis assigns to GMCM its option to acquire certain assets
and liabilities of the MCH Parties and to operate the Hospital upon closing of the Transaction. A
copy of the Addendum is attached hereto at Attachment 5. The entirety of the definitive
agreement between Genesis, GMCM, and the MCH Parties (the Option Agreement, the
Addendum, and the Exercise of Option) is attached hereto at Attachment 5. All other
agreements referenced therein will be superseded at closing of the Transaction.

Liabilities to be acquired in the Transaction include all of the Hospital's current debt which
amounts to $3,355,757 as of February 29, 2012. GMCM will also acquire any new debt incurred
by Mercer County and attributable to the Hospital after the effective date of the written exercise
of the option ("New Debt"). The MCH Parties have not incurred any New Debt as of April 1,
2012, other than Trade Payables incurred in the ordinary course of business. GMCM will also
assume all obligations of any of the MCH Parties under the terms of any assigned contracts.
Following the Transaction, GMCM and Genesis intend to facilitate the modemization
$11,500,000.00, subject to all necessary regulatory approvals.

The Transaction will support community health in Mercer County in furtherance of the
charitable mission of Genesis, which focuses on providing quality compassionate care to all
patients regardless of abtlity to pay. To meet the needs of the Western Hlinois and Eastern lowa
community, Genesis' charitable practices allow Genesis and its affiliates to serve those
individuals who are unable to sustain the extraordinary burden of medical expenses due to
limited income and resources. In rural Mercer County, where residents have a median houschold
income of approximately $50,000, the Genesis system, through GMCM, will expand its
charitable mission through ownership and operation of the Hospital. In addition to furthering its
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charitable practices, GMCM plans to expand the Hospital's admissions policies and facilitate
modernization of the Hospital, subject to all necessary regulatory approvals.

The Transaction will also relieve the taxpayers of Mercer County the annual cost of the hospital
employee pension plan which has been funded through a property tax levy. The cost of that tax
levy is expected to exceed $550,000 in 2012. Genesis will provide employees pension benefits
as available to other similarly-situated employees. The Transaction provides a significant
financial benefit to the community through the elimination of this property tax burden.

The Transaction will close subject to the approval of the Board. Because the Transaction will
result in a change in the person who has ownership and control of a health care facility's physical
plant and capital assets, the Transaction constitutes a change of ownership under Section
1130.140 of the Board's rules. The Transaction is contingent upon the approval of the Board and
the granting of a COE as referenced in Sections 3(a), 4, and 5(e) of the Addendum and in the
Exercise of Option.

Genesis is a co-applicant for the COE pursuant to Section 1130.220 of the Board's rules, which
provide that the person who has final control of the person who will hold the license (or
Medicare and/or Medicaid certification) for each facility or any related person who is or will be
financially responsible for guaranteeing or making payments on any debt related to the project
must be included as an applicant for an exemption. Genesis' powers over GMCM vest Genesis
with final control over GMCM and therefore require that Genesis be a co-applicant for the COE.

The Transaction is expected to close on September 1, 2012, subject to the Board's approval.

Finally, the applicants will implement the Transaction consistent with the regulatory
requirements of Sections 1130.520 (Requirements for Exemptions Involving the Change of
Ownership of a Health Care Facility) and 1110.240 (Change of Ownership, Mergers and
Consolidations) of the Board's rules. It is not anticipated that any changes to the Hospital's
number of beds or clinical scrvices will result from the Transaction, nor will access to the
services provided by the hospital be diminished as a result of the Transaction, For a period of at
least 12 months after the Transaction closing date ("Closing Date"), the current number of beds
and categories of service at the Hospital will not substantiaily change. For a period of at least
three years after the Closing Date, Genesis/GMCM expects to retain ultimate ownership and
control of the Hospital. For a period of at least two years after the Closing Date, the Hospital
will maintain a charity care policy no more restrictive than the policy that was in effect at the
Hospital one year prior to the Closing Date.

Moreover, the applicants expect that for a period of at least two years after the Closing Date,
there will be no material reductions in the levels of clinical and non-administrative operational
staff employed by the Hospital, other than those typically associated with the ongoing operations
of hospitals.
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ATTACHMENT 4
Background of Applicant
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File Number 6820-586-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do
hereby certify that

GMCM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS
STATE ON FEBRUARY 03, 2012, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE
PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE,

AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 27TH

dayof =~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2012

Authentication #: 1205801176 M

Aulhenticale at: hitp:#www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
ATTACHMENT 4, PAGE 2
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File Number 5530-200-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

GENESIS HEALTH SYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON NOVEMBER 22, 1988, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NQOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT

OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Ilinois, this 27TH

day of FEBRUARY A.D. 2012

R s
Authentication &: 1205801150 M

Authenticate at. hitp://www cyberdriveillinais.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
ATTACHMENT 4, PAGE 3
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ATTACHMENT 5§
Transaction Documents

The Option Agreement, Addendum, and Exercise of Option are attached hereto at Attachment 3.
Together, these agreements constitute the entirety of the definitive agreement between GMCM,
Genesis, and the MCH Parties. Please note that the Transaction is subject to the granting of a
COE by the Board, as stated in Sections 3(a), 4, and 5(c) of the Addendum and the Exercise of
the Option.
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OFTION AGREEMENT

THIS OPTION AGREEMENT (this “Agrecment”) is made and entered into this
day of November, 2010, by and among GENESIS HEALTH SYSTEM, an lowa nonprofit
corporation {"Genesis”), MERCER COUNTY, ILLINOIS, an Hlinois municipality (the
“County”), MERCER COUNTY HBOSPITAL, an unincorporated business unit of the County
(“MCH"} acting under the authority of its Governing Board (the “MCH Board”; the MCH
Board, MCH and the County are collectively referred to herein as the “MCH Partles™); {Genesis
and the MCH Parties are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the
“Parties™.

RECITALS

A, Genesis is a lax-exempt organization whose charitable health care mission is to improve
the quality, extend the scope and enhance the accessibility of affordable health care and
related services for the residents of Eastern Jowa and Western Illinois (collectively, the
“Regional Community™). In furtherance thercof, Genesis operates Genesis Health
System (the “System™), an integrated health system located in the Regional Community.

B. MCH, under the authority of the MCH Board, operstes and governs Mercer County
Hospital (the "Hospital™), a 22-bed critical access hospital located in Aledo, llinois, with
an affiliated physician clinie, health carc facilities and programs that provide quality
health care and promote wellness.

C. The Parties entered into a Memorandum of Understanding on October 7, 2010 (the
“MOU™), pursuant to which the Parties agreed to pursue the development of a formal
affilintion rclationship and to grant Genesis the option to assume cerfain assets and
jiabilities of the MCH Parties (the “QOption™).

D. Concurrently herewith, the Parties are entering into an Affiliation Agreement (the
“Affilintion Agreement™) which sets forth the terms of the formal, contractual affiliation
of the Parties.

E. Genesis has determined that the Option will support community health in furtherance of
its chariteble mission, and the MICH Parties have determined that granting such Option
wil}l be in their besl interests,

F. The Partics wish to set forth the terms of the Option as contemplated in the MOU, and as
referenced in the Affiliation Agreement, by the execution of Llhis Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, and in consideration of
the premises end the mutual covenants, representations and warranties set forth in this
Agreement, as well as other good and valuuble consideration, the reccipt and adequacy of which
are hereby acknowledged, do hercby agree as follows:

Option Agreement vIS ([1-9-10).docx
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ARTICLE1
TERM

11  Term. The terrn of this Agrecment (the “Option Term™) shall commence on
December 1, 2010, at 12:01 a.m. (the “Effective Date’”) and, unless cxtended as set forth herein,
shall terminate on the later oft (a) 11:59 p.m. on November 30, 2014; or {b) the cffective date of
the termination of the Affiliation Agreement. If the Option Exercise Date (as defincd in Section
3.1) is within the last nirety (90) days of the Option Term, the Parties agree that the Option Term
(and the term of the Affilistion Agreement, if then in place} shall be extended through the
Closing Date.

12  Early Termination. The MCH Partics may {emminate this Agreement in the
event the Affiliation Agreement is terminated as a consequence of a breach of the Affiliation
Agreement by Genesis.

1.3 Obligations upon Termination. Upon termination of this Agrecment, no Party i
hereto shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder except for rights and obligations: (i)
accruing prior to the effective date of such termination; (i1} arising as a result of any breach of or
defanlt under this Agreement; or (iil) that are to survive as indicated by the text or context
thereof.

ARTICLEII
THE OPTION

The MCH Parties hereby grant to Genesis the Option to assume title and rights of the
MCH Parties in the Included Assets (as hercinafier defined) and to assume the obligations
associated with the Included Liabilities (as hereinafier defined) pursuant to the terms and
conditions set forth herein. In the event Genesis exerciscs the Option during the Qption Term,
the following shall occur at or afier the Closing Date, as hereafier defined (subject to the
satisfaction of other tenns and conditions set forth in Article 131):

2.1 Transfer of Asscts.

(8}  Transferred Assets. Subject to the terms and conditions herein, the
MCH Parties shal) cause {0 be transferred, conveyed, assigned and delivered to Genesis, i
and Genesis will accept and take title from the MCH Parties, as applicable, ali right title i
and interest of the MCH Parties in the following assets and agrecments as of the Closing !
Date (collectively, the “Included Assets™) i

M The MCH hospital facility and the land on which it is located,
having an address of 409 NW 9™ Avenue, Aledo, Illinvis 61231, as legally |
described on Exhibit A attached hereto {collectively, the “Premises™); {
(i) Al fixed snd moveable furniture, fixtures and equipment,

including any medical equipment, used or useful in the operation of MCH and the 1
Hospital (coliectively, the “Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment™);

Optian Agreement ¥15 (11-9-10).docx

ATTACHMENT 5, PAGE 3

20



(iii}  All inventory and supplies on hand or ordered by the MCH Parties
for the operation of MCH and the Hospital (collectively, the “Imventory and
Supplies™),

{iv)  All accounts receivable or other amounts due to the MCH Parties
from patients or third party payors for services rendered by the MCH Parties, or
other receivables from any third panty resulting from the operation of MCH
(collectively, the “Accounts Receivable™);

() Funds designated or restricied for MCH improvements or
operations and use, including Board designated funds for capital improvements
and donor restricted assets, provided that such funds shall be utilized by Genesis
in accordance with their restricted purposes {collcctively, the “Funds™);

(vi)  Cash, marketable securities and other readily available funds in
accounts or otherwise designated to support operation or capital support of MCH,
{collectively, the “Cush™;

{vif) Al rights of any of thc MCH Parties in any contrects or
agreements used or vseful in the operation of MCH {the "Contracts”} and which
are assigned to and mssumed by Gencsis pursuant to the Assignment and
Assumption Apgreement, as defined in Section 3.4(e)(vii} (collectively, the
“Assigned Contracts™); and

(viii) All rights in any intellectual Property, prepaid expenses and other
material assets of the MCH Parties used or useful in the operation of MCH
{collectively, the “Other Assets™).

(b) Exciuded Assets. The Included Assets shall not include the following:

(i) Cerlain rural property owned by the any of the MCH Parties which
wag donated for the benefit of MCH, es legally described on Exhibit B (the
“Excluded Real Property”); provided however, that (i) such property shall be
titled and held in the name of the Mercer Foundation for Health (the
“Foundation™) and (i} any revemues fram such property shall continue te support
the operations of MCH consistent with the intent of the donors of the property;

(i)  Rights under any Contracts of any of the MCH Parties which arc
not Assigned Contracls; and

(iii}  Any assets held by the Foundation, provided that the Foundation

shall continue to exist to support the operations of MCH and the health and well-
being of Mercer County residents.
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22 Assumption of Liabilities. Genesis agrees to assume the following obligations
related to the operation of MCH and the Hospital, as of the Closing Date (or such other date as
specifically set forth below) (collectively, the “Included Liabilities™):

{(2) Current Debt. The outstanding balance of all debt attributable to MCH
or the County (with respect to {ts ownership of MCH) that is set forth on Exhibit C i
attached hereto and made a part herecf, incurred before the Effective Date (collectively, i
the “Current Debt™). :

{b)  Renovation Debt. The outstanding balance of debt related 10 the
renovation project defined in the Project Management Services Addendum to the
Munagement Services Agreement dated as of July 1, 2010, as further detailed and
described on Exhibit C (the “Renovation Debt™),

{c) New Debt. Any new debt incurred by or on behalf of the MCH Parties
{with respect to its ownership of MCH), after the Effective Date (including any additional
advances on Current Debt or Renovation Deb{) which has been approved by Gencsis {the
“New Debt™),

(d)  Trade Paysbles. All accounts payable of the MCH Parties as of the |
Effective Date attributable to the operations of MCH (colleciively, “Trade Payables™).

{e) Assigned Contracts. All obligations of any of the MCH Parties under
the terms of any Assigned Contracts.

23  Post-Closing Covenants. As further consideration for the transfer of the '
Included Assets and the assumption of the Included Liabilities, in the event Gencesis elects to
exercise its Option, the Parties covennnt and agree as follows:

{a) Services, Genesis aprees to continue to operatc MCH as an acute care i
hospital for a minimum of five (5) years from the Closing Date. The operation of the i
hospital by Genesis shall include the delivery of care and services to the indigent !
population of Mercer County end all those in need in a manmer consistent with the ;
mission of Genesis. \

(t) Employees. Employees of MCH currently participate in the lllineis
Munigipal Retirement Fund (“IMR¥™), and the County makes contributions to the IMRF
for the bencfit of these employees. As of the Closing Date, the employees of MCIH shall
become employees of Genesis, and said employees will no longer be able to participate in
IMRF but will reccive other benefits available to other similarly-situated Genesis
employees for which they are eligible under current plan participation documents,
policies or guidelines in effect as of the Option Exercise Date, as defined in Section 3.1,
So long as any MCH emplovee is continuously emploved by Genesis aficr the Closing |
Date, the employee will, for purposes of seniority and benefit participation, be given !
credit for the continuous years of service such employce had with MCH subject, :
however, to any limitation that may be imposed by a benefit participation plan. }

!
I
f
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ARTICLE I
EXERCISE OF OPTION: CLOSING

3.1 Exercise of Option, At any time during the Term, Genesis may provide the
MCH Parties with written notice of its election to exercise the Option (the “Option Notice™),
subject to the terms and conditions st forth herein. The date Genesis sends the Option Notice is
referred to herein as the “Option Excrcise Date.”

3.2 Clesing. The Parties agree to complete the transfer of the Included Assets and the
assumption of the Included Liabilities (the "Clesing™), under the tenns and subject to the
conditions, set forth herein within ninety (90) days of the Option Exercise Date (the “Closing
Date™),

3.3  Covenants Following Exerclsc of Option. In the event Genesis elects to
exercise its Option, {he Parties covenant and agree as follows:

(2}  Updated Schedules and Exhibits. The Schedules and Exhibits shall be
true and correct al all times during the Option Term, unless the MCH Board and Gencsis
have approved of any change 1o such Exhibits and Schedules (an “Approved Change”).
if there is an Approved Change, the MCH Parties agree 1o promptly furnish to Genesis
the applicable updated Schedules and Exhibits as soon as reasonably practicable prior to
the Closing Date. Upou approval by Genesis and the MCH Bosrd of any updated
Schedules and Exhibits (collectively, the “Updated Schedules and Exhibits™), such
Updated Schedules and Exhibits shall be attached to this Agreement and made 2 part
hereof without the further action of any Party,

(b}  Additional Schedules. The MCH Parties agree to diligently prepare and
furnish to Genesis as soon as reasonably practicable after the Option Exercise Date, and
in no event later than thirty (30) days after the Option Excercise Date, drafts of each of the
informational schedutes described in this Section 3.3(b) (collectively, the “Draft Post-
Exerclse Schedules™). The MCH Parties agree to promptly (i) revise any of the Drafl
Post-Exercise Schedules upon request from Genesis and, (i} if necessary, update any
Draft Post-Exercise Schedules so that, as of the Closing Date, the information contained
therein is true, complete, and, as set forth in Section 3.4(d), acceptable to Genesis. At
Closing, the schedules described in this Section 3.3(b), revised and updated as set forth
herein (collectively, the “Post-Exercise Schedules™), shall bes attached to this Agreement
and made a part hereof without the further action of any Party, The Post-Exercise
Schedules shall contain the following information:

)] All Encumbrances affecting the Premises (other than Included
Liabilities and Premises Debt, as set forth on Exhibit C) which are acceptable to
Genesis in its sole discretion {collectively, the “Permitted Encumbrances™);
which such schedule, upon approval by Genesis, shall be attached as Schedule

3.300)(1);
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{iiy  All Fumnimre, Fixtures and Equipment, as dcfined in Scction
2.1(2)(ai), which such schedule, upon approval by Genesis, shall be attached as
Schedule 1.3(b)(ii);

(ili) Any exceptions to the accuracy of the representetions and
warranties contained in Secctions 4.5(b) and (c); which such schedule, upon
approval by Genesis, shall be attached as Schedule 3.3(b)iii);

(iv) A list of each of the Contracts described in Section 4.6(a}, which
such schedule, upon approval by Genesis, shall be aftached as Schedule
3.3(b)iv);

{v) A description of the Intellectual Property of the MCH Parties used
or useful in the operation of MCH, which such schedule, upon approval by
Genesis, shall be attached as Schedyle 3.3(bXV);

(vi) a list of the name, job title and current compensation for each
employes of MCH and any agreement or arrangement with the employee not
available 1o all emplovees of MCH Parties, and & list of each Benefit Plan which
such schedule; upon approval by Genesis, shall be attached as Schedule
3. 3{(b)vi);

(vii) 2 list of all Permits, as defined in Section 4.12; which such
schedule, upon approval by Genesis, shall be attached as Schedule 3.3(b)(vii); and

(vill) a list of the insurance centificates described in Section 4.14; which
such schedule, upon approval by Genesis, shall be attached as Schedule
3.3{B){vii).

{) Transfer and Assignment Documents. The Parties shall work in goed
faith to finalize the forms of ecach of the following closing deliverables as soon as
practicable after the Option Exercise Date; MCH Parties' Closing Certificate; Genesis
Closing Certificate; MCH Parties' Closing Resolution; Genesis Closing Resolutien; Real
Estate Transfer Documents; Owmership Transfer Documents; Foundation Lease
Assignment; Assignment ond Assumption Agrecment; Third-Party Consents; and any ;
other closing deliverables as described in Section 3.4(e)(x} and Section 3.5(d}{w).

(@) Real Estate. At Closing, the MCH Parties’ title in the Premises shall be
free of liens, encumbrances, easements or defects, subject only to the encumbrances ‘
which secure Included Liabilities and Premises Debt, as set forth on Exhibit C, and any i
Pormitted Encumbrances. The MCH Parties agree to remove on or before the Closing
Date all monetary liens and Encumbrances affecting the Premiscs, except the lien of real
property taxes not yet due and payable and any Permitted Encumbrances,

() Non-Assignable Contracts, Anything in this Agreement to the contrary
notwithstanding, no provision of this Agreement or the Exhibits and Schedules shall

constitute an agreement to assign, and the Included Assets shall not include any of the
Contracts if an attempted assignment thercof, without the consent of a third party thereto,
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would constitute a breach thereof or in any way affect the rights of the MCH Parties
thereunder, To the extent any of the Contracts are not assignabie or if the MCH Parties do
not know if any of the Contracts are assignable, the MCH Parties shall extend commercially
reasonably efforts to obtain such consents to assignment; provided that Genesis shall not be
required to agree to any change in the terms of such Contract or pay any fee or other
consideration to a third party in order to obtain any such third party consent. To the extent
the MCH Parties are unable to obtain any such consent to assignment or instument or other
document of conveyance with respect to any of such Contracts as reasonably requested by
Genesis pursuant to Section 4.6{a} herein within ten (10) days prior to the Closing Date,
Genesis shall have no obligation to assume such Contracts, and the MCH Partiss, a5
applicable shall be responsible for such Contracts,

(f) Working Capitnl. The MCH Parties agree that Working Capital of MCH
on the Closing Date shall be no less than the working Capital of MCH on the Option
Exercise Date (the “Minimum Working Capltal”). If Working Capital is less than the
Minimum Working Capital on the Closing Date, the County shall provide funds (the
“Working Capital Funds™) such that the Working Capital equals the Minimum Working
Capital by the Closing Date. Asused herein, the term “Working Capital” means current
assets of MCH minus current liabilities of MCH, determined according to GAAP.

34  Closing Conditlons — Genesis. The obligation of Genesis o consummate the

transactions contemplated herein following its exercise of the Option is subject to satisfaction of
the following conditions by the MCH Parties by the Closing Date:

{a) Representations and Warrantics of MCH. All of the MCH Parties’
representations and warranties made herein, considered collectively, and cach of such
representations and warranties, considered individually, must have been true and correct
in ell material respects as of the Option Exercise Date and shal! be true and correct as of
the Closing Date (except for those representations and warranties made as of a particular
date, which shall be true and correct as of such date), as though then made.

(b} Performance of Covenants and Agreements. The MCH Parties shall
have performed in afl material respects all of the covenants and agreements required 1o be
performed by it hereunder at or prior to the Closing Date,

(c} Actions and Proceedings. No action or proceeding before any
Governmental Authority shall be pending whercin an unfavorabie judgment, decree or
order would (i) prevent the performance of this Agreement or the consummation of any
of the transactions contemplated hereby, declare unlawful the transactions comtemplated
by this Agreement or cause such transaction to be rescinded, or (ii) have a Material
Adverse Effect, nor shall there be any change in any applicable law or regulation which
would have the same effect.

(d) Condition of MCH, Genesis shall be satisfied with its inspeciion,

survey, audit and review of the assets, records and eperations of the MCH Parties and the
condition of the assels, records and operations of the MCH Parties shall be accepiable to
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Genesis in its discretion in all material respects. The Updated Schedules and Exhibits, if
applicable, and all Post-Exercise Schedules shail be acceptable to Genesis in its
discretion in all material respects.

(e) Closing Deliverables, The MCH DPartics, as applicable, shall have
delivered te Genesis each of the following;

(0 the Working Capital Funds, if applicable;

(i) a certificate (or certificates) of the MCH Parties, dated on the
Closing Date, stating that the conditions specified in subsections {a) and (b) above
have been satisfied, which such certificate (or certificates) shall; (A) specifically
remake each of the representations and warranties of the MCH Parties set forth in
Article IV, (B} certify that there have been no changes to any of the Schedules
since the Effective Date, except as set forth in Section 3.3(a); (C) certify that any
Updated Schedules and Exhibits are true and correct; and (D) certify that the Post.
Exercise Schedules are true and correct.

(iii) certified copies of resolutions or consents duly adopted by the
MCH Parties authorizing (A) the execution, delivery and performance of the
agreements contemplated hercby, and (B) the consummation of all transaclions
contemplated hereby,

{ivy  a warranty deed transferring ownership of the Premises to Genests,
in form and substance satisfactory to Genesis, executed by the County and other
items required to transfer title to the Premises to Genesis {collectively, the “Real
Estate Transfer Documents™);

(v)  documentation transferring ownership of the Included Assets set
forth in Sectiops 2.1(a)(ii}-{vi}, (viii), in form and substance satisfactory to
Genesis, executed by the MCH Parties, a5 applicable;

(vi) an assignment of the Foundation Lease (as defined in Section
4.5(a)(il)) in favor of Genesis (the “Foundation Lease Assignment™), in form
and substance satisfactory to Genesis, execuied by MCH;

(vil) an assignment and assumption agreement assigning the Assigned
Contracts to (Genesis, in form and substance satisfactory to Genesis (the
“Asslgnment and Assumption Agreement”), executed by the MCH Parties, as
applicable;

(viii) an assignment of any owner’s title insurance policy with respect to
the Premises, to the extent assignable;

(ix)  consents from third-parties to the Assigned Contracts, to the extent
reasonably required by Genesis;
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(x)  certificatcs of insurance required pursuant to Secticn 4.14; and

(xi)  such other documents as Genesis may reasonably request for the
purpese of (A) cvidencing the accuracy of any of the MCH Parties’
representations and warranties, (B) evidencing the performance by the MCH
Parties of, or the compliance by the MCH Parties with, any covenant or obligation
required to be performed or complied with by the MCH Parties, as applicable, (C)
evidencing the satisfaction of any condition referred to in this Section 3.4, or (D)
otherwise facilitating the consummation or performance of transactions
contermnplated by this Apreement, including the assignment of the Assigned
Contracts and the transfer of any other [ncluded Assets,

35 Closing Conditions ~ MCH Parties. The obligation of the MCH Parties to
consummate the transactions contemplated herein following exercise of the Option by Genesis is
subject to satisfaction of the foliowing conditions by Genesis by the Closing Date:

(a)  Representations and Warrantics of Genesis. All of the reprasentations
and warranlics of Gonesis hereunder, considered collectively, and each of these
representations and warranties, considered individually, must have been truc and correct
in all material respects as of the date of the Option Exercise Date and shall be true and
correct as of the Closing Date (except for those representations and warranties made as of
a particular date, which shall be true and comrect as of such date) as though then made.

{b)  Performance of Covenants and Agreements. Genesis shall have
performed in all materinl respects all of the covenants and agreements required to be
performed by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Clesing Date.

{c}  Actions and Proceedings. No action or proceeding before any
Governmental Authorily shall be pending wherein an unfavarable judgment, decree or
order would (i) prevent the performance of this Agreerment or the conswmmation of any
of the transactions contemplated hereby, declare unlawfisl the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement or cause such transaction to be rescinded, or (ii) have a Material
Adversc Effect, nor shall there be any change in any applicable law or regulation which
would have the same effect.

(d) Closing Deliverables. Genesis shall have delivered to the MCH Parties
each of the following:

[§3] a certificate of Genesis dated the Closing Date, stating that the
conditions specified in subsections (a) and (b} ubove have been satisfied by
Genesis;

{i)  a copy of the articles of incorporation for Genesis, certified by the
Sceretary of State of lowa dated within fifteen (15) duys of the Closing Date;
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(iii) certified copics of resolutions or consents duly odopted by the
board of directors of Genesis rutharizing (A) the exercise of the Option, (B) the
execution, delivery and performance of the agreements contemplated hereby, and
(C) the consummation of all {ransactions contemplated hereby;

(iv)  acopy of the Foundation Lease Assignment executed by Genesis;

(v)  acopyofthe Assignment and Assumptien Agrecment executed by
Genesis; and

(vi}  such other documents as the MCH Parties may reasonably request
for the purpose of (A) evidencing the accuracy of any of Genesis’s representations
and warranties, {B) evidencing the performance by Genesis of, or the compliance
by Genesis with, any covenant or obligation required to be performed or complied
with by Genesis, (C) evidencing the satisfaction of any condition referred to in
this Section 3,5, or (D) otherwise facilitating the consummation or performance of
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the assurnption of the
Included Liabilities,

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE MCH FARTIES

Fach MCH Party hereby represents and warrants o Genesis {provided, however, that the
representations and warranties made by the County are limited to its ownership and operation of
the Hospital), as of thc date hereof (except, as to any represeniations and wartanties that
specifically relate to an earlier date, and then as of such eatlier date), that:

41  Organization. Each MCH Party has all requisite power and authority to carry on
business relating to MCH and the operation of the Hospital and to owm and use the properties
presently owned and used by each of them, respectively.

4.2  Aulhorization. This Agreement and the consummation of the fransactions
contemplated hereby have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by each MCH Party,
and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by Genesis, constitute legal, valid
and binding obligations of each MCH Party enforceable against each MCH Party in accordance
with their terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptey laws, other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights and general principles of equity affecting the availability of specific
performance and other equitable remedics.

4.3  Noncontravention; Nofice and Consents

{(#8)  Noncontravention, The execution and delivery of this Agreement by
each MCH Party, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will
not (i) violate any law, order or decree or any provision of the goveming documents of
any of the MCH Parties, (ii} rcsult in a breach of, constitute 2 default under (with or
without notice or lapse of time, or both), resull in the temmination, canceliation or
acceleration of, or create in any party the right to accelerate, terminate or cancel any
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Contract or Permit; or (iif) result in the creation of any Encumbrance upon any of the
assets of the MCH Partics.

(b)  Notice and Consents. The MCH Parties are not required to submit any
notice, report or other filing with any Governmental Authority (or, if required 1o submit
any notice, such notice requirement has been fuifilled prior to the date hereof} in
connection with the execution, delivery or performance by it of this Agreement or the
consummation of the iransactions contemplated hereby, and no consent, approvel or
authorization of any Govermmental Authority or any other Person is required to be
abtoined in connection with the MCH Parties' execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement ot the consummation vl the transactions contemplated hereby, including
the Closing. The County represents and warrants that, as of the Effective Date, gll notice
and authorization requirements set forth in 55 1LCS 5/5-1040 have been met, and no
further notice or authorization is needed to consummate the Closing, as set forth herein.

4.4 Financial Statements; Books and Records. The books of account, financial
staterments prepared in accordance with GAAP, and other accounting records of MCH, all of
which have been made available to Genesis pursuant to Section 6.5(b), are complete and correct
in all material respects.

4.5  Propertics,
{a) Real Property.

(D Owned Property. The County is the fee simple owner of the
Premises and has good and marketable title to the Premises. MCH does not own
any real property other than the Excluded Real Property.

(iiy Leased Property, MCH leases a medical office building {the
“Foundation Building™ from the Foundation pursuant to that certain Lease
Agreement by and belween the Foundation as landlord and MCH as tenant, dated
as of November 11, 2010 (the “Foundation Lease™), which such Foundation
Lease is in full force end cffect. MCH does not lease any real property other than
the Foundation Building. In the cvent Genesis chooses to cxercisc its Option, the
Foundation has agreed to assign the Foundation Lease to Genesis by the Closing
Date pursuant to the landiord certificate, consent and estoppel substantially in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Foundation Consent™, The MCH
Partics have delivercd a copy of the Foundation Consent executed by the
Foundation to Genesis on or prior to the Effective Date.

(iii) General. There are no applicable adverse zoning, building or
land use cedes or rules, ordinances, regulations or other restrictions relating fo
zoning or land use that currently or may prospectively {i) prevent or impair the
continued use of the Premises or the Foundntion Building for the conduet of the
MCH Parties’ business as currently conducted, or (ii) cause the imposition of
material fines or penalties as the result of the use of all or any portion of the
Premises or the Foundation Building tor the conduct thereon of the MCH Parties'
business as presently conducted.

11
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{(b)  Furniture Fixtures and Equipment, The MCH Parties own good title
to, or hold pursuant to valid and enforceable leases (subject to proper authorization and
execution of cach such lease by the other party thercte end the application of bankruptey
and other laws relating to creditors’ rights), all of the Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment,
supplies and any other persunal propeity necessary and useful for the operation of MCH,
free and clear of all Encumbrances,

{) Conditlon and Adeguacy of Assets. The Furniture, Fixtures and
Equipment and other personal property of the MCH Parties, with respect to the operation
of MCH, are in operating condition and are adequate for the uses to which they are being
put, and, to the Knowledge of the MCH Parties, none of the Equipment is in need of
maintenance or repairs except for ordinary, routine meintenance and tepairs that are not
material in nature or cost. The Fumihre, Fixtures and Equipment and supplies of the
MCH Parties are sufficient for the continued conduct of MCH after the Effective Date
snd, if applicable, the Closing Dale, in substantially the same manner as conducted prior
to the Effective Date and, if applicable, the Closing Date.

4.6 Contracts.

(a) Material Contracts. The MCH Parties have made available to Genesis
correct and complete copies of cach written Contract, and a description of each oral
Contract, of the following types to which any of the MCH Parties are a party and are
bound by as of the date hereof with respect to the ownership or operation of MCH: (i)
Contracts with third party payors for services rendered by MCH to its patients; (i)
Contracts or groups of related Confracts with the same party providing for the purchase
or sale of products or services by the MCH Parties of an outstanding amount in excess of
Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000); (iii) Contracts which have a fixed wcm
extending more than twejve months from the date hereof and which involve an annval
commitment or annual payment by any party thereto of more than Twenty Thousand
Dollars {$20,000) or cumulative payments in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000);
(iv)} any parinership or joint venture Contract; (v) any contract with a physician or
physician group; (vi) eny license of material Intellectual Property with a third party; (vii)
any written Contract for the employment of any Person on a full-time or consulting basis;
(viii) eny Contract relating to long-termn debt owed by the any of the MCH Parties as of
the Effective Date; (ix) all Contracts imposing a noncompetition obligation on any of the
MCH Partics, or sny swmnilar restriction on the activities of the MCH Parties, as
applicable; and (x) any other Contract rcasenably reguested by Genesis. .

(b) No Breach, Each such Contract as set forth in subsection {a) above is
valid and enforceable by and against the MCH Parties, as appliceble, in accordance with
i{s terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptey, insolvency, or other
similar laws affecting the rights and remedies of creditors generally und the general
principles of equity. None of the MCH Parties, nor, to the Knowledge of the MCH
Parties, any other parly is in breach or default under any such Contract as set forth in
subsection (&) ebove or anv other contract or egreement of the MCH Parties, except for
any breaches, defanits, terminations, modifications or accelerations which have been
cured or waived or which would not reasonably be expected to have a Materdal Adverse
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Effect.

4.7 Intellectual Property, Thc MCH Parties own or have the right to use all
Intellectual Property used in the conduct of the business of MCH and the consurmmation of the
ransactions contemplated herby will not alter or impair any such rights. The current use by the
MCH Parties of any Intellectual Property does not infringe on the rights of any Person and there
are no pending, or to the Knowledge of the MCH Parties, threatened, claims by any third party
against the MCH Parties alleging that either of their use of any Intellectual Property infringes the
intellectual property rights of such third party.

4.8  Absence of Certain Changes or Events, Except as disclosed to Genesis in
writing, since December 31, 2009, there has not been (i) any material adverse change in the
financial cendition or in the operations, business or property of the MCH Parties, or (ii) any
damage, destruction or loss, whether or not covered by insurance, that materially or adversely
affects the operations, business or property of the MCH Panties.

4.9  Tax Matters. MCH has filed on a ymely basis all tax returns that arc or were
required to be filed by or with respect to it. MCH has paid, or made provision for the payment
of, all taxes that have or may have become due pursuant to those tax retumns or ofherwise, or
pursuant to any assessment received by MCH and there exists no proposed tax assessment
against MCH, All taxes that MCH is ot was required to withhold or collect have been duly
withheld or cotlected ond, to the extent required, have been paid to the proper Governmental
Authority or other Person. There are no liens for taxes un any assets of MCH, and MCH 1s not
subject to any currently pending tax audits or other proceedings with regard to any taxes for
which MCH would be liable,

4,10 Litigation. There are no actions, suits, claims, investigations or proceedings
pending or, to the Knowledge of the MCH Parlies, threatened against the MCH Parties, at law or
in equity, or before or by any Govemmental Auvthority. The MCH Panties are not subject to any
judgment, decree, injunction, rule or order of any Govermment Authority which could reasonably
be cxpected 1o have a Material Adverse Effect.

4,11 Employees; Employment Matters.

{a))  Fmployecs. Each employee of MCH is duly licensed an qualified to
perform the functions assigned to the emplovee and no employee has been disbarred or
otherwise excluded or ineligible from scrving as provider of services reimbursed under
Medicaye und Medicaid programs. MCH is not a party to or bound by any collechive
bargaining agreement.

{b) Compllance with Laws. MCH has, in all material respects, complied
with all applicable laws relating to labor or labor relations snd employment standards,
including any provisions thereof relating to wages, hours, immigration control, employece
safety, termination pay, vacation pay, fringe benefits, emplayee benefits, collective
bargaining and the payment and/or accrusl of the same and all insurance and ail other
costs and expenses applicable thereto, There is no unlawful employment discrimination
charge pending before Governmental Authority or, to the Knowledge of the MCH
Partices, threatened, against or involving the MCH Parties.
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(©  Employce Benefit Plans. The Benefit Plans comply in form and, to the
Knowledge of the MCH Partics, in operation with the requircments of the Code and
ERISA. No event has occurred, and there exists no condition or set of circumstances in
connection with which the MCH Board is now or could be in the future subject to any
liability under ERISA. A}l required contributions have been made or properly accrued.

4.12  Licenses, Perinits and Approvals. The MCH Partics have obtained all material
governmental and regulatory licenses, authorizations, franchises, certificates, permits and
approvals (collectively, the “Permits™) necessary for the conduct of the business of MCH
including the ownership and operation of the Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment. The MCH
Parties are in compliance with the terms of the Permits, except for such noncompliance as would
not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

413 Medicare and Medicald. MCH is a participating provider under the rules and
regulations for, and eligible to receive, Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement, and has not been
debarred or exciuded from patticipating in the Medicare program, the Medicaid program of any
state, or any other federal health care program. MCH represents and warrants that, to its
Knowledge, none of its officers, directors, employees or agents who may provide services or
otherwise act with regard to this Agrcement have been so debarred or excluded. MCH has duty
filed any required reports on a timely basis and all such reports are true and correet in all material
respects.  Claims for reimbursement filed by MCH do not scck, and MCH has not received,
reimbursement in an amount in excess of that permitted by law,

4,14 Insurance. The MCH Partics have in place all insurance policies required
pursuant to Section 3.7 of the Affiliation Agreement. All such insurance policies are in full force
and cffect, and all premiums that are due and payabie on such policies have been paid,

415 Environmental Matters, The MCH Parties’ business complies and has at all
times complied with, and it is not in violution of, and has not violated, in connection with the
ownership, use, maintenance or operation of its properties and the conduct of its businesses
related thereto, any applicable federal, stale, county or Jocal statutes, laws, regulations, rules,
ordinances, codes, licenses or permits of all governmenta! authorities relating to environmental
matters. The MCH Parties are in compliance with all laws regarding the disposal of medical
waste.

4.16 Compliance with Laws. The MCH Partics have complied with al} appliczble
laws of federal, state, local, and foreign governmments, except where the fajlure to comply would
not have o Material Adverse Effect. MCH specifically represents that MCH is in compliance
with the faws govemning payment or reimbursement under Medicare and Medicaid and other
entiticroent programs.

417 Accounts Receivable, All of the accounts receivable of the MCH Parties
inchading, but not limited to Medicare and Medicaid patient accounts receivable, (collectively,
the “Accounts Receivable™) constitute bona fide indebtedness owing to the MCH Parties, as

applicable, for services actually provided and have been recorded in the ordinary course of
business and such Accounts Receivable have been cartied on the books of the MCH Parties at
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values in conformity with past practices and reflect all facts known to the MCH Parties as of the
date hereof pertaining 1o the valuation thereof,

4.18 Disclosure. No representation or warranly by the MCH Parties in this Agreement
or any Schedule or Exhibit furnished or to be furnished to Gonesis pursuant hereto, or in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, contains an untrue statement of a material
fact or 1o the best of the MCH Parties omits & material fact nccessary to make the statements
contained therein not misleading.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF GENESIS

(Genesis hereby represents and warrants to the MCH Parties, as of the date hereof (except,
as to any representations and warranties that specifically relate to an earlier date, and then as of
such earlicr date), that;

5.1  Organization. Genesis is a nonprofit corperation duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of Jowa. Genesis has all requisite cotporate power
and authority to camry on the business in which it is presently engaged and to own and use the
properties presently owned and used by it,

5.2  Authorization. This Agreement and the conswmmation of the transactions
contemplated hereby hos been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Genesis and, assuming
the due authorization, execution and delivery by the other Purties hereto, constitutes & legal, valid
and binding obligation of Genesis enforceable against Genesis in accordance with its terms,
except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptey laws, other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights 2nd genernl prnciples of equity affecting the availability of specific
performance and other equitable remedies.

53 Noncontraventinn; Consents.

(a) Noncontravention. The execution and delivery of this Agreememt by
Gengsis, and the copsummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, wiil not (i)
vielate any law, order or decree or any provision of Genesis governing decuments, (i)
result in a breach of, constitute e default under (with or without notice or lapse of time, or
hoth), result in the termination, cancellation or acceleration of, or create in any party the
right to accelerate, temminate ot cancel any Contract or Permit; or (iii) result in the
creation of any Encumbrance upon any of the assets of Genesis.

(b))  Consents, Genesis is not required to submit any notice, report or other
filing with any Governmental Authority in connection with the exccution, delivery or
performance by it of this Agreement ot the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, and no consent, approval or authorization of any Govemmental
Authority or any other Person is required to be obtained in connection with Genesis’s
exceution, delivery and performance of this Apreement or the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby.
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5.4  Disclosure. No representation or wurranly by Genesis in this Agreement or any
Schedule or Exhibil furnished or to be furnished to the MCH Parties pursuant hereto, or in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, contains an untrue statement of a material
fact er to the best of Genesis's Knowledge omits a matenial fact necessary to make the statements
contained therein not misleading.

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS

6.1 Due Diligence, Cooperation. The Parlics acknowledge and agree that Genesis
may commence a due diligence review of the activities, operations, asscts and liabilities of MCH
at any time during the Option Term. The MCH Partics agree to cooperate in such investigation,
and timely provide such documentation and information as may be requested by Genesis. Al any
time prior to or afier the Option Exercise Date, including as set forth in Section 3.3(a) and
Section 3.3(b), Genesis may reasonably request that the MCH DParties provide updated
information as to any Schedule, Exhibit, Updated Schedules and Exhibits, or Post-Exercise
Schedules, as appliceble, and may request any edditional disclosure schedules, financial
statermnents or other information that Genesis deems necessary to evahuate the content and
condition of the Tncluded Assets and the accuracy of the representations and warranties
contained herein, The MCH Parties shall furnish any such requested schedules, statements and
information to Genesis as soon 85 reasonably practicable,

"6.2  Exclusivity, During the Term, none of the MCH Parties shall participate in
discussions or ncgotiations with any third party for any transaction that is inconsistent with the
transactions contemplated in this Agreement or in the Affiliation Agreement. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, in the event Gencesis and the MCH Parties have determined not to extend the Term
and Genesis has not provided the MCH Parties with the Option Notice, the MCH Parties may
engage in discussions with third parties about possible transactions or relationships during the
last six (6) months of the Term; provided, however, that any such transactions or relationships
with third parties shall cornmence only after the expiration of the Term, and no such transactions
or relationships shall commence if Genesis exercises its Option during the Term.

6.3  Best Efferts. Subject W the terms and conditions herein provided, each Party
hereto shall act in good faith and use its best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all action, or
do, or cause to be done, all things, necessary, proper or advisable under the laws of the State of
Tlinois to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and
to finalize and executs the remaining agreements referenced herein, subject, however, to the
appropriate conscnt of the board of directors of Genesis,

6.4  Notice of Breach. Each Party will give prompt notice to the ather Parties of the
accurrence of any event, or the failure of any event to occur, that results in a breach of any
representation or warranty by the applicable Purty or a failure by the applicable Party to comply
with any covenant, condition or agreement contained herein.

65  Covenants of MCH. During the period commencing on the Effective Date and
ending on the later of the Closing Date or termination of the Term:
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(2)  Conduct of Business. The MCH Parties shall conduet the business and
operations of the Hospital and other business of MCH in the Ordinary Course of
Business, in a safe and prudent manner, consistent with past practices and procedures
and, 1o the extent consistent with such business, shall use all reasonable efforts to
preserve intact the business organization, to kecp available the services of the employees
and agents, and to preserve its relationships with patients, physicians, and others having
business dealings with MCH 1o the end that the goodwill and continuing business of
MCH shall not be suffer any Material Adverse Effect through the later of the Closing
Date or the termination of the Term. Without the written consent of Genesis or as
otherwise provided for herein, the MCH Parties shall (i) not amend the Bylaws of the
MCH Board other than as specifically required pursuant to the Affiliation Agreement; (if)
not acquire or enter into an agreement to acquire, by merger, consolidation or purchase of
stock or assets, any business or entity; (iii} not sell, dispose of, or encumber, or enter into
any agreement fo sell, dispose of, or encumber any assets of MCH outside the QOrdinary
Course of Business, (iv) not (1) create, incur or assume any long-term debt {including
obligations in respect of capital leases which individually involve annual payments in
cxcess of $25,000 or $50,000 in the aggregate) or, except in the Ordinary Course of
Business under existing lines of credit, create, incur or assume any shori-term debt for
torrowed money, (2} assume, guarantee, cndorse or otherwise become liable or
responsible (whether directly, contingently or otherwise) for the obligations of any other
Person, (3) create, or allow the creation of, any lien or security interest to any of MCH's
assets, (4) make any loans or advances to any Person, or (5) make any capital
contributions (o, or investments in, any person; {v) not enter into, modify or extend in any
manner the terms of any employment, severance or similar agreements with members or
managers nor grant any increase in the compensation of members, managers or
employees, whether now or hereafter payable (except for compensation increases in the
Ordinary Coursc of Business and consistent with past practice with respect to employees
ofther than executive officers and directors), including any such increase pursuant to any
option, bonus, stock purchase, pension, profit-sharing, deferred compensation, retirement
or other plan, arrangement, contract or commitment; (vi) perform in all material respects
all of its obligations under all contracts {except those being contest in good faith) and not
enter into, assume or amend any contract or commitment that would be & Contract, other
than a contract cntered into in the Ordinary Course of Business and consistent with past
practices and procedures; (vii) use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain in full
force and effect and in the same amounts policics of insuwrance comparable in amount and
scope of coverage to that now maintained by the MCH Partics and not amend or cancel
any policies of insurance now meaintzined by the MCH Parties; and (viii) not permit a
change in its methods of maintaining its books, accounts or business records or, except as
required by GAAP (in which event prior notice shall be given to Genesis), change any of
its accounting principles or the methods by which such principals are applied for tax or
financial reporting purposes.

{b) Access to Booles and Records. The MCH Parties shall provide Genesis
and its authonzed representatives with full access during wormal business hours of MCH
and upon at least 48 hours® prior notice to the offices, propertics, senier management,
books and records of MCH in order for Genesis to have the opportunity to make such
investigation as it shall reasonably desire to make of the affairs of the MCH Partics;
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provided, however, that the activities of Genesis and its representatives shall be
conducted in a manner as not fo interfere unreasonably with the operation of the business
of the MCH Parties.

ARTICLE V]I
DEFINITION OF TERMS

For purposes of this Agreement, the terms sct forth below shall have the following
meanings, All other capitalized terms have the meanings given to them in the text of this
Agreement or the Affiliation Agreement, as applicable.

7.1  “Benefit Plan” means pension, retirement, savings, profit sharing, deferred
compensation, salary continuation, incentive compensation, stock option, severance, (change in
contrel) or termination pay, medical, dental, life or other insuramce, disability plan, sick leave,
vacation, personal time off with pay (including personal time off days, fiex days and illness of
family member days) or other employee benefit plan or program, agreement or arrangement
maintained, sponsored or contributed to by any MCH Party or required to be contribuied to the
any MCH DParty, whether covering emplovees of any MCH Party, former employees of any
MCH Pasty, or menagers or fonner managers of any MCH Party (including, but not limited te,
any “Employcc Benefit Plan,” as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA).

7.2 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and {he rules and
regulations promulgaied thereunder.

7.3  “Encumbrance” means any mortgage, pledpe, lien, encumbrance, ¢harge, or
other security interest, option, right or restriction, other than (a) statutory liens of landlords and
liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanic’s, materiglmen's, and similar liens for amounts not
yet due and payable or that are being contested in good faith through appropriate proceedings,
(b) liens for taxes not yet due and payable or for taxes thai the taxpayer is contesting in good
faith through appropriate proceedings, {c) purchase money liens and liens securing rental
payments under capital lease arrangements that have been disclosed pursuant hereto to the extent
required [o be disclosed; (d) liens incurred or deposits made in the Ordinary Course of Business
in connection with workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance or other types of social
security; (€} with respect to real property only, zoning restrictions, building codes and other land
use laws regulating the use or occupancy of property, and defects of title, cascments, rights of
way, covenants and restrictions that do not, individually or in the aggregate, materially impair
the marketability or use of such real property, or materally interfere with the Ordinary Course of
Business, and (f) other Liens and encumbrances not incurred in connection with the borrowing of
money, that do not have a Material Adverse Effect.

7.4 “Exhibits" means the exhibits that are attached to this Agreement and are
incorporated by refercnee hereio,

7.5  “ERISA™ means the Employee Retirerment Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended,
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7.6  “GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles as in effect in the
United States of America.

7.7 “Governmental Authority” means any of the following: (i) the United States of
America, (il) any state, commonwealth, territory or possession of the United States of America
and any political subdivision thereof (including counties, municipalities and the like), and (3ii)
any agency, authority or instrumentality of any of the foregoing, including any court, tribunal,
department, burean, commission, board, arbitrator or panel of arbitrators.

7.8 “Intellectual Property” means all fictitious or assumed business names, trading
names, registered and non-registered trademarks, service marks and applications; all patents,
patent applications, inventions and discoveries that may be patentable; all copyrights and both
published works end unpublished works; and all knowhow, trade secrels, confidential
information, patient lists, software, technical information, data, process technology, plans,
drawings and blueprints owned, used or licensed to or by a Party.

7.9 “Knowledge™ as to the MCH Parties means (i) the actual knowledge of any
physician, manager or designated officer or key employee or (ii) knowledge that a reasonable
person under similar circumstances would have known or been made aware of in the course of
his or her rele with MCH as a manager ot key employee; and as to Genesis, means (i) the actual
knowledge of any administrative officer or (ii) knowledge that a reasonable person under similar
circumstances would have known or been made aware of in his or her role with Genesis as an
administrative officer.

7.30  “Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effcct or impact upon the
assels, financial condition, results of operations or business of MCH or the County (with respect
to the ownership or operation of MCH), as ths casc may be, taken as a whole or on the abitity of
any of the Parties, as the case may be, to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby or
the occurrence of any event reasonably likely fo result in such a material adverse effect;
provided, however, that none of the following shall be deemed in themselves, either alone or in
combination, to constituie, and none of the following shall be taken into account in determining
whether there has been or will be, a Material Adverse Effect: any adverse change, impact, effect,
event, occurtence, state of facts or development attributable to, resulting from, or relating to (i)
the announcement or pendency of the transactions contcmplated by this Agreement; (i)
conditions affecting the industry in which the any of the Parties participutes, the U.S. economy as
a whole or the capital markets in general or any of the markets in which MCH operates; (iii) any
change in accounting requirements or principles or any change in applicable laws, rules or
regulations or the interpretation thereof, (iv) actions required to be taken under applicable laws,
rules, regulations, contracts or agreements; or (v) acts of God, fire, natural disaster, epidemic,
riat, terrurism or military action or the threat thereof,

7.11 “Ordinary Course of Business” means an action faken by a Person will be
deemed to have been tzken in the “Ordinary Course of Business™ only if (f) such action is
consistent with the past practices of such Person and is taken in the crdinary course of the normal
day-te-day operations of such Person; (ii) such action is not required to be suthorized by the
board of directors of such Person {or by any Person or group of Persons exercising similar
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suthority); and (iii) such action is similar in nature and magnitude 1o actions customarily taken,
without any authorization by the board of dircctors {(or by any Person or group of Persons
exercising similar authority), in the ordinary course of the normal day-to-day operations of other
Persuns that are in the same line of busincss as such Person,

7.12  “Person” means individual, trust, corporation, partnership, limited parinership,
limited liabilily company or other business association or entity or Governmental Authority.

7.13  “Schedules” means the disclosure schedules that are attached 1o this Agreement
and sre incorporated by reference herein.

ARTICLE VIIt
MISCELLANEQUS

81  Costs. The Parties shall each pay their own expenses including, without
limitation, fees and expenses of their agents, employees, represeniatives, counsel, secountants,
and other costs incident to the preparation of this Agreement and the consummation of the
transaction provided herein. After the exercise of the Option, Genesis shall pay recording fees
transfer taxes, and costs of any title insurance for the benefit of Genesis which is applicable to
the transfer of the Premises to Genesis. Genesis shall further reimburse the MCH Parlies
reasonable atlomey fees incurred to transfer the Premises to Genesis; provided, however, that in
no event shall Genesis be obligated to pay attorney fees in excess of $1,000 and any attorney fees
in excess of $1,000 shall be paid by the MCH Parties.

8.2  Dcfault., In the event either of the MCH Parties fail to transfer the Included
Asscts as set forth herein, Genesis shall be entitled to either sue for specific performance of the
transfer of the Premises or terminate this Agreement and sue for money damages, so long as
Genesis is not in material default of this Agreement.

83  Notices, All notices or other communications shall be in writing shall be deemed
given to them personally, telecopy (which is confirmed) or mailed by registered or centified muil
(return receipt requested) to the parties at the addresses set forth in Section 4.1 of the Affiliation
Agreement (or such other address for a party as shall be specifically specified by like notice).

8.4  No Third Party Rights or Remedies. Except as otherwise provided herein,
nothing herein expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or to give
any person, firm or corporation any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.

8.5  Headings. Descriptive headings are for convenience only and shall not cantrol or
affect the meaning or construction of any provisicn of this Agreement.

8.6 Exhibits and Documents. All Exhibits, Schedules and other documents referred
to in or altached to this Agreement and all other writings between the parties, are integral parts of
this Agreement as if fully set forth herein, and all statements appearing therein shall be deemed
disclosed and rclied upon for all purposes and not just in comnection with the specific
representation to which they are explicitly referenced,

B.7  Notificatlon. During the pendency of this Agreement, and so long thereafler as
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the Parties are negotiating in good faith concerning the transactions contemplated in this
Agreement, each Party agrees to give written potification to the other of any material adverse
change in the nature or operation of its business

88  Supervening Laws. The Parties recognize that this Agrecement at all times is to
be subject to applicable state, Jocal and federal law. The Parties further recognize that this
Agreement shall be subject to amendment in such laws and regulations and to new legislation.
Any provisions of the law that invalidate, or otherwise are inconsistent with, the terms of this
Agreement or the intentions of the Parties as stated herein, or that would cause one or more of
the Parties to be in violation of law, shall be deemed to have superseded the terms of this
Agreement; provided, however, that the Parties shall exercise their best efforts to accommoadate
the terms and intent of this Agreement to the greatest extent possible consistent with the
requirements of law,

The Parties hereby expressly agree that it is not the intention of any Party to violate any
public pelicy, statutory or common laws, that if any sentence, paragraph, clause or combination
of the same is in violation of any state or federal law, such sentence, paragraph, clause or
combination of the same shall be inoperative and the remainder of this Agreement shall be
binding upon the Parties hercto, It is the intention of the Parties io make this Agreement binding
only to the extent that it may be lawfully done under existing state and federal laws,

8.9  Severability. If any provision of this Agrecment is held to be illegal, invalid or
unenfurceable under present or future laws effective during the term of this Agreement, such
provision shall be fully severable; this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such
illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of this Agreement; and the
remaining provisions of this Apreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be
affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its sevemnce from this
Agreement. Furthermore, in lieu of each such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there
shall be added automatically as part of this Agreement a provision as similar in terms to such
illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and
enforceable.

8.10 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Tlinois.

8.11 Countcrpiﬂrts. This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts
with the same effect as if the signature of each such counterpart were upon the same instcument.

8.12 Further Assurances. From time to time after execution of this Agreement, cach
Party, at the request of the other and without fusther consideration, agrees to execute and deliver
or to cause to be excecuted and delivered at its expense, such other instraments or documents as
may teasonably be requested by the other o more effectively camry out the intent and purposes
hereof,

8.13  Assignment apd Partics in Interest. This Agrcement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the Parties, their successors and assigns; provided, however, neither Parly
shall assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior wriften conscnf of the
other Pariy. )
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8.14 Waiver. No breach of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be
deemnced as consented to or excused, nor shall the validity or performance of any representation,
promise or undertaking herein be deemed waived, nor any delay in or deviation from the time or
manner of any performance be deemed consented to uniess such consent, excuse or wajver, shall
be in writing and signed by the Party claimed to have consented, excused or waived. Any such
consent, ¢xcuse or weiver shall not constitute consent fo, waiver of, or excuse for any other
simnilar or dissimilar, breach, delay or deviation.

4.15 Entirc Apreement. This Agrcement including all Exhibits and Schedules hereto
constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respeet to the subject matter referenced
in this Agreement and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, comrespondence, understandings
and agrecments among the Parties. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument
signed by each Party, which incorporates this Agreement by reference.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have adopted this Option Agreement as of the
date first set forth above.

MERCER COUNTY, ILLINOIS

By:J\/\o_/g;ME_,HW ha'
Metced Caun‘i‘}(Boqch;C @

Its:

MERCER COUNTY HOSPITAL
(by action of its Governing Board)

By:

Vi vre. 4 v g Boaved

1ts: Q]Q; Vi 2k
GENESIS HEALTH SYSTEM

e fCop

By: k- . y

Its: ¢_/:EO
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Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D

INDEX OF SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS

Legal Description of the Premiscs
Excluded Real Properly
Current Debt and Renovation Debt

Form of Foundation Consent
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EXHIBIT A

Lepal Description of the Premises

The property on which the hospital is located is currently being replatted. The legal description
of the Premises, afler replatting, shall be “Lot ) of Lots 1 and 2 of the Mercer County Hospital -
Subdivision to the City of Aledo, Mercer County, Illinois.”
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EXHIBIT B

Excluded Real Property

Parcel # - 10-10-28-400-002: S28 T14 R3 Lots 3 & 4 SE A/K/A SE % - Less N 66A-10-022-
005-00; and

Parcel # - 10-10-27-300-002; S27 T14 R3 SW — Less T'racts Per Survey By Herman 04/28/2006
— Balance 130,55 Acres — 10-021-012-00; and

Parcel # -10-10-27-306-003: Pt SW/1 527 T14N RIW As Dcese By Survey By Herman 04/28/06
~ Balancc 12.31 Acres,
atl located in Mercer Township, Mercer County, lilincis, and containing
approximately 238.68 Acres,

Parcel # - 10-10-28-200-006: S28 T14 RINE - Less S 337.67 of N 612.97' of W 516" of N U
NE % - Less 2.43 Acres to Rd Row Per Plat 453-579 and Less Tract As Desc Doc
352415 — Balance 132.57 Acres — 10-022-001-00; located in Mercer Township,
Mercer County, Illinois, and containing approximately 132.57 Acres.

Parcel #- 10-10-18-300-002: S18 TI4 R3 E 4 SW % - Less 3.41 A for Hwy Garage & Less
A5 A for Dog Pound — 10-015-009-00; located in Mercer Township, Mercer County,
1linois, and containing approximately 73 Acres.

Parcel # - 09-00-03-300-003: 83 T14 R4 8 % SW — Less Pi As Desc Doc 352679 — 09-002-003-
00; located in Millersburg Township, Mercer County, Illinois, #nd containing
approximately 58.14 Acres.
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EXHIBIT C
Current Debt

As of Deccmber 31, 2009

USDA Loan* $805,000.00
CT Note Payable $53,243.00
IT Note Payable $437,774.00
Equipment Note Payable $2,600.00

Various Revolving Notes Payable  $1,339,466.00

Total Debt Obligations $2.638.083.00

* Denotes Prentises Debt

Renovalign Debt
Contstruction costs
Site Survey/Soil Investigation $8,352.00
Site Preparation £500,940.00
New Construction Contracts $983,104.00
Modcmization £7,317,030.00
Subtotal $8,809,426.00
FF&E
Mavable or other Equip. $150,000.00
Owners Costs
Preplanning costs $156,381.00
A/E services $£710,293.00
Consuiting and other fees $475,844.00
Bond issue expensc $222,875.00
Net interest expense $560,000.00
Subtotal $2,125,393.00
Contingency
General Contingency $641 822,00
Total Construction Costs $11.726,641.00
27
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EXHIBITD

Form of Foundation Consent

CONSENT AND ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

This CONSENT ANTY ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE {this “Cousent™), as executed by the undersigned, is
dated this day of November, 2010,

RECITALS

A, MERCER COUNTY HOSPITAL (“MCH™ and MERCER FOUNDATION FOR HEALTH
{“Landlord™} are parties to that cerntain lease, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibjt A (the
“Lease™), of the property described on Exhibii B atlached hercto and the improvements located
thereon (cotlectively, the “Leased Premises™).

B. MCH desires 1o grant to GENESIS HEALTH SYSTEM, an [ows nonprofit corporation, ("Genesis™}
the option to assume cerlain assets and liabilities of MCH, including the rights and obligations of
MCH under the Lease (the “Optlon™), as set forth in a certain Option Agreement to be entered into by
and between MCH and Genesis (the “QOption Agreement™,

C. MCH and Genesis have requested that Landlord {i) consent 1o such future assignment by MCH to
Genesis of its right, title and interest in and to the Lease in the cvent Genesis exercises the Option, (i)
deliver an estoppel certificate to MCH and Genesis, and (iii) make certain other covenants and
agreements regarding the Lease, and Landlord hag agreed to such request on the terms and cenditions
hereinafier set forth.

AGREEMENTS

In consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy
ol which aie hereby conclusively acknowledged, Landlord hereby covenants, certifies and agrecs as
follows:

1. Consent 1o Assipnment. Landlord hersby irrevocably conscnts and agrees to the future
assigmament by MCH to Genesis ils successors or assigns, of the right, title and interest of MCH in
and to the leasc (and any exiensions, modifications or replacements thercof) and the Leused
Premises, {the “Assignment”; the daic on which the Assignment occurs, the “Assignment
Date™).

2. Certifications. The undersigned, as Landlord under the Lease, hereby represents, warrants and
certifics to Genesis that the following statements arc true, correct and complete as of the date
hereof:

a. A tree, correct and complete copy of the Lease, including all amendments, supplements, and
modifications thereto and any rencwals, exicnsions, or replacement leases thereof, is attached
herewo as Exhibit A,

b. The Leasc is a valid Lease, is in full force and cffect, represents the entire agreement between
the parties and is binding and enforceable in accordance with its tcrms.

c. As of the date hereof, ncither the Landlord nor MCH is in default in the performance or
observance of any of its obligations under the Lease, and no event hes occurred and no
condition exists that, with the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both, would
constitute a defauit under the terms of the Lease.
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d. Landiord certifies thal the Leasc is assignable to Genesis and that upen the assignment to
Genesis, the Lease will continue to be legal, valid, binding and enforceable against Landlord
on identical terms [oilowing the Assignment Date.

¢ Landlord certifies that {1 has sent no notices of termination to MCH nor docs Landlerd intend
to cance! or terminate the Lease.

f. Landlord has reccived no notice from any governmental authority respecting a condemnation
or threatened condemnation of all or any portion of the Leased Premises.

g. Landlord certifies that there have been no disputes, oral agreements, temporary waivers, or
forbearances in ¢ffect as to the Lease, nor has Landlord or, to the best of Landlord's
knowledge, any other party 1o the Lease repudiated any provision thereof.

h. Landiord represents, warrauts and acknowledges that Landlord has full power and authority
to execute and deliver this Consenl as the lessor under the Leasc.

3. Covenants.

a. From the date of this Consent until the Assignment Date, (i) Landlord shall not amend,
modify, supplement, replace, revise ar renew the Lease, or consent e any of the foregoing,
without the prior written consent of Genesis, and (ii) Landlord shail promptly notify Genesis
of any default under the Lease and give Genesis the opportunity to cure any such defeult,
though Genesis shall be under no obligation to cure any such defauit.

b. Landlord shall continue 1o allow MCH to occupy the Leased Premises as lessee under the
Lease until November 1, 2015, whether by holdaver, extension or replacement of the Leasc,
with the consent of Genesis as provided in subsection {a) above,

4, Miscellaneous.

a. Nothing coniained in this Consent shall be deemed to supersede any of the obligations,
agrecments, covenants or warranties of MCH or Genesis contained in the Option Agreement.

b. This Consent may not be modified or revoked except by an agreement in writing signed by
Landlord Gencsis, or their respective sucoessors or assigns, and identified as an amendment
to this Consent.

¢. This Consent shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
TRlinois without giving effect 1o eny choice or conflict of law provision or rule that would
cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Illincis.

d. Any term or provision of this Consent that is invalid or unenforceable in any situation in any
jurisdiction shall not affect lhe validity or enforccability of the remaining lerms and
provisions hereof or the validity or enforceability of the offending term or provisivn in any
other situalion or in any other jurisdiction.

e, Facsimile signature hercto shall have the same foree and effcet as an original signature. The
parties agree that this Consent shall be legally binding upon the electronic transmission,
including by facsimile or email of .pdf files, by each party of a signed signature page to this
Consent to the other party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has cxccuted this Consent as of the date first written above,
MERCER FOUNDATION FOR HEALTH

By:
Its:
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EXHIBIT A TO CONSENT AND ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

Lease Aprecment

[See attached]

Foundstion Consent for Lease.doex
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LEASE AGREEMENT
PREAMBLE ” b
This Lease Agteement is made and entered into this //  day of-Qctober, 2010, at
Aledo, Illinois, by and between the MERCER FOUNDATION FOR HEALTH, a not-for profit
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Illinois with its principal place of business
at Aledo, IL hereinafter called “Lessor”, and MERCER COUNTY HOSPITAL, an entity
corporate and politic of the State of Hlinois, with its principal place of business at Aledo,

Ill'inois, hereinafter called “Lessee”.

ARTICLE 1. DEMISE, DESCRIPTION, USE, TERM AND RENT
Section 1.01; Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from
Lessor that certain property, hereinafter called the “leased premises”, situated in the City of
Aledo, Mercer County, Illinois, and described as follows:

The office building constructed by the Lessor upon the following
described real estate, to wit: Lot 2 in Mercer County Hospital Subdivision
to the City of Aledo and also described as follows: a part of the East half
of Lot 3 in Subdivision of part of the West Half of the Southwest Quarter
of Sectionl7, Township 14 North, Range 3 West of the Fourth Principal
Meridian, and part of Lot 1 in Sproston’s Subdivision, and part of the
North 20 feet of NW 3™ Street that was vacated as shown in Plat Book
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2

505, page 477 wit the Mercer County Recorder of Deed’s Office, and all
in the City of Aledo, Mercer County, Iliinois, being more particularly
bounded and described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast comer of said Lot 3, thence South 00° 15
33" West, a distance of 25.48 feet to the South line of said portion of
vacated NW 3% Street, thence North 89° 44' 48" West along the South
line of said portion of vacated NW 3 Street, a distance of 391.00 feet to
the point of beginning, thence North 00° 15' 33" East, a distance of
362.18 feet, thence South 67° 33' 12" East, a distance of 38.35 feet,
thence North 21° 53' 56" East, a distance of 173.00 fee, thence North 67°
33' 12" West, a distance of 181.00 feet, thence South 21° 53' 56" West,
a distance of 173.00 feet, thence South 67° 33' 12" East, a distance of
115.65 feet, thence South 00° 15' 33" West, a distance of 372.38 feet to
a point on the South Line of said portion of vacated NW 3™ St, a distance
of 25.00 feet to the point of beginning and containing 0.930 acres, more
or less.

The Lessee shail have the exclusive use of the office area built upon the above described
premises and shall have the non-exclusive use of the common areas of said building, including
but not limited to public restrooms, reception areas, entry ways, mechanical rooms and janitorial
rooms. In addition, the Lessce shall also have the non-exclusive use of the parking areas and
access areas adjoining and servicing the bﬁilding built upon the above described real estate.

The Lessee shall only use the above described premises for commercial office space
incident to the provision of medical services and in conjunction with the usual and customary
services provided to the public by the Lessee.

The term of this lease shall be 5 years commencing upon the first day of November 2010.
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ARTICLE 2. RENT
Rent Payments
Section 2.01: Lessee shall make its rent payments to the Lessor at P.O.
Box 52, Aledo, Illinois 61231, or at such other place as the Lessor shall designate from time to
time in writing, as rent for thé leased premises, said rent being the sum of $72,600.00 per year
and payable in advance in monthly installments of $6,050.00 each commencing on the 1% day
of November 2010, which is when the Lessee took possession of the above demised premises
under the terms of the lease. Such rent shall be payable without prior demand and without any

set-off or deduction whatsoever, except as expressly provided herein.

Taxes and Charges
A.  The Lessor anticipates that there will be no real ésfate taxes asséssed
against the above described demised premises because the Lessor believes it to be exempt form
such real estate taxes. In the event of the assessment of any such taxes, these taxes shall be paid

as more Tully described in Article 3 herein.

Fire Insurance Premiums
B.  All extended coverage and fire insurance premiums on the leased premises due

during the term of this lease shall be paid as more fully described in Article 4 herein.
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Water and Sewage Charges

C.  All metered water connecting to said premises and all sewer rental or
charges for use of sewers, sewage system, and sewage treatiment works servicing the .
leased premises shall be paid as more fully described in Article 5 herein.

N T "Mainteniaricé

D.  Allmaintenance charges shall be paid as more fully described in Aﬁicle

7 herein,
Effect of Default In Rent And Other Payments

Section 2.04: If Lessee defaults in the payment of any instaliment of rent
herennder, such instaliment shall bear interest at the rate of Nine per cent (9%) per
amm from the day it is due until actually paid. In like manner, all other obligations,
benefits and monies which may become due to Lessor from Lessee under the terms
hereof or which are paid by Lessar bcbause of Lessee's default hereunder, shall bear
interest at the rate of Nine per cent (9%) per aunuin from the due date unti} paid, or,
in the case of sums paid by Lessor because of Lessee's default hereuncier, from the

date such payments are made by Lessor until the date Lessor is reimbursed by Lessee

therefor.
' ARTICLE 3. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS
Payment By Lessee
Section 3.01: In addition to the foregomg rental sums, Lessee shalf, as

further consideration for this lease, pay and discharge all taxes, general and special
assessments, and other charges of every description which during the term of this
lease may be levied on or aésessed against the leased premises and all interests therein
and all improvements and other property thereon, whether belonging to Lessor or o

Lessee, or for which either of them may become liable m relation thereto.
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Hold Harmless Clause
Section 3.02: Lessee agrees to and shall protect and hold hannless Lessor
and the leased premises fram liability for any and all such taxes, assessments, and
charges, together with any Interest, penaities or other sums thereby imposed, and from
" iy sale of other proceeding to enforce payrient theresf, -
Time of Payment |
Section 3.03 :. ' Lessee agrees to and shall pay all such taxes, assessments, -
and charges prior to the time that penalty will attach for non-payment. The Lessee
shall provide the Lessor with a copy of the "paid” receith for all such taxes paid.
Contesting Levy, Assessment, Or Charge
Section 3.04: Lessee shall have the privilege, acting in the name of the
Lessof; before delinquency oceurs, of protesting, contesting, objection to, or opposing
the legality or amount of any such taxes, assessments, or public charges to be paid by
Lessee hereunder. If Lessee shall, in good faith, deem. the same to be illegal or
excessive, and in the event of any such cantest, it may to the extent ﬁrovided by law
defer payment of any such tax, assessment, fee, or charge so long as the legality or the
amount thereof is so contested in good faith; provided, however, that if at any time
payment of the whole or any pari thereof shall become necessary in order to prevent
‘the termination, by sale or otherwise, of the right of redemption of any property
affected thereby, or fo prevent eviction of either Lessor or Lessee because of
nonpayment thereof, Lessee shall pay the same in order fo prevent such termination
of the right of rcdémption or such eviction. Any such contest, whether before or after
payment may be made in the name of Lessor oF Lessee, or both, as Lessee may
deterinine. Any such contest shall be at the sole cost and expense of Lessee. Each

refund of any tax, assessment, feet or charge so contested shail be paid to Lessee.
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Lessor shall not, without the prior approval of the Lessee, compromise, or make any
disposition of any contest, or discontinue or withdraw any contest, or accept any
refund or ‘other adjustment, or credit of or from any such tax or assessment as a result ‘
of any ¢ontest. _

R ARTICLE 4. INSURANCE

Lessor's Obligation '

Section 4.01; Lessor shall be under no abligation to procure any insurance
upon the demised premises or the improvements located thereon. The Lessor's interest
in the demised premuses and the improvements located thereon shall be hls;urt?d by and
paid for by the Lessee as hereinafier set forth. Lessor shall be responsible for all
builder's risk insurance and risk of loss or liability to the demised premises or
improvements located thereon up to the actual date of posseésidn of the demised
premises by the Lessee.

Lessee's Obligation

Section 4.02: Lessee agrees to and shall upon‘taking possession of the
demised premises secure from a good and responsible company or companies doing
insurance business in the State of lllinots and maintain during the entire term of this
lease, the following insurance coverage:

A.  Public hability insurance In the minimum amownt of $1,000,000.00 for
loss from any one aceident or $1,000,000.00 m the aggregate for all accidents
resulting in bodily injury to or death of persons, and casualty loss insurance in the
amount of the reasonable replacement vajue of the buildings, improvements, fixtures
located upon the demised premises.

B.  Fire and extended coverage msurance on Lessee's fixtures, goods wares,
and merchandise in or on the leased premises, with coverage in an amount of not less

than the reasonable replacement value of such fixtures, goods, wares and merchandise.
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C. . The Lessee shali within a reasonable time after taking possession of the
demised premise provide the Lessor with certificates of insurance showing the Lessor
to be adequately insured as required by this lease and the Lessee shall promptly
provide the Lessor with copies of all renewal certificates thereof.

Section 4.03; Lessee agrees that the Lessor shall be named as an additional
insured on the aforementioned policies of insurance insuring the Lessor against -
liability loss and insuring the Lessor's building, improvements and fixtures against
casualty loss. |

Protection Against Cancellation

Section 4.04; Proof imust be given by the Lessee along with the provisions
of Section 4.02 that each of the policies to be provided by the Lessee expressly
provide that the policy shall not be cancelled or altered without thirty (30) days' prior
written notice to both the Lessee and the Lessoar.

Failure To Secure

Section 4.05: If the Lessee fails to secure or maintain the required
foregoing insuraﬁce, the Lessor shall be permitted fo obtain such nsurance in the
Lessee's name or as the agent of the Lessee and shall be compensated by the Lessee
for the cost of the insurance premiwms. The Lessee shall pay the Lessor interest on
paid insurance premiwns at the rate of Nine per cent (9%) per annwin computed from
the date such premiumns were paid by the Lessor.

Proceeds

Section4.06: - Proceeds from any fire or casualty policy or policies

'regardmg property owned by the Lessor shall be payable jointiy to the Lessee and the

Lessor.” Such proceeds shall be used to make repairs as provided below. Proceeds

ATTACHMENT 5, PAGE 38

95




8

- from any fire or casualty policy or policies regarding proﬁerty owned solely by the
Lessee shall be payable fo the Lessee.
Fire Aud Casualty Damége
Section 4.07; - If the building or other inprovernents on the leased premises
should be damaged or destroyed by fire, fiood, or other casualfy, Lessee shall give'
ummediate written notice thereof to Lessor,
Total Destruction
A.  Hfthe building on the leased premises should be totally destroyed by fire,
fload, or other casualty, or if it should be so damaged tha.t rebuilding or repairs cannot
reasonably be completed within Ninety (90) working days from the date of written
notification by Lessee to Lessor of the occurrence of the damage, this lease shall
terminate and rent shall be abated for the unexpired portioh of this lease, effective as
of the date of said written notification. In such case, all insurance proceeds for the
building and Lessor's fixtures shall become the property of the Lessor. |
Parftal Damage
B.  [f the building or other iinprovements on the leased premises should be
damaged by fire, fiood, or other casualty, but not to such an extent that rebuilding or
repairs cannot reasonably be completed within Ninety (30) working days from the
date of wriften notification by Lessee to Lessor of the occwrence of the damage, this
lease shall not terminate, but Lessor and Lessee shall, if the casualty has occurred
ﬁrior to the final Ninety (90) days of the lease tenn, proceed forthwith to rebuild or-
repair such building and other improvements to substantially the same condition in
which they existed prior to such damage using the proceeds from the insurauce
‘coveragé. If the casualty occurs during the final Ninety (90) days of the lease tenm,

Lessor and Lessee shall not be required to but may rebuild or repair such damage. If
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the building and other improvements are to be rebuiit or repaired and are untenantable
in whole or in part following such damage, the rent payable hereunder during the
period in which they are untenantable shall be adjusted equitably. In the event that
Lessor and Lessee should fail to complete such rebuilding or repairs within Ninety
(90} working days Troifi the date of written notification by Lessee to Lessor of the
occurrence of the damage, Lessee may at its option terminate this lease by written
notificatioﬁ at such time to Lessor, whereupon all rights and obligations hereunder -
shall cease. | |

ARTICLE 5. UTILITIES
Lessee's Obligation

Section 5,01: Lessee shall during the term hereof pay all charges for
telephone, gas, electricity, sewage, and water used in or on the leased premises and
for the removal of rubbish therefrom immediately on becoming due and shall hold
Lessor harmless from any liability therefor. Lessee further agrees to pay all charges
for repairs to water meters on the leased premises whether necessitated by ordinary
wear and tear, temperature extremes, accident, or any other causes. Such payment
shall be made immediately on becoming due. |

ARTICLE 6. WASTE AND NUISANCE

Section 6.01: Lessee shall not commit, or suffer to be committed, any
waste on the leased premises, nor shall it maintain, commit, or permit the maintenance
or comynission of any nuisance on the leased premises or use the leased premuises for
any unlawful purpose. .

ARTICLE 7. REPAIRS
Lessee's Duty To Repair And Maintain

Section 7.01; Lessee agrees. to keep the leased premises in good order and

repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted. Lessee further agrees to keep the leased
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premises clean, and to repair or replace all broken or damaged doors, windows;
plunbing fixtures and pipes, floors, stairways, railings, or other portions of the leased
premises, iﬁcluﬁing damage caused by moisture from broken windows and plumbing'
fixtures u‘zhich Lessee is required to repair. The Lessee shall be responsible for all
"day-to-day” ‘iidiiteiiatice and tepairs. “The ‘Lessor 'shall be responsible for all
. structural repairs and other repairs other than "day-to-day" maintenance and repairs.
"Day-to-day" maintenance and repairs shall be deemed any maiutenance or repatrs -
reasonably calculated to cost less than $1,000.00. In addition, the Lessee also agrees
to maintain the curbs and pavements in and about the leased premises, together withi
facilities appurtenant thereto, including entryways and awnings, under the same terms
as above set forth for the leased premises. Lessee shall keep the said pavements and
appurtenances free of ice and snow and trash and expressly agrees to assume sole
libility for accidents alleged to have been caused by their defective condition.
Lessor's Duty To Repair and Maintain

Section 7.02; To the extent that the cost to repair or maintan -is

reasonably calculated fo cost more than $1,000.00, Lessor shall repair and maintain
the leased premises so that the pfelﬁises will have:

A.  Effective waterproofing and weather protection of roof and exterior
walls, includmg unbroken windows aud doors.

B.  Plumbing facilities that conform to applicable law in effect at the time .
of installation, maintained in good working order.

C. A water supply approved under applicable faw which is hot and cold
running water, furnished to appropriate fixturés and connected to a sewage disposal
system under applicable law. |

D.  Heating facilities which conform with applicable law at the time of
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installation, maintained in 'good working order.

E.  Electrical lighting, with wiring and electrical equipment which conform.
with applicable law at the time of installation, maintained in good working order.

F.  Buildiug, grounds, and appurtenances at the time of the commencement |
- 'of thi lease in every part clean, sanitary;-and free from all accumulations of .debms,
filth, rubbish, garbage, rodents, and vermin, and all areas under confro! of Lessor
thereafter kept in every part clean, sanitary and free from all accumulations of debris,
filth, rubbish, garbage, rodents, and vermin.

(. An adequate number of appfopriate receptacles for garbage and rubbish,
in clean condition and good repair at the time of the commencement of the lease, with
Lessor providing appropriate serviceable recepiacles thereafter, and being responsible
 for the clean condition and good repair of such receptacles under its control.

H. Floors, stairways, and railings maintained in good repair.

Lessee's Duties Correlative to Lessor's Obligations

Section 7.03; No duty on the part of the Lessor shall arise with respect to
maintenance or repairs imder Sections 7.01 and 7.02 of this iease if Lessee is in
substantial violation of any one or more of the following affirmative obligations:

A, To keep that portion of the leased premises which Lessee cccupies and
uses as clean and sanitary as the condition of the premises pennits.

B.  To dispose from the leased premises all rubbish, garbage, and other
waste, i1 a clean and sanitary manner.

C.  Touse and operate properly all eiectrical, gas and plumbing fixtures and
keep them as clean and sanitary as their condition permits.

D.  Not o permit any person on the preinises with Lessee's permission

willfully or wantonly to destroy, deface, damage, impair or remove any part of the
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leased premises or the facilities, equipment, or appurtenances thereto.

Lessee’s Right To Repair For Lessor Or Vacate

Section 7.04: -1f, within a reasonable time after Lessee’s notice to Lessor
of repairs or maintenance which Lessor has a duty to repair, Lessor neglects to make repairs,
Lessee may repari the same itself aﬁd then bill the Lessor for such repaifs. Lessor shall
reimburse Lessee for all such payments within 30 days of billing from the Lessee. Further,
Lessee shall be entitled to interest on all such payments at the rate of Nine percent (9%) per
anpum {rom the date paid until paid by the Lessor.

ARTICLE 8. ALTERATIONS, IMPROVEMENTS, AND FIXTURES

Section 8.01- All fixtures erected in or attached to the premises by the Lessee and
purchased solely by the Lessee may be removed by the Lessee at the termination fo this lease
provided:

a. The Lessee shall not then be in default in the performance of
any of its agreements herein;
b. That such-removable fixture shall not permanently injure the building or
_ improvements; and
. The removal shall be made before the expiration of this lease.
ARTICLE 9. QUIET POSSESSION
Covenant Of Quiet Possession
Scct_ion 9.01; Iessor shall, on the commencement date of the term of this leasc

herein above set forth, place Lessee in quiet possession of the leased premises and shall secure
it in the quiet possession thereof against all persons claiming the same during the entire lease

term and each extension thereof;

Covenant Regarding Encumbrances

Section 9.02: Lessor covenants that the leased premises are subject to a first
" mortgage loan to the United States of America, acting through the Farm Services Agency,
f/k/a Farmers Home Administration, Rural Development. Lessor is not in default or
arrcars in the making of any payment or the performances of any obligation relating to the

mortgage on the leased premises with the Farm Services Agency.
ATTACHMENT 5, PAGE 43

60




13
ARTICLE 10. TERMINATION OR EXTENSION
First Right To Rencw Or Extend
Section 10.01: Lessee is hereby granted and shall, if not at that time in
default under this lease, have the first right to renew or extend the term of htis lease for an
additional period of time on a year to year basis, the terms of the renewal or extension to be

renegotiated in good faith by the parties.

. Holding Over After Expiration of Lease by Lessee
Section 10.02: If the Lessee shall hold over after the expiration of the
term hereby created, with the consent of the Lessor, it shall be deemed a renewal of this Iease,
and all of the condidions and agreements herein containedc for the term of one year and so on
from year to year until the Lease is terminatied by either party given to the other not less than

180 days notice of termination prior to the end of any term.

ARTICLE 11. SURRENDER OF PREMISES
Notice _
Scction 11.01: Lessee shall, at fease 180 days prior to expiration of the term
or any extended term hereof, give to Lessor a written notice of its intention to surrender the
lcased premises on that date but nothing contained herein shall be construed as an extension of

hte terin hereof or as a consent of Lessor to any holding over by Lessee.
Removal Of Property

Section 11.02: Lessee shall, without demand therefor and at its own cost
and expense within sixty (60} days after expiration or earlier tcrmiﬁation of hte term hereof or
of any extended térms hereof, remove all property purchased soley by Lessee and belonging to
it. Al alteratioﬁs, additions, or inprovements and fixtures which were installed as a reslut of
the remodeling done to the leased premises in 2010 shall remain. Any other property or fixtures
owned soley by Lessee which by the terms hereof it is permiteed to remove shall be removed as

provided above. Lesse shall repari all dameage to the Jeased premises caused by such removal;
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and restore the leased premises to the condition it was _ i prior to the mstaliation
of the property so removed. Any property not so removed shall be deemed to have
been abandoned by Lessee and may be retained or disposed of by Lessor.
' Surrender

‘Section 11.03:  "Lessee agrees to and shall, ‘on 'éxpirgfjg11 or earlier:
termunation of the term hereof or of any extended tenn hereof, promptly swrender
. and deliver the leased premises to Lessor without demand therefor n good conditfon, :
ordinary wear and tear and damage by the elements, fire, or act of God, or by other
causes beyond the reasonable contro} of Lessee eﬁceptéd. |

ARTICLE 12. CONDEMNATION
All Of Premises

Section 12.01:  If during the term of this lease or any extension or renewal
thereof, all of the leased premises should be taken for ﬁny public or quasi-public use
under any law, ordinance, or regulation or by nght of eminent domain, or should be
sold to the condemning authority under threal of condemnation, this Jease shall
tcnninaté and the rent shall be z_abated during the unexpired portion of tlus lease,
effective as of the date of the taking of said premises by the condemning authority.

Partial Condemnation

Section 12.02: If1ess than all of the leased premises shall be taken for any
public or guasi-public use under any. law, ordinance, or regulation or by nght of
eminent domain, or should be sold to the condenmuming authority under threat of
c0ndemﬁati0n, this lease shall not tenminate but Lessor shall forthwith at its sole
expense, restore and reconstruct the building and other improvements, situated on the
leased premises, provided such restoration and reconstructing shall make the same
‘ }easoliably tenaniable and suitable for the uses for which the premisés are leased. The

rent payable hereunder during the wnexpired portion of this lease shall be adjusted
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equitably.
Allocation Of Awards

Section 12.03:  Lessor and Lessee shall each be entitled to receive and retain

such separate awards and portions of lunp-sum awards as may be allocated to their.
“‘_ré‘spoo'ﬁ%‘"'LtﬂerestS‘iu"anyvonderrmation‘prooeedings.—Tilefennioation-‘of*t-his—leaso———-w-—‘
shall not affect the rights of the re-spootive.parties to such awards.
ARTICLE 13. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
Default By Lessee |

Section 13.01: ~  IfLessee shall allow the rent to be in arrears more than thirty
(30) days after written notice of such delinquency, or shall remain in default under any
other condition of this lease for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from
Lessor, or should any person other than Lessee secure possession of the premises, or
any part thereof, by reason of any receivership, bankruptcy proceedings, or other
operation of law-in any manner whatsoever, then Lessor may at its option, without
notice to Lessee tenmnate thas lease or m the altomatwe Lessor may re-enter and re-
take posse351on of. said premises. and remove all persons and property therefrom
without being deemed guilty of any manner of trespass, and re-let the premises or any
part thereof, for all or part of the remamnder of said term, to a party satisfactory to
Lessor, and at such monthly rental as Lessor may with reasonable diligence be able

~ ~tg-secure, -Should-Lessor be-unable to re-Jet-aflerreasonable efforts.to.do so, or should .. .
such monthly rental be less than the rental Lessee was obhgated to pay under this
lease, or any renewal thereof, plus the expense of reletting, then Lessee shall pay the
amount of such deficiency to Lessor.
Cumulative Rights And Remedies

Section 13.02; ~ All rights and remedies of Lessor and the Lessee under this
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lease shall be cumulative to them respectively,. and none shall exclude any other right
or remedy at law. Such rights and remedies may be exercised and enforced
concurrently and whenever and as often as occasion therefor arises. o

- Default By Lessor i

—Section-13:63-——If Lessor defaults-in the performarnce-of any-term,-covenant, . ..
or condition required {o be performed by it wnder this agreement, Lessee may elect
either one of the following: _

A.  Afternot less than th(rty (30) days' notice to Lessor, Lessee may remedy
such default by any necessary action, and in connectioni with such remedy may pay
expenses and employ counsel; all reasonable sums expended or obligations incurred
by Lessee i connection there with shall be paid by Lessor to Lessee on demand, and
on failure of such reimbursement, Lessee maf, in addition to any other right or.
remedy that Lessee may have, deduet the costs and expenses thereof from rent
subsequently becoming due hereunder; or

B. Elect to terminate this agreement on giving at least thirty (30) days'
nohce to Lessor of such intention, thereby termmatmg tlis agreement on the date
- designated in such notice, unless Lessor shall have cured such default prior to
expiration of the thirty (30) day peniod.

ARTICLE 14. INSPECTION BY LESSOR
. ~-8ection.}4.01; . .. . Lessee shall permit Lessor and its agents to enter into and
upon the Jeased premises at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the same
or for the purpose of maintaining or makiﬁg repairs or alterations to the building,

ARTICLE 15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE
Assignment And Subletting By Lessce

Section 15.01: Lessee shall not assign this lease nor sublet atl or any

portion of the leased premises without the prior written consent of Lessor and Lessor
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shall not arbitrarily or unreasonably withhold its consent.
Assignment By Lessor
Section 15.02:  In the event of a sale of the premises by the Lessor, the

Lessor isthen expressly given the right to assigu any or all of its interests under the
1S of this Tease. “Tn ali other cases-the Lessor-shall not assign this lease without the
prior written consent of the Lessee and the Lessee shall not arbitranly or unreasonably

withhold its consent,

ARTICLE 16, MISCELLANEOUS
Notices And Addresses .

Section 16,01;  All notices proviffed to be given under this agreement shal}
be given by regular mail, addressed to the proper party, at the following addresses:

LESSOR: Mercer County Foundation for Health
P. O.Box 52
Aledo 1. 61321

- . Mercer County Hospital

LESSEE: Aledo IL 61231

Parties Bound

Section 16.02;  This agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, admimnistrators, legal
re;jrééén;[a'tives, succéssors, and assighs wlien permitted by this agreement.
Applicable Law
Section 16.03; This agreement shall be construed under and in accordance
with the laws of the State of Illinois.
Legal Construction

Section 16.04: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this
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lease shall for any reason be held to be invalid, iilegal, or wnenforceable in any

respect, such invalidity, illegality, or uwnenforceability shall not affect any other

provision thereof and this lease shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or -

unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

Sole Agreement Of The Parfies

Section 16.05: Thus lease contains the sole agreément of the parties hereto

and supersedes any prior understanding or written or oral agreements between the
parties respecting the subject matter within it. |
Amendment

Section 16.06:  No amendment, modification, or alteration of the tenms

hereof shall be binding unless the same be in writing, dated subsequent to the date
hereof, and duly executed by the parties hereto. |
Waiver Of Default
Section 16.07: No waiver by the parties hereto of any default or breach of

any term, condition, or covenant of this lease shall be deemed to be a waiver of any
other breach of the same or any other term, condition, or covenant contained herein.
| Attorney's Fees

Section 16.08: In the event Lessor or Lessee breaches any of the terms of
this agreement whereby the party not in default employs attorneys to protect or
other party reasonable attorney's fees so meurred by such other party.

Excuse '

Section 16.09:  Neither Lessor nor Lessee shall be required to perform any

term, condition, or covenant in this lease so long as such performance is delayed or

prevented by any acts of God, strikes, lockouts, material or labor restrictions by any
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governmental authority, civil riot, floods, and any other cause not reasonably within the control
of the Lessor or Lessee and which by the exercise of due diligence Lessor or Lessee is unable,
wholly or in part, to prevent or-overcome, |
| Time of Essence
Section 16.10: Time is of the essence of this agreement.
Exculpation of Lessor

Section 16.11: If Lessor shall convey title to the demised premiscs pursuant to a
sale or exchange of property, the Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee or any immediate or remote
assignee or successor of Lessee as to any act or omission from and after such conveyance.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned Lessor and Lessee hereto execute this

agreement as of the day and year first above written.

Mercer Foundation for Health . Mercer County Hospital

By: IC LQUQ%?Q,Q/WM—-/ By: Moaupus tewn®

Vicki Palmer, President _ Maxine Henry, County Board Chairman

ATTEST: -~ el '66!‘
im\DeBlock, Secretary

PREPARED BY:
Mark A. Appleton
Attorney at Law
129 E. Main Street
Aledo IL 61231
(309) 582-5121
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EXHIBIT B TO CONSENT AND ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

Legal Description

The property on which the Clinic is located is currently being replatted. The legal description of
such property, after replatting, shall be “Lot 3 of Lots 1 and 2 of the Mercer County Hospital -
Subdivision to the City of Aledo, Mercer County, 1llinois”.

Foundation Consent [or Lessedocx
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ADDENDUM TO OPTION AGREEMENT

THIS ADDENDUM TO OPTION AGREEMENT (this “Addendum™) is made and
entered into this _@fday of [7_’@ , 2012, by and among GENESIS HEALTH SYSTEM, an
Iowa nonprofit corporation (“Genesis”), GMCM, an Illinois not for profit corporation,
(“GMCM™), MERCER COUNTY, ILLINOIS, an Illinois municipality (the “County”),
- MERCER COUNTY HOSPITAL, an unincorporated business unit of the County ("MCH")
acting under the authority of its Governing Board (the “MCH Board”); the MCH Board, MCH
and the County are collectively referred to herein as the “MCH Parties”); (Genesis, GMCM and
the MCH Parties are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the
“Parties”).

RECITALS

A, Genesis and the MCH Parties entered into an Option Agreement {the “Agreement”) in
November, 2010 pursvant to which the MCH Parties granted to Genesis an option to
acquire the assets of Mercer County Hospital (the “Hospital”) under the conditions and
pursuant to the terms set forth in the Agreement.

B. The Parties to the Agreement and this Addendum wish to address certain additional
issues and clarify other issues not fully addressed in the Agreement all as set forth herein.

C. All capitalized terms under this Addendum shail have the same meanings as set forth in
the Agreement except as otherwise may be provided under this Addendum.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, and in consideration of
the premises and the mutual covenants, representations and warranties set forth in this
Addendum, as well as other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which
are hereby acknowledged, do hereby agree to clarify, supplement and where applicable, modify

“the Agreement as follows:

1. Assignment to GMCM. Section 8.13 of the Agreement provides that the
Agreement shall be binding upon and for the benefit of the Parties provided that neither Party
shall assign-its rights or obligations under the Agreement without the prior written consent of the
other Party. Genesis has caused the formation of GMCM of which Genesis Health System, an
IHinois not for profit corporation is the sole member. In the event Genesis exercises its option,
Genesis intends to provide for the ownership of the Hospital assets and operation of the Hospital
through GMCM. The MCH Parties hereby consent to the assignment of the rights and
obligations of Genesis under the Agreement and this Addendum to GMCM provided that
GMCM assumes the obligations of Genesis under the Agreement and this Addendum. GMCM
hereby agrees 1o assume such obligations.

2. Included Assets. The Parties agree that the Included Assets are intended to
include:

Addendum to Option Agreement
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(a) financial, patient, medical staff and personnel rccords relating to the Hospital,
including, without limitation, all accounts receivable records, equipment records, medical
administrative libraries, medical records, patient billing records, documents, catalogs,
books, records, files, operating manuals and current personnel records; and

(b) electronic funds transfer accounts of the Hospital and all information necessary to
. access such accounts, including, specifically, accounts to which Medicare or other
governmental payors make electronic payments.

3. Conditions of Closing: Approval by the Illinois Health Facilities and Services
Review Board; Licensure; Medicare. The Agreement sets forth a number of conditions that
must be satisfied after the Option is exercised and before the Closing can occur, While implied
by the terms of the Agreement, the Parties wish to make clear that following the exercise of the
Option, the closing of the transaction is expressly subject to the following:

(a)  approval of any change of ownership by the Illinois Health Facilities and Services
Review Board, and any other governmental approvals or consents which may be necessary;

(b)  written confirmation from all applicable licensure agencies that upon the Closing
all licenses required by law to operate the Hospital will be transferred to, or issued or reissued in
the name of, Genesis; and

(¢}  reasonable assurance that Medicare and Medicaid certification of the Hospital for
its operation by Genesis will be effective as of the Closing and that Genesis may participate in
and receive reimbursement from such programs effective as of the Closing.

4, Closing, The Agreement provides that the Closing shall occur within ninety (90)
days of the Option Exercise Datc subject to satisfaction of the terms and conditions set forth in
the Agreement The Parties wish to make clear that the Closing will not occur until all
conditions of the Agreement have been satisfied including securing the approval of the 1llinois
Health Facilitics and Services Review Board to the change of ownership of the Hospital from the
County to Genesis or its affiliate, and any other governmental approvals or consents which may
be necessary. The Parties will exercise best efforts to close the transaction within ninety (90)
days of the Option Exercise Date, but recognize that satisfaction of all conditions may require
more than nincty (30) days and agree that the Closing Date may be extended to a date not moré
than thirty (30) days following satisfaction or waiver of all conditions of Closing.

5. Right of County to Reacquire Haspital Property. At a public hearing held on
November 20, 2010, the motion to approve the Agreement adopted by the County Board
included a provision that there be an opportunity for the Hospital to be returned to the County if
Genesis no longer decides to operate the Hospital. In satisfaction of this provision of the motion,
the MCH Parties and Genesis agree that in the event Genesis makes a decision that it will no
longer provide health care services at the Hospital, the County shall have the option to reacquire
the Hospital and its operations (the “Reacquisition Option™) under the terms set forth below:

{a) Genesis shall give the County notice of either of the following events (the
“Triggering Events”):

Addendum 1o Option Agreement
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@ Genesis has received an offer (a copy of which shall be included with the notice)
from an unrelated third party to acquirc substantially all of the assets of the
Hospital which offer is acceptable to Genesis subject to the rights of the County to
exercise its Reacquisition Option (“Third Party Offer™); or

(i1)  Genesis has determined by action of its governing board that it no longer desires to
provide health care services at the Hospital (“Action to Withdraw™).

A Triggering Event shall not include: (A) any internal reorganization or other transaction in
which Genesis Health System or an affiliate owns or controls the Hospital assets; (B) any
relocation of the Hospital to a different facility so long as such relocated facility is within fiftcen
(15) miles of the current facility; or (C) any change in the nature or level of health care services
provided at the Hospital.

(b)  The County may exercise its Reacquisition Option by providing notice to Genesis
of its intent to do so (the “Election Notice”) within forty-five (45) days of the receipt of notice of
the Triggering Event. In the event County fails to present an Election Notice within forty-five
(45) days, it shall have waived its Reacquisition Option and Genesis may take whatever action it
deems necessary to proceed with plans to sell or otherwise cease providing services at the
Hospital without further notice to the County subject to the following:

(i} In the event the Triggering Event is a Third Party Offer and Genesis has not
consummated the transaction with the third party designated in the notice of
Triggering Event within one year after said notice was delivered to the County,
the County’s Reacquisition Option shall be renewed and Genesis may not engage
in another Triggering Event without proceeding in the manner set forth in this
paragraph 4; and

(ii) In the event that the Triggering Event is an Action to Withdraw and Genesis
continues to provide health care services at the Hospital twenty-four (24) months
following the receipt of the County’s notice of the Action to Withdraw, the
County’s Reacquisition Option shall be renewed and Genesis may not engage in
another Triggering Event without proceeding in the manner set forth in (his
paragraph 4.

(c) In the event that the County exercises its Reacquisition Option and the Triggering
Event is a Third Party Offer, Genesis shall procced to transfer the assets of the Hospital to the
County and the County shall acquire the assets of the Hospital from Genesis under the terms of
the Third Party Offer.

(d) Inthe event that the County exercises its Reacquisition Option and the Triggering
Event is an Action to Withdraw, Genesis shall transfer the assets of the Hospital to the County on
such terms and conditions that the Hospital and the County may agree. In the event that Genesis
and the County aren’t able to agree, they shall mutually agree upon a third party appraiser to
value the assets of the Hospital as a going concern. If the Parties cannot agree upon an appraiser,
each shall select an appraiser who shall conduct an appraisal of the Hospital assets as a going
concern. If the lower appraisal is within 10% of the higher appraisal, the purchase price of the
assets will be the value that falls between those two appraisal estimates. In the event the
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difference of the two appraisals is greater than 10%, the two appraisers shall select a third
appraiser which third appraiser shall make a final determination of the value of the going
concern of the Hospital. The closing of the transaction shall be within one hundred twenty (120}
days upon determination of the purchase price. The purchase price shall be reduced by the value
of any liabilities of Genesis which are assumed by the County.

(&) Notwithstanding the foregoing, any changc of ownership shall be subject to the

required by Tllinois law or regulation at the time of the transaction.

6. Property Tax Exemption and Assessment Considerations. The Parties
recognize the level of uncertainty as to the availability of property tax exemptions for charitable

nonprofit organizations operating hospitals. County agfees until such time as the property tax
exemption for nonprofit hospitals and other health care facilities is clarified in the State of
Iilinois, the County agrees that it shall (i) adopt resolutions supporting its current position that
nonprofit health care facilities should be exempt from taxes by the Department of Revenue under
Tlinois law; and (ii} will not assess the Hospital for real estate tax purposes.

7.  Assumption of Liabilities. Section 2.2 of the Agreement identifies those
SpCCIﬁC liabilities of the MCH Parties which Genesis agrees to assume and which are defined as
the “Included Liabilities.” MCH Parties acknowledge that Genesis shall assume no other
liabilities of the operation of the Hospital or otherwise including obligations of the County to
fund the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund as it relates to services provided by employees
through the Closing Date. With respect to the Included Liabilities, the Parties wish to further
clarify as follows:

(8) The Agreement currently provides that among the Included Liabilities are the
Trade Payables of the MCH Parties attributable to the operations of MCH which are in existence
as of the Effective Date. The Effective Date is the date that the Agreement was first effective
and it was the Parties intention that the Trade Payables to be assumed by Genesis were those in
existence on the Closing Date rather than the Effective Date. The Parties further wish to clarify
that Trade Payables mean those liabilities of the Hospital reflected as account payables as
reflected as current Habilities of MCH on its financial statements for payment of routine services
and are not intended to include any contingent or undefined liability of the MCH.

(b) Included Liabilities include those items of Current Debt listed on Exhibit C to the
Agreement and Genesis will assume the outstanding balance of the Current Debt in existence as
of the Closing Date to the extent such debt has not been paid in full prior to the Closing Date.

(¢} Included Liabilities includes the Renovation Debt listed on Exhibit C to the
Agreement. To date the MCH parties have incurred approximately $1.6 million borrowed from
the Bank of Orion and, pursuant to the Agreement, this Renovation Debt will be assumed by
Genesis. Any additional Renovation Debt will also be assumced by Gencsis per the Agreement
and regardiess of whether additional Renovations Debt is incurred by the MCH Parties prior to
the Closing Date, Genesis covenants that it will pursue the project to which the Renovation Debt
was to intended to support and will be obligated on all indebtedness related to the project.
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(@) Included Liabilities includes any New Debt incurred by the County after the
Effective Date of the Option which has been approved by Genesis. The MCH Parties have not
incurred any New Debt as of the date of this Addendum other than Trade Payables incurred in
the ordinary course of business.

8. Assignment of Provider Apreement. The Agreement recognizes that at Closing
the MCH Parties will assign certain contracts and take other steps as may be necessary to effect

the change of ownership of the MCH assets to Genesis. The Parties wish to clarify that such
provisions including the obligation of the County, at the request of Genesis, to assign any
provider agreements the County has with Medicare, Medicaid or other third party payer and to
the extent the assignment of such provider agreements require that Genesis assume any liability
of those provider agreements which arise under such provider agreements prior fo the Closing
Date, shall remain the responsibility of the County and that the County shall reimburse Genesis
for any payments made by Genesis of such amounts.

9. Post-Closing Covenants. Section 2.3 of the Agreement identifies certain post-
closing covenants of Genesis. The Parties agree that the following will be additional post-
closing covenants of Genesis:

(a)  For a period of at least two (2) years following the Closing, Genesis will cause the
Hospital to maintain in effect a charity care policy that is not more restrictive than the policy in
effect at the Hospital during the year prior to the Closing,

(b)  For a period of at least twelve (12) months following the Closing, the current
number of beds and categories of service provided at the Hospital will not substantially change.

(c)  For a period of at least twelve (12} months following the Closing, the admissions
policies of the Hospital will not become more restrictive than the policies in effect at the Hospital
during the year prior to the Closing.

(d)  For a period of at least five (5) years following the Closing, Genesis will maintain
ownership and controi of the Hospital.

(¢)  For a period of at least two (2) years following the Closing, there will be no
reductions in employees at the Hospital as a result of the Closing, other than those typically
associated with the ongoing operations of hospitals.

10.  Material Adverse Effect. The definition of “Material Adverse Effect” in Section
7.10 of the Agreement is revised to read in its entirety as follows: “Material Adverse Effect”
means a material adverse effect or impact upon the assets, financial condition, results of
operations or business of MCH or the County (with respect to the ownership or operation of
MCH), as the case may be, taken as a whole, or the occurrence of any event reasonably likely to
result in such a material adverse effect, provided, however, that none of the following shall be
deemed in themselves, either alone or in combination, to constitute, and none of the following
shall be taken into account in determining whether there has been or wiil be, a Material Adverse
Effect: any adverse change, impact, effect, event, occurrence, state of facts or development
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attributable to, resulting from, or relating to (i) the announcement or pendency of the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement; (ii) conditions affecting the industry in which any of the Partics
participate, the U.S. economy as a whole or the capital markets in general or any of thc markets
in which MCH operates; (iii) any change in accounting requirements or principles or any change
in applicable laws, rules or regulations or the interpretation thereof; (iv) actions required to be
taken under applicable laws, rules, regulations, contracts or agreements; or (v) acts of God, fire,
natural disaster, epidemic, riot, terrorism or military action or the threat thereof.

[signature page attached)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have adopted this Addendum to Option

Agreement as of the date first set forth above.

MERCER COUNTY, ILLINOIS

By:m‘;‘zé'&ed_ﬂz%)_

Its: C ﬁd’_'/'ﬂefjﬂrb

MERCER COUNTY HOSPITAL

GENESIS HEALTH SYSTEM

By B

fp—

= 2 x
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EXERCISE OF OPTION

TO: Mercer County Hospital Mercer County, Illinois
409 N'W Ninth Avenue ¢/o Mercer County Board
Aledo, IL 61231 100 S.E. Third Street
Atin: Chairman of the Aledo, IL 61231
Governing Board Atin: Maxine Henry, Chair

WHEREAS, Genesis Health System, an Iowa nonprofit corporation (“Genesis”),
Mercer County, Hlinois, an Illinois municipality (“Mercer County”), and Mercer County
Hospital, an incorporated business unit of Mercer County acting under the authority of its
governing board, entered into an Option Agreement effective December 1, 2010 (the “ 2010
Option Agreement™) pursuant to which Genesis was granted an option to assume certain assets
and liabilitics of Mercer County Hospital under the terms and subject to the conditions set forth
therein (the “Option™); and

WHEREAS, the parties to the 2010 Option Agreement, together with GMCM, an Illinois
not for profit corporation (“GMUCM?”) entered info an Addendum to Option Agreement dated
March 6, 2012 (the “2012 Addendum™) which supplements the 2010 Option Agreement to
include, among other things, the authorization for Genesis to assign to GMCM its rights under
the 2010 Option Agreement as supplemented by the 2012 Addendum (collectively the “Option
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Genesis has assigned it rights and obligations to GMCM pursuant to an
Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated April 26, 2012, attached hereto, and GMCM
wishes to exercise the Option under the terms and subject to the conditions of the Option
Apreement.

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 3.1 of the Option Agreement, GMCM hereby
exercises, and provides this notice of its election to exercise, the Option subject to the terms and
conditions sct forth in the Option Agreement including, but not limited to the condition that the
change of ownership be approved by the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
and further subject to the following:

1. This Exercise of Option shall be effective upon the execution and delivery by
Mercer County and GSLM, an lllinois not for profit corporation, of an Asset Purchase
Agreement {the “Nursing Home APA™) providing for the sale by Mercer County to GSLM of
substantially all of the assets of Mercer County Nursing Home now operated by Mercer County,

2 The obligation of GMCM to close on the transfer of assets and assumption of
liabilities from Mercer County to GMCM under the Option Agreement (the “Closing™) is
subject to satisfaction of all conditions precedent to closc the transfer of substantially all the
assets of Mercer County Hospital Nursing Home to GSLM pursuant to the terms of the Nursing
Home APA (other than those conditions that have been permissibly waived and those conditions
to be satisfied at the closing) and it is the desire of Mercer County, Mercer County Hospital and
GMUCM that the closing of the transactions under the Option Agreement and the Nursing Home
APA occur simultaneously;
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3. This Exercise of Option may be terminated or withdrawn by GMCM in the event
the Closing shall not have taken place by December 31, 2012; and

4, In the event the transactions contemplated by the Option Agreement and
hereunder do not occur for any reason, the Option Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and Genesis or its permitted assigns may exercise its option again in accordance with the
terms of the Option Agreement.

Dated April 26, 2012
GMCM

-

Douglas P. Crofper, Director

cc:  Moercer County Courthouse
County Clerk
P.Q. Box 66
Aledo, IL 61231
Attn: Chairman, Governing Board

Mercer County State’s Attorney
100 SE Third Street

Aledo, IL 61253

Attn: State’s Attorney
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December 7, 2011

Mr, Mark Rogers

Chief Financiat Qfficer
Gencesis Health Systen
1227 L5, Rusholme Sirect
Davenpart, JA 52803

Dear Me: Rogets:
We-wish to inform ydu that Moody's Investdis Service has affirmed Genesis Health Systom's AL rating on
Seties 2010 fixed rate revenue bonds issued through the lowa Finance Authority. The rating outlock

remaing slalble,

Muoody's will mopitor this rating and reserves the right, at ins sobe discretion, to revise or withdraw this
rating al any time,

The rating as well as any other revisions or withdrawals thereol will be publicly disseininated by Moody's
theatigh the normal print ahd clectronic media and in cosponse to verbal requests to Moody's mating desk.

fo order for us to maintain the curreney of our rating, we request (hat you provide ongeing disclosure,
inctuding annual and quanierly financial and statistical information.

Shauld you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Wik, Pocms

Mark Pascaris

Yice President/Sciior Analyst
Phone: 312-706-9063

Fax: 212-298.6377

Emai): mark pascaris@moodys.com
MEP:r

ce: Mr. Williain Hendersan, Piper Jatfroy
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ADDENDUM 1
Financial Statements in Support of Fair Market Value

Using the income capitalization approach, the fair market value of Mercer County Hospital is $0
as of June 30, 2011. As reflected in the attached balance sheets and 2011 financial statements,
the Hospital experienced a net loss of $131,447 for 2011 and a net gain of $107,836 for 2010
(considering loss on sale of capital assets), which combines for a loss of approximately $24,000
for the last two years. Similarly, the Hospital experienced a net loss of $1,268,508 for 2009 and
a net loss of $702,979 for 2008, which combines for a loss of approximately $1,970,000 for 2008
and 2009. Focusing on this historical data and using the income capitalization approach
(dividing net operating income by capitalization rate) results in a fair market value of $¢ for the
Hospital as of June 30, 2011,

ADDENDUM 1, PAGE 1
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Mercer County Hospital

Statements of Revanue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Hospital
Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010
Operating revenue:; )
Net pattent service revenue $ 12,081,333 $ 12,257,810
Other revenue 421,667 413,013
Total operating revenue 12,503,000 12,670,823
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 6,515,022 5,565,586
Employee benefits 1,562,913 1,459,721
Purchased services and professional fees 2,716,133 2,423,548
Degreciation and amortization ' 421,435 415,862
Interest 83,231 105,365
Supplies and other 2,249,587 2,394,874
Total operating expenses 12,548,321 12,364,966
Income (loss) from operations (45,321) 305,857
- Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest eamings
Tax revenue
Contribution revenue
Contribution expense
Famm income, net
Loss on disposal of capital assats 186,126) (188.021)

(131,442) .7107,836

Change'in net agsats

"

12
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Mercer County Hospital

Statements of Revenue, Expensés and Ghanges In Net Assets

. .. Hospital
y Yeat Ended June 30,
208 2008
" Qperating revenue: '
Net patient service revenut $ 11334378 § 11859367
Other revenue 468,893 366,108
Totat operafing revenue 11 803282 12,085,473
Operating xpenses: .
- Salarles and wages 5,845,014 5,785 942
; . Employee benefils 1A08,903 1,337,748
5 Parchased services and professional feas 2,554,122 2374481
Depreciation and amorfization 499 7H 541,708
. Intarest w20 184,109
Supfifés it other. pd A 78155
< Tota! pperating expenses. 7 12126452
- (Loss} trom:pheeations - . {1 PEH508) ATAZBTY}
= bonoperafing revenue {gxpanse];
- Inferest eamings
Tacravense
- Conitstictive revéhue
I Coriteitution sipense
. Famyinéoms, vt
" Spe Notes fo Basic Finangial Rgtements,
g 12 A
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MERCER COUNTY HOSPITAL
Net Operating Income (Average) / Capitalization Rate = Indicated Value
4 year average of net operating income 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 is a loss.

Most recent year 2011 is a loss.

aloss< 0
NOI + Capitalization Rate = Value
30 any (12%}) $90
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Mercer County Hospital

Financial Report
June 30, 2011
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McGiadrey & Pullen, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

= McGladrey

Independant Auditor's Report

Governing Board
Mercer County Hospital
Aledo, lilinols

We have audited the accompanying basic financial stafements of Mercer County Hospital, a component
unit of Mercer County, fllinols, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, as listed In the
table of contents. Thesa financial statements are the responsibility of the Hospital's management. Gur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Mercer Foundation for Health, the discretely presented compaonent unit.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to
us, and our oplnion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Mercer Foundation for Health, is
based on the report of other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basls, evidence supporting the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements. An audit afse
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Wae beligve that our audits provide a
reasenable basis for our opinion,

In our oplnion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present falrly, in all material respects, the respective financlal position of Mercer County Hospltal,
and its discretely presented component unit, and the respective changes in the financlal position and
cash flows for the years then ended In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and on the basis of accounting described in Note 1 to basic financia!
statements, respectively, As described In Note 1, the financlal statements of Mercer Foundation for
Health were prepared on the medified cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of
accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted it the United States of America.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through @ is not a required part of the basic
financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limiled pracedures, which consisted principally of ingulries of
management regarding the methods of measuremant and presentation of the raquired supplementary
Information, However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it

Meltadroy s the brand under which RSM Mctladrey, Inc. and MeGiadroy § Pulien, LLP serve diwnts’ businoss needs. Membr of RSM International netwark, 2 network of
Thy two firens ogerate a3 separate legal entities in an altemutive practice strycrire. Irsch cdent a1 g, tazand dting fre,
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Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financlal statements that
coliectively comprise the Hospital's basic financial statements. The supplementary information on pages
36 through 41 Is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the baslc
financial statements. The supplementary information for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated In all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

whale,
/?% S, ol |t

Davenport, lowa
October 18, 2011
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Mercer County Hospital

Management's Discusslon and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2041 and 2010

Management's discussion and analysls of Mercer County Hospital's financial performance provides an
overall review of the Hospital's activities for the fiscal years ended June 3@, 2011 and 2010, The intent of
this discussion is to provide an overview of the Hospital's performance for the years and should be read
in conjunction with the Hospital's financial statements and notes theretfo.

Mercer County Hospltal operates a critical access hospital with 22 acute care beds as well as a physician
clinic located in Aledo, lllinois. Mercer County Hospital serves the cltizens of the greater Mercer County
area and particularly the residents of Aledo, (fiinols.

The financial statements also include Medical Associates Clinlc and Serenity Hospice, which are
departments of the HospHal.

Mercer Foundation for Heaith (Foundation) ts a legally separate, tax-exempt, discretely presented
component unit of Mercer County Hospital. The Foundation was formed in 1950 to promote, encourage or
faster any activity which will promote the health and weli-being of people In the Mercer County area. The
11 member Board of the Foundation is self-perpetuating and consists of cltizens of Mercer County.
Although the Hespital dees not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority
of resources, or income thereon, that the Foundation holds are contributed to the Hospital. Because these
rasources held by the Foundation have historically bean for the benefit of the Hospital, the Foundation is
considered a component unit of the Hospital and is discretely presented in the Hespital's financial
statements. Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Treasurer at

1007 NW 3™ Avenue, Aledo, lllinois 61231,

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Hospital exceeded its liabilities as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. Total net assets as of
June 30, 2011 and 2010 increased 139% and 26%, respectively, from net assets as of June 30, 2010 and
20089,

The Hospital's total assets Increased by $368,466 or 4,.8% from June 30, 2010 and by $311,881 or 4.3%
from June 30, 2009,

The Hospital's total liabilities decreased by $168,326 or 4.5% from June 30, 2010 and by $485,694 or
11.4% from June 30, 20089,

Overview of Financlal Statements

The audited financlal statements include: Balance Sheets, Statements of Revenue, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets, and Statements of Cash Flows plus the Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Qur financlal position is measured In terms of resources (assets) we own and obligations (liabilities) we
owe at a glven date. This infarmation is reported in the Balance Sheats, which reflect the Hospital's
assets in relation to its debts to bondholders, suppliers, employees and other creditors, The excess of our
assets over our liabilities is reported as Net Assets.

Information regarding the results from operations during the year is reportad in the Statements of
Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. This statement shows how much our net assets

increased or decreased during the year as a result of our operations, nonoperating activities and other
changes.
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Mercer County Hospital

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

The Statements of Cash Flows disclose the flow of cash resources into and out of the Hospital during the
year. It identifies all cash received during the year from operating activities, contributions and other
sources, and how we applled those funds {for example, payment of expenses, rapaymant of debt,

purchases of new property and equipment, additions and deletions to the investment accounts, and
transfers to related entities).

The Notes to Basic Financlal Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

Condensed Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes In Net Assets

A summary version of the Statements of Revenus, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the years
ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2008
Net patient revenue $ 12,081,000 § 12,258,000 % 11,334,000
Other operating revenue 421,000 413,000 469,000
Total operating revenue 12,602,000 12,671,000 11,803,000
Nonoperating revenue §82,000 491,000 500,000
Total revenue 13,084,000 13,162,000 12,303,000
Expenses:
Salarles, wages and benefits 7.078,000 7.026,000 7,258,000
Purchased services and professional fees 2,716,000 2,423,000 2,551,000
Supplies and other 2,250,000 2,395,000 2,623,000
Cepreciation and amortization 421,000 416,000 498 000
Interest 23,000 105,000 140,000
Total expenses 12,548,000 12,365,000 13,071,000
Change in net assets - 836,000 797,000 {768,000}
Net assets:
Beginning 3,869,000 3,072,000 3,840,000
Ending $ 4405000 § 3865000 $ 3072000
4 ADDENDUM 1, PAGE 10
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Mercer County Hospita!

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Operatlons

Year Ended June 30, 2011: Hospital operatlons during fiscal year 2011 showed a decrease in revenue
compared to prior year performance. The change in net assets for the year was approximately $536,000,
Total operating revenue decreased approximately $169,000 to $12,502,000 in 2011 from $12,671,000 in
2010, a 1.4% decrease. Inpatient acute days and associated ancillary revenue volumes increased from
the prior year, Outpatient lab volumes increased with the purchase of equipment that performs more
tests. A physical therapist was hired in the fall of 2010 increasing service and volumes. Pharmacy
volumes increased while taking advantage of the 3408 Drug Pricing Program for outpatlent meds. ED
staff received coding training and tools to ensure accurate coding in conjunction with increase emergency
volumes. However, contractual adjustments also Increased due to establishing a Medicare reserve based
on the interim cost report showing an increase in Medicare volumes and decreased operating costs. Pre-
certification procedure was established in April 2011 utllizing a designated Pre-Certification Clerk.

Operating expenses Increased 1.5% or approximately $183,000 from fiscal year 2010 from $12,365,000
to $12,548,000. Although wages increased as a result of Increased utilization of RNs and higher overtime,
the overall mix of employees in terms of their experience levels caused overall salary and wage expense
to decrease. Employee benefits increased due to recognizing IMRF underfunding obligation, Professional
fees increasad due to Home Health Audit, Anesthesia Contract, Lab/Radiology Services and external
Transcriptlon Fees. Purchased supplies decreased with better GPO pricing options. Pharmaceutical cost
decreased with utilization of the 340B drug pricing program. Interest expense decreased due to debt pay
down. Purchased assets increased which contributed to depreciation expensa increasing.

Mercer County Hospital's net result was an overall loss from operations of $45,000. This Is a decrease of
$351,000 compared to the gain from operations of $306,000 in fiscal year 2010,

Year Ended June 30, 2010: Hospital operations during fiscal year 2010 showed an Improvement
compared to prior year performance, The change in net assets for the year was $797,000, an increase of
$1,565,000. Total operating revenue Improvad $1,008,000 to $12,811,000 In 2010 from $11,803,000 In
2009, an 8.5% increase. This increase was primarily due to a strategic pricing initiative implemented

July 1, 2008 which Increased hospital wide charges an average of 12%. While outpatient volumes in
many of the facility's service lines remained consistent with prior year volumes, improvement was seen in
podiatry services, a 6% increase, physical therapy, an 11% increase, and occupationat therapy services,
a 178% increase. Discounts and Allowances decreased as percent of charges to 37.6% in 2010 from
38.4% in 2009. Charity care and bad debt adjustments decreased as Improvements to the revenue cycle
continued through the year. Nonoperating revenue Increased slightly due to increased donations from the
Mercer Foundation for Health and the Mercer County Hospital Auxiliary.

Operaling expenses decreased 5.4% or $706,000 below fiscal year 2009 from $13,071,000 to
$12,365,000. Salaries, wages and benefits decreased due to a reduction in staffing. Full time equivalents
(FTE's) for 2010 were 122.5 or 11,4 FTE's below 2009 levels. Supplies and other expense decreased
8.7% or $228,000 due to volume changes, cost reduction initlatives and the transition to Genesis Health
System purchasing contracts,

Mercer County Hospital's net result was an overall gain from operations of $308,000. This is an increase
of $1,575,000 compared to the loss from operations of $1,268,000 in fiscal year 2008,
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Mercer County Hospital

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Condensed Balance Sheets

Condensed versions of the Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2011, 2010 ang 2009 follow:

June 30,
2011 2010 2009
Assets; }
Current assets $ 3452000 $ 3234000 $ 2,801,000
Assets limited as to use, noncurrent 1,541,000 1,826,000 1,629,000
Capital assets, net 2,967,000 2,723,000 2,832,000
Other assets 52,000 61,000 70,000
Total assets $ 8012000 § 7644000 $ 7332000
LIabilities:
Current liabillties $ 3,102,000 $ 3035000 $ 2730000
Deferred rental revenue 139,000 158,000 176,000 .
Net pension obligation 108,000 44 000 -
Other postempioyment benefits 2,000 45,000 -
Estimated professiona!l liability reserves 41,000 43,000 41,000
Long-term debt 215,000 450,000 1,313,000
Tota! l1abilities $§ 3607000 $ 3775000 % 4,260,000
Net Assets:

Invested In capital assets, net of related debt $ 965,000 § 697,000 $ 394,000
Restricted:

By donor 1,09%,000 1,185,000 1,188,000
Under bond indenture 239,000 138,000 122,000
Unrestricted 2,102,000 1,849,000 1,367,000
Total net assets $ 4405000 $ 3889000 $ 3072000

June 30, 2011: Total assets increased $368,000 from fiscal year 2010 balances of $7,844,000. Current
assets increased approximately $218,000. The increase was the result of cash increasing approximately
$782,000, offset by a decrease in patient recetvables totaling appraximately $454 000, Accounts
receivable policy was reviewed in December 2010 and adjusted resulting in more prompt coliections and
quicker recognition of Charity Care. An additional employee was added to focus on patient collections,

Total liabilitles decreased $168,000 or 4.5% to $3,607,000 from 2010 balancas of $3,775,000. Accounts
payable and other accrued expenses decreased approximately $425,000 or 72.8% compared to 2010,
This decrease is a result of payments on accounts payable dong on June 30, 2011, In addition,
equipment bank loans decreased with early pay off of notes from Increased cash flow. Whils there were
decreases in accounts payable and loans, the estimated amounts due to third-party payors totaled

$383,000 as of June 30, 2011 compared to an estimated amount due from third-party payors totaling
$156,000 as of June 30, 2010.
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Mercer County Hospital

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Jurre 30, 2010; Total assets increased to §7,644,000 from fiscal year 2009 balances of $7,332,000.
Current assets increased approximately $433,000. This increase was in both net patient receivables and

estimated amounts due from third-party payors.

Total liabilities decreased $485,000 or 11.4% to $3,775,000 from 2009 balances of $4,260,000. Total
debt fell 30.9% or $507,000 to $2,026,000 from $2,833,000 as the facility continued to reduce the reliance
on operating lines of credit. Plans for the fssuance of additional debt and defeasance of existing debt are
in the preliminary planning stages. Please see the Notes to Basic Financial Statements for additional

information.

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30,

2014 2010 2008

Cash provided by (used In) operating activities $ 1083000 S 723,000 % (34,000)
Cash {used in) capital and related

financing activities (912,000} {1.278,000) {331.000)
Cash provided by non-capital financing

activities 506,000 411,000 394,000
Cash provided by investing activities 892,000 118,000 46,000

Net increase (decrease) In cash 1,569,000 (21,000 75,000

Cash;

Beginning 370,000 391,000 316,000

Ending $ 1839000 3§ 370,000 § 391,000

Year Ended Juna 30, 2011: Liquidity as measured by the change In cash increased by $1,569,000 to
$1,939,000 in 2011 from $370,000 in 2010. Cash provided changed with an increase of net revenue and
lower than anticlpated capital purchases. Aggressive collactions reduced patient accounts receivables by
$454,000. The majority of vendor invoices were received and paid before year-end, with the last payable
run on June 30" decreasing accounts payable by $461,000. An accrual was estimated for amounts owed
to Medicare, based on the Interim cast report, which increased due to third-party payors. Cash provided
by investing activities increased due to an Increase in proceeds from sale of investments, The ending

cash balance for 2011 was $1,939,000.

* Year Ended June 30, 2010: Liquidity as measured by the change in cash decreased $21,000 to
$370,000 in 2010 from $391,000 in 2009. Cash provided by operating activities increased $904,000 from
2008 balances to $870,000 in 2010. This was offset by an Increase in cash used in capital and related
financing activities as Mercer County Hospital paid off debt in excess of addittonal borrowings. Cash

provided by Investing activities increased. The ending cash balance for 2010 was $370,000.
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Mercer County Hospltal

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Capital Assets

June 30, 2011: During the year ended June 30, 2011 Telemeiry Equipment was purchased using a
HRSA Grant. A sleep lab was established in the fall of 2010, Clinic renovation was done using donations
from the Mercer County Hospital Foundation and Genesis Foundation. Hospltal renovation fees
associated with construction planning were incurred increasing Construction In Progress.

June 30, 2010: At June 30, 2010 Mercer County Hospital had $2,723,000 invested in capital assets
described in more detail in the notes to the basic financlal statements. The faciiity continued to expend
funds an the planned Hospital renovation project. During 2010, $155,000 of these costs were determined
to be not applicable to the current project plans and were expensed. Purchases of depreciable assets
totaled $209,763 during the fiscal year,

June 30,
_ 2011 2010 2008

Capital assels not being depreclated:

Land $ 44,000 $ 44000 § 44,000

Furniture and equipment 445,000 - -

Construction in process 1,292,000 1,086.000 1,083,000

Construction In process- HMS 95,000 - -
Capital assets net of depreciation:

Land improvaments 17,000 19,000 4,000

Buildings 726,000 796,000 868,000

Furniture and equlpment 648,000 778,000 833,000

Total capital assets, net $ 2967000 §$ 2723000 $ 2,832,000

Long-Term Dabt

Long-term debt consists mainly of one revenue bond tssue, described in more detalt in Note 5 to the basic
financial staterments. As of June 30, 2011 the Hospital had $425,000 in bonds outstanding versus
$620,000 at June 30, 2010, Also, as of June 30, 2011, tha Hospital had $1,578,000 in notes payable and
ravolving notes payable outstanding versus $1,406,000 as of June 30, 2010, The net decrease in long-

term debt is attributable to borrowings on the notes payable offset by the bond princlpal payments made
in 2011.

Economic Factors

Year Ended June 30, 2011; Economic challenges in the community continued over the past year
resulting in higher than expected Medicaid volumes, bad debt and charity care. Mercer County had the
highest unemployment levels in the region leading to these higher metrics.
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Mercer County Hospital

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2091 and 2010

Year Ended June 30, 2010: During 2010 Mercer County Hospital saw the benefits of the various
physician initiatives implemented over the prior four years. In addition, in 2010 the facility signed an
agreement with Genesis Health Group to assist in the management of the clinic staff and business
practice, With this partnership the service line has seen increases in visits, productivity and profit margins.
The Hospital also extended and enhanced the management agreement with Genesis Haalth System. As
part of this upgraded centract a review of the information technolegy infrastructure was conducted. A plan
was then developed to ensure Mercer County Hospltal tulfifls the qualifications of meaningful use In order
to benefit from the full Impact of the health information technology Incentives. Initiatives continue to
implement process improvements in an ongoing effort to Improve the revenue cycle.

Financlal Information Contact

The Hospital's financial statements are designed to provide a general overview of the Hospital's finances
for all those with an interest in the Hospital's finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided In this report or requests for additlonal financial information should be addressed to Mercer
County Hospital.
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Mearcer County Hospital

Balance Sheets

Hospital Component Unit {(Foundation)
June 30, December 31,
Assets 2011 2014 2010 2009
Current Assets;
Cash $ 862,031 $ 78,672 $ 865470 3 714772
Assets limited as to use of restricted,
current portian 239,349 138,330 74,513 68,646
Receivables:
Patients, less allowance for contractual

adjusiments and doubtful accounts .

2011 $1,859,540; 2010 $1,850,328 1,940,836 2,394,808 - -
Qther 64,083 88,154 - -
Property taxes 30,256 25,208 - -

Inventories 209,640 207,003 - -
Prepaid expenses and cther 106,720 104,710 - -
Estimated amounts due from
third-party payors - 196,237 - -
Total current assets 3,452,915 3,234 122 939,983 783,718
Noncurrent Assets:
Assets limited as to use or restricted:
Restricted under bond indenture 239,349 138,330 74,513 68,948
Board-designated for capital expenditures 440,982 440,524 . -
Restricted by donor 1,099,691 1,185,368 . -
1,779,922 1,764,222 74,513 68,846
Less amount regufred to meet current
obligations 239,349 138,330 74,513 68,946
1,540,573 1,625,802 - -
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 1,675,261 1,430,129 12,300 12,300
Depreciatla, net 1,391,959 1,592,817 644,265 669,307
2,967,220 2,722,948 656,565 681,607
Intangible Assets, net of accumulated
amortization 61,000 59,500 - -
Other assets 664 1,446 - -

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

$ 8012372

$

7,643,806

$ 1,596,548

012, 643, 596, $ 1,465,325

10
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Hospital

Component Unit (Foundation)

June 30, December 31,
Liabilities and Net Assets 2014 2010 2010 2009
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 1787622 % 1575723 5 26492 § 25,328
Accounts payable 92,558 389,909 - -
Accrued payroll and related expenses 744,049 846,108 - -
Other accrued expenses 65,867 184,420 - -
Deferred rental ravenue 18,396 18,396 - -
Deferred revenue for succeeding year -
taxes receivable 10,000 10,000 - -
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors 382,933 - - -
Total current liabilities 3,101,325 3,034,556 26,492 25,328
'Deferred Rental Revenue, less current portion 139,498 157,803 - -
Net Pension Obligation 107,559 43 846 - -
Other Postemployment Benefits 2,000 45,000 - -
Estimated Professional Liability Reserves 41,041 43,357 - -
Long-Term Debt, less current maturities 216,000 450,297 584,240 10,732
Total liabilities 3,606,423 3,774,748 610,732 636,060
Commitments and Contingencies (Naote 6)
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 964,698 696,926 - -
Restricted:
By donaor 1,099,591 1,185,368 - -
Under bond indenture 239,349 138,330 74,513 68,046
Unrestricted 2,102,314 1,848,533 911,303 760,319
4,405,949 3,869,157 985,816 828,265
$ 8092372 & 7643006 $ 1596548 % 1465325

11
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Mercer County Haspltal

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Hospital Comgponent Unit (Foundation)
Year Ended June 30, Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 © 2010 2008
Operating revenue:
Net patient setvice revenue $ 12,081,333 § 12,257,810 $ . $ -
Other revenue 421,667 413,013 136,668 105,302
Total operating revenue 12,503,000 12,670,823 136,668 105,302
Operating expensas:
Salaries and wages 5,515,022 5,565,596 - -
Employee benefits 1,562,913 1,458,721 - -
Purchased services and professional fees 2,716,133 2,423,548 2,615 4,703
Depreciation and amortization 421,435 415,862 25,042 25,042
Interest 83,231 105,365 28,120 29,232
Supplies and other 2,249,587 2,394,874 23,620 19,564
Total operating expenses 12,548,321 12,364,966 79,397 78,541
Income (loss) from operations ~ {45,321) 305,857 57,271 26,761
Nonoperating revenue (expanse):
Interest earnings 8,406 9,509 9,197 15,469
Tax revenue 511,224 415,760 - -
Contribution revenue 35,6800 140,186 139,707 143 940
Contribution expense - - (49,624) {162,304)
Farm income, net 113,008 124,194 - -
Loss on disposal of capital assets {86,128) {198,021) - -
' 582,113 491,718 99,280 (2,895)
Change in net assets 536,792 797,575 156,551 23,866
Net assets:
Beglnning 3,869,157 3,071,582 829,265 805,399
Ending $ 4405948 $ 3 868,157 $ 985816 & 828,265

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Mercer County Hosplital

Statements of Cash Flows

Hospilal Component Unit (Faundation)
Year Ended June 30, Year Ended Decamber 31,
2011 2010 2010 2009
Cash Flows from Qpersting Activitles:
Receipts from patients and third-pasty payors 13,114,475 3 11,735,217 - -
Payments {o suppliers {6,508,759} {4,560,121) {26,235) {24,267)
Payments to employees {6,963.376) {6,854,042) - -
Gther racelpts 445,738 438,236 136,664 105,302
Not cash provided by
oparating acthvities 1,083,078 729,390 110,433 81,035
Cash Flows from Capitel and Related Financing
Activitles:
Purchase of capital assets {837,108} {401,533} - -
Proceeds from sale of capitat assets 500 - - -
Contributions received 35,600 140,166 - .
Bomrowings on long-term debt 1,376,341 3,599,815 - -
Principat payments an long-term debt {1.399,838) {4,507.009) {25,328} (24.218)
Interest payments on long-term deht {68,106} (109,980) {28,120) {29,233)
Not cash (used In) capltal and retated
financing nctivities {812,610} {1,278,531) {53.448) {53.448)
Cash Flows from Non-Caplial Financing Activitles:
Tax callections 506,176 410,687 - -
Contributions rgcaived - - 139,707 143,940
Contributions made - - {49,624) {162,304)
Not cash providod by non-capHal
financing activities 506,176 410,697 90,082 {18.,364)
Cash Flows fram Investing Aclivities:
{Purchase of) proceeds from aale of assels
limited 85 to use or rastricted 770,266 {16,274} {6,567} {5,587}
Eamings from Investments 8,406 9,589 8,197 15468
Farm Income 113,009 124,184 - -
Not cash provided by investing
activition 891,683 117,519 3,630 9,902
incroase (decroass) In cash 1,568,327 (20.925) 180,698 18,125
Cash:
Beglnning, including cash limited as to use
2011 $200,481; 2010 $202,944 370,183 351,078 T14,7T12 695,647
Ending, including cash limlted as to use
2011 $1,076.449; 2010 $290,481 1,938,460 % 370,153 865,470 714,772
{Continved)
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Mercer County Hospita!

Statements of Cash Fiows (Continued}

Haospital Compenent Unl (Foundation)
Yaar Ended Juna 30, Yaar Endad Decamber 31,
XN 2010 2010 2008
Reconcillation of operating Income (fo3s) 1o ne! cash
provided by operating activities:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income (loss) from operafions (453217 § 305,857 H 572711 3 26,761
Adjustments to reconcile incomes {loss} from
operations (o ne! cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amoriization 424,435 415,862 25,042 25,042
Amartization of deferred rent {18,385 {18,395) . -
Interest expensa 83,231 105,365 28,120 29,232
Changes in assets and fablilties:
{Increase) decrease in;
Palient recalvables 463,972 {410,3566) . -
Other recelvebles 24071 2532 - -
Invantorias, prepald expenses and other {4,847} 67,504 - -
In¢raase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expanses {410,4248) 150,467 - -
Third-party payor seftlemants 579,170 (112,237) - -
Net cash provided by operating
activitios 1,083,078 § 729,390 $ 190,433 § 81,035
Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and
Financing Activities:
Increase (decreaso) In accounts payable refated to
constructlon in progress {94,053} § 94,053 $ N -
Loss on disposal of capital assets 88,128 198,021 - -
See Notes to Basic Financial Stalements,
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Mercer County Hospital

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of business:

Mercer County Hospital operates a critical access hosphtal with 22 acute care beds and 14 long-term
care beds as well as a physician ¢linic located in Aledo, lllingis. The Hospita! Is established under
{linois State statutes and is governed by a ten member Governing Board, The members are nominated
by the Hospital Board and approved by the Mercer County Board of Supervisors. Therefore, under
generally accepted accounting principles, the Hospital constitutes as a component unit of Mercer
County, lilinals, for financial reporting purposes. The Hospital Is a blended compenent unit for the
financial reporting purpese of Mercer County, lllingis.

The Hospital primarily earns revenue by providing inpatient, outpatient, skilled nursing and home health
care services to area residents,

The Hospital is exempt from income taxes under provisions of the Internal Revenue Code as a political
subdivision of the State of lllinois,

Mercer Foundation for Health (Foundation) is 8 legally separate, tax-exempt, discretely presented
component unit of Mercer County Hospital. The Foundation was formed in 1990 fo promote, encourage
or foster any activity which will promote the hezlth and well-being of people in the Mercer County area,

. The 11 member Board of the Foundation is self-perpetuating and consists of citizens of Mercer County.
Although the Hospltal does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the
majority of resources, or income therean, that the Foundatlon holds are contributed to the Hospital.
Because these resources held by the Foundation have historically been for the benefit of tha Hospital,
the Foundation is considered a component unit of the Hospital and is discretely presented in the
Hospital's financial statements. The Foundation has a December 31 yaar-end. Complete financlal
statemnants for the Foundatlon can be obtained from the Treasurer at 1007 NW 3™ Avenue, Aledo,
IMinois 61231.

Significant accounting policies:

Accrual basis of accounting: The accrual basls of accounting is used by the Hospltal. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when eamed and expenses are recognlzed when
the liability has been Ingurred.

Medified cash basis of accounting: The medified cash basis of accounting Is used by the Foundation,
Under the modified cash basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when received and expenses are
recognized when paid. Capital expenditures are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. This is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally acceptad accounting principles.

Accounting pronouncements: The Hospital has elected to apply all applicable Govermmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued
on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncemants conflict with or contradict GASB
Pronouncements: Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB's). The Hospital
has elected not to apply FASS guidance subsequent to November 30, 1988,
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Mercer County Hospital

Notes to Basic Financlal Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounting estimates: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilitles at the date of the financial statemsnts and the reported amounts ¢f revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Patient receivables: Patient receivables where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the
amount, are carried at a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an
estimate made for contractual adjustments or discounts provided io third-party payors.

Patient receivables due directly from the patlents are canied at the original charge for the service
provided less amounts covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for doubtful
receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Management determines
the altowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts, by historlcal experience applied to
an aging of accounts and by considering the patient's financial history, credit history and current
economic conditions. The Hospital does not charge interes{ on patient receivables. Patient receivables
are written off as bad debt expense when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously
written off are recorded as a reduction of bad debt expense when recelved, The pravision for doubtful
accounts was $739,987 and $481,384 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Receivables or payables related to estimated setfiements on various risk contracts that the Hospital
participates In are reported as third-party payor receivables or payables.

Inventaries: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.

Assels imited as to use or restricted: Assats limited as to use or restricted include assets restricted by
revenus bond ordinance, donor-restricted assets and assets set aside by the Board of Directors for
future capital improvements over which the Board retains control and may at its discretion
subsequently use for other purposes,
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Mercer County Hospital

Notes to Basic Financlal Statements

Note 1., Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital assets: Capital assets are carried at cost or fair value if donated. Assets under capital lease
obllgations are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their respective estimated useful lives,
Amortization on assets under capital [eases is included with depreciation expense on owned capital
assets. Depreciation is computed by the stralght-line method over estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Hospital:

Land improvements 5-20

Building 5-40

Furniture and equipment 5-20
Foundation:

Furniture and equipment 10

Building 39

Donations of capital assets are reported at fair value as an increase In unrestricted net assets unless
use of the asset is restricted by the donor. Monetary gifts that must be used to acquire property and
equipmant are reported as restricted net assets, The expiration of such restrictions is reported as an
increase in unrestricted net assets when the donated asset Is placed in service,

Intangible assets: Intangible assets consist of medical records purchased from a physician and a

noncompete agreement with the physiclan which are being amortized over ten years using the straight-
line method.

Other assets: Other assets include debt Issuance costs which are being amortized aver the
approximate 30-year term of the Hospital revenue bond issue using the bonds outstanding method,

Deferred rental revenue: The Hospital has entered Into an agreement with a third-party whereby the
third-party has renovated a portion of the Hospital in retum for rent forgiveness for a period of twenty
years. The renovations were completed in February 2005 for a total cost of $275,931 at which time the
amortization of the deferred rental revenue commenced. The accompanying balance sheets Include
total deferred rental revenus of $157,894 and $176,289 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Amortization of the deferred rental revenus totaling $18,395 for each of the years ended June 30, 2011

and 2010, is included in other revenue on the accompanying statements of revenue, expenses and
changes in net assets.

Net patient service revenue: Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net reaiizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors and athers for services rendered including estimated
retroactive adjustments under relmbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive
adjustments with third-party payors are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered and adjusted in future perlods as final settlements are determined. Net patient
service revenue is reported net of provisions for uncollectible accounts.
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Mercer County Hospital

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Operating income: The Hospital distinguishes operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating
itams. Operating revenue and expenses generally result from the primary purpose of the Hospital,
which is to provide medical services to the region, Other operating revenue consists of reimbursement
of expenses for operating the Board of Health programs, grants, cafeteria safes and other
miscellaneous services. Operating expensas consist of salarles and wages, employee benefits,
purchased services and professional fees, depraciation, interest and supplies and other. All revenue
and expanses not meeting these criteria are considered nonoperating.

For the Foundation, operating revenue and expenses generally result from the operations of the office
buildings. Other operating revenue consists of rental income, Operating expanses consist of purchased
services and professional fees, depreciation, interest and supplies and other, Ali revenue and
axpenses not meeting these criteria are considered nonoperating.

Tax revenue: Property taxes are recognized as assets in the period an enforceable legal ciaim to the
assets arises and are recognized as revenue in the perlod for which the taxes are levied. Property
taxes are collected by the county and remitied monthly to the Hospital and are primarily received by the
Hospital in October, November and December. Other county tax revenue is recognized as revenue
when received by the Hospital. Property taxes that are not available for current year operations are
shown as deferred revenue.

Net assets: Net asset classifications are defined as follows:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net assets consists of capital
assets, Including any restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrgwings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at
year-and, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds s not included In the
calcutation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Rather, that portlon of the debt is
included in the same net assets compenent as the unspant proceeds,

Restricted - This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net assets through
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation,

Unrestricted net assets — This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not meet the
definition of *restricted” or “Invested in capital assets, net of related debt” above.

Charity care: The Hospltal provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Hospltal does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue,

Charity care for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $398,000 and $423,000,
respectively.

Gifls, grants and bequests: Gifts, grants and bequests not designated by donors for specific purposes

are reported as nonoperating revenue regardiess of the use for which they might be designated by the
Governing Board.
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Marcer County Hospital

Notes to Basic Financlal Statements

Nota 2. Net Patient Service Revenue

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Hospital at amounts
ditferent from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party
payors follows:

Medicare: The Hospital is deslgnated as a critical access hospital. This designation provides for
inpatient and outpatient services to be reimbursed on a cost basis methodology. The Hospital Is
reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual ¢ost reports
by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal Intermediary.

The Hospital's Medicare cost reports have been finalized by the Medicare fiscal intermediary through
June 30, 2009.

Medicaid: Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicald program beneficlaries are
reimbursed under prospectively determined fee schedules,

in Cecember 2008, CMS approved State of lllinols legislation for a Medicaid Hospital Assessment
Program {Program), which is retroactive to July 1, 2008. Under the Program, a hospital receives
additional Medicaid reimbursement from the State. Total reimbursement revenue recognized by the
Hospital related to this Program during each of the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 amounted ta
approximately $288,000, which is recorded as a reduction of contractual adjustment expense. There
was no receivable as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 as all amounts applicable to those fiscal years were
received prior to those dates. As a county-owned hospital, the Hospital did not incur any assessments
refated to this Program. The Program is effective through June 2014,

In November 2010, CMS approved the State of lllinois’ one-time Medicaid stimulus payment plan to
llinois hospitals which provide Medicaid services, The amount received under this plan was based on
the amount of Medicaid services provided to patlents. Under this program, the Hospital recelved
approximately $230,000 which was recognized as a reduction of contractual adjustment expense for
the year ended June 30, 2011.

Approximately 53% and 55% of net patient service revenue is from participation In the Medicare and state
sponsored Medicaid programs for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010.

The Hospital has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance crganizations and preferred provider organizations. The basls for payment to the
Hospital under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from
established charges and prospectively determined daily rates.
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Mercer County Hospital

Notes to Basic Financilal Statements

Note 2, Net Patient Service Revenue {Continued)
Net patient service reverue is composed of the following for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Gross patient service revenue $ 20,988,800 $ 19,230,539
Less discounts, allowances and estimatad contractual
adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs 8,167,480 6,491,365
Less provislon for doubtful accounts 739,987 481,364
Net patient service revenue $ 12081333 § 12,257,810

Contractual adjustment expense for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 includes the effectof a
change in the estimate of the amount due to third-party payors. The effect of this change in estimate is a
decrease in contractual adjustment expense of approximately $58,000 and $76,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and is related to retroactive adjustments based on final
settlements of cost reports,

Note 3, Deposits and Assets Limited as to Use or Restricted
As of June 30, 2011 and 2010 the Hospital and Foundation had no investments,

Credit risk; State statutes authorize the Hospital and Foundation to make deposits and investments in
interest-hearing depository accounts in federally insured and/or state chartered banks and savings and
loan associations, or other financiat institutions as designated by ordinances, and to invest available
funds in direct obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by, the U.S. Treasury or agencles of the United
States, money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of govemment securities, and the llinois
Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool. However, the Hospltal and Foundation have no formal Investment
policy.

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Hospitat and
Foundation's deposits may not be returned to the Hospltal and Foundation. As of June 39, 2011, the
combined bank balance of the Hospital and Foundation's daposits in financial institutions totaled
$2,5608,547 of which $189,670 was subject to custodial credit risk,

Investments in farmland: As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Hospital holds approximately 58 acras of
donated farm land with a carrying value of approximately $81,000, The carrying value is based upon the
fair value of the farm at the date of the donation. No ¢hange in the camying value of this farm land has
been made since the origlnal donation was made.

The Hospital also has approximately 444 acres of donated farm land, which is held as an iwvestment by
an endowment in accordance with the original donor intent. In accordance with GASB Statement Na, 52,
Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investmants by Endowments, this farmland is recorded at its
estimated fair value. The carrying value of this farm land is approximately $1,309,000. The falr value was
estimated by management by abtaining comparable sales data for similar property from the Mercer
County Assessor's Office and by periodically obtaining independent appraisals on the land,

Farm income is reported separately from Investment income in these financial statements,
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Mercer County Hospltal

Notes to Basic Flnanqlal Statements

Note 3. Deposits and Assets Limited as to Use or Restricted {Continued)

The Hospital's carrying values of cash deposits and assets limited as to use or restricted are as follows:

2011 2010
Carrying value:
Petty cash $ 1460 § 1,165
Checking account deposits 1,074,989 289,316
Certificates of deposit 175,075 162,984
Investments in farmland 1,380,429 1,390,429

§ 26419853 § 1843894

The Hospital's cash, deposits and assets limited as to use or restricted are included in the following
balance sheet captions:;

2011 2010
Cash 3 862.031 5 79,672
Assets limited as to use or restricted 1,779,922 1,764,222

$ 2641953 $ 1843804

The Foundation's carrying values of checking account deposlts are $935,983 and $783,718 as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respactively,

The Foundation's cash, deposits and assets limited as to use or restricted are included in the following
balance sheet captions;

2010 2008
Cash $ 865470 3% 714,772
Assets limited as to use or restricted 74,513 68,946

$ 939983 § 783718
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Mercer County Hospital

Notes to Basic Financlal Statements

Note 4. Capital Assets
Capital assets activity is as follows:

Hosphal
Transfers
June 30, and June 30,
2010 Additions Disposals 2011
Capital assels not belng depreciated:
Land : s 43583 % - $ - $ 43,583
Furnlture and equipment - 144,900 - 144,900
Construction in process 1,086,546 360,719 {155,499) 1,201,766
Construction in process- HMS - 138,424 (43.412) 95,012
Tatal capital azsets
nat baing doprociated 1,130,129 644,043 {188,911} 1,575,261
Capitat assets being depreciated:
Land Improvemenis 24,966 " - 24,966
Bulding 3,828,569 2.872 - 3,832,441
Fumiture and equipment 4,294,187 98,138 25,785 4,586,110
Total capltal assots
belng depreciatad 8,248,722 88,010 95,785 8,443,517
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Imprevements 8,456 1,523 - 7.479
Buitding 3,032,749 72,315 - 3,106,064
Fumiiure and equipment 3,615,700 338,315 {16,500} 3,837,515
Total accumulated depreciation 6,655,905 412,153 {16,500) 7.051,558
Total capltat assets boing dapreciated, net 1,592,817 {313,143) 112,285 1,394,859
Capital assets, nat $ 27220946 § 330800 § {s6528) $ 2,067,220

Construction in process as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 conslsts primarily of architectural fees incurred
related to planned renovations to the Hospital's facilities, The Hospital has not entered into any formal
commitments related to this project.

Foundation
Transfers
December 31, and Dacember 31,
2008 Addlfions Disposzls 2010
Capltal assats not belng deprociated, land $ 12300 3% - % - % 12,300
Capital assats being depreciated:
Fumlture and equipment 15,248 - - 15,246
Buliding 976,662 - - 076,662
Tatal capial agssots
belng deprociated £91,508 - - 91,908
Leas accumutated depreciation for:
Fumlture and equipment 15,247 - - 15.247
Buliding ) 307.354 25,042 - 332,306
Total accumulatod dopreclation 322 601 25,042 - 347,643
Tota! capital assets being depreciated, net 669,307 {25,042) - 544,265
Capftal as=ots, not $ 681607 S {25042) & - 3 856 565
22
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Note 4,

Capltal assets not being depreclated:
Land
Construction in process
Total capitsl asgets
not being depreciated

Capltal assets befing depreciated:
Land improvements
Building
Fumiture and equipment
Total capital zssets
belng depreciated

Less acocumulated depreciation for;
Land Improvamants
Building
Fumfture and equipment

Total sccumulatod depreciation

Total capital assels being depraciated, net
Caplital assots, not

Capltzl assets not being deprediated, lang

Capltal assets belng depreciated:
Fumiture and equipment
Bullding

Total capital assets
balng dopreciated

Less sccumulated depreciation for,
Furniture and equipment
Buliding

Total accurmnulated depreclation

Total capital asests being depreciated, net
Capftal assets, net

Capital Assets {Continued)}

Haspital
Transfars
June 30, and June 30,

2009 Additions Disposa's 2010
§ 43,503 - H - 3 43,583
1,083,353 285,823 {262,630) 1,086,546
1,126,935 285,822 {282 ,630) 1,130,120
8,241 15,675 - 24,966
3.820.569 - - 3,829,569
4,115,490 184,088 84,609 4,394 187
7.0954,350 200,763 84,608 8,248,722
5,369 1,087 . 6,456
2,961 847 71,902 . 3,033,748
3,282,410 333,280 - 3.615.700
5,249,626 406,279 - 6,855,905
1,704,724 {196,516) 84,600 1,552,817
$ 2,831,660 86,307 § (196,021} § 2,722 546

Foundation
Transfers
December 31, and December 31,

2008 Additions Disposals 2009
H 12,300 - $ - s 12,300
15,248 - - 15,246
876,662 . - 876,662
901,808 - - 991,908
15,247 - - 15,247
282,312 25,042 - 307,354
207,559 25,042 - 322,601
654,349 {25,042} - 668,307
$ 706,649 (25042) § - $ 681,607
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Note 5. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt for the Hospital as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 consists of;

2011 2010
1081 Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series B (A) % 425000 % 620,000
Note payable (B) - 7,718
Revolving note payable {C) - 292,822
Revalving nate payable (D) 1,577,522 1,105,479
2,002,522 2,026,020
Less current maturities 1,787,522 1,575,723

"$ 215000 5 450,297

(A) 1981 Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series B; ariginzl amount of $3,500,0600; interest payable semi-
annually at 5%, principal payments due on January 1 through 2013; issued to Farmers Home
Administration and are secured by the net revenus of the Hospital,

The bond agreement provides for the establishment of bond interest and sinking funds, The bonds
also place limits on the Incurrence of additional borrowings and require the Hospitat to satisfy
certain measures of financial performance as long as the bonds are outstanding. The Hospltal is in
compliance with these covenants or has obtained a walver for the covenants for which they are
not in compliance.

The Hospital has pledged fulure revenue, net of operating expenses, {net revenue) to repay
$3,500,000 for revenue bonds issued in 1881. Proceeds from the bonds were used for capltal
improvements, equipment and costs of additions to and renovation and remodeling of the
Hospital, The bonds are payable solely from the Hospital's net revanue and are payable through
January 2013, The total principal and interest remaining to be pald on the bonds is $446,375.
Principal and interest paid for the current year and total net revenues as defined in the bond
agreement were $230,625 and $693,853, respectively.

(B) Note payable, paid-in-full in July 2010.

(C} The revolving note payable provides for borrowings up to $1,000,000, with monthly payments of
$23,000, including interest at 4.95%. The scheduled maturity date af the revolving note payable
was February 2012 but was paid off early in June 2011, There are no borrowings as of June 30,
2011, The note is collateralized by equipment,

{D) The revolving note payable provides for horrowings up to $1,645,488, with monthly interest
payments at 3.95%. The entire unpaid balance was due September 2011 and is being
renegotiated with the lender. The note is collateralized by equipment,

The Hospital has a revolving note payable which allows for borrowings up to $540,000, with monthly
interest payments at 3.95%. The entire unpaid balance is due November 2011, The note is collateralized
by equipment. There were no borrowings as of June 30, 2011,

The Hospital also has a revolving note payable which allows for borrowings up to $500,000, with monthly
interest payments at 3.95%. The entire unpaid batance is due November 2011. There were no borrowings
on this note payable as of June 30, 2011,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 5. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt {Contlnued)

Leng-term debt for the Foundation as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 consists of:

Note payable, FHA (A}
Less current maturities

2010 2009

$ 610732 % 636,060
26,492 25,328

3 584,240 3§ 610,732

(A) Note payable to Farmers Home Adminlstration, USDA, original amount of $850,000, manthly
payments of $4,454 including Interest at 4.5% through April 2027, collateralized by the bullding.
The note requires that a reserve fund be established and maintained at a specified level. The
assets in the reserve fund are included in assets limited as to use or restricted in the

accompanying balance sheets.

Long-term debt activity is as follows:

1981 Haspital Revenue Bands, Series B
tNotes payabie
Lise of Credl§

Nole payable, FHA

1581 Hospltal Revaenue Bonds, Series 8
Notes payable

Note payable, FHA

Hospltai

June 30, June 30, Due Within
2010 Borrowings Paymants 2011 One Year
$ 620000 $ - $ (185000) % 425000 § 210,000
1,406,020 473,273 {301,771} 1.577.522 1,577,522

- 803,068 (903,068) - -

$ 2028020 $ 19376341 % (1,390,839) § 2,002522 8 1,787.522

Foundation

December 31, December 31, Dus Within
2008 Borrowings Payments 2010 One Year

$ G36060 $ - $ (25328) $ 610732 § 28492

Haospltal

June 30, June 30, Dua Within
2009 Bomowings Payments 2010 One Year
§ 305000 § - % (185000) $ 620000 § 195000
2,128,214 3,598,815 {4,322,009} 1,406,020 1,380,723

$ 2933214 5 3598815 § (4507008 §$ 2028020 § 1575723

Foundation

December 31, Daecambar 31, Due Within
2008 Borrowings Payments 2009 One Year

$ 660276 § - S {24216} § 636060 § 25328
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Note 5. Notes Payable and Lohg-Term Debt (Continued)
Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt for the Hospital as of June 30, 2011 are:

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30:
2012 $ 1787522 § 78,312 § 1,865834
2013 215,000 5,375 220,375

§ 2002522 8 83687 § 2088208

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt for the Foundation as of December 31, 2010 are as
follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year ending December 31:
2011 5 26492 § 26,95 $ 53,448
2012 27,635 25,813 53,448
2013 28,979 24,469 53,448
2014 30,310 23,138 53,448
2015 to 2020 173,683 93,547 267,240
2021 to 2025 217,428 49,812 267,240
2026 to 2027 106,195 5,285 111,490

$__610732 § 249030 $ 850,762

Note 6. Contingent Liabllities and Commitments
Medical malpractice and general liability Insurance;

Effective January 10, 1994, the Hospltal began participation in the Illinois Provider Trust (IPT), an
organization sponsored by the Winols Hospital Assoclation (IHA) to provide professionat and general
liability coverage to Hlinois hospltals which are members of IHA. The IPT is a multi-hospital self-
insurance trust formed pursuant to the provisions of the illinais Religious and Charitable Risk Pooiing
Act. Member hospitals make contributions to IPT which provides mutual insurance protection for all
members of the Trust. Coverage is limited to $5,000,000 per claim, with no aggregate limits. The
Hospital could also be reqguired to make additional retroactive contributions based on actuarial
calculations of trust loss experience, Management has evaluated the potential retroactive assessment
and deemed na liability Is necessary as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. Claims-made coverage is currently
arranged through December 31, 2011. Coverage for ¢claims made subsequent to December 31, 2011 s
dependent upon the Hospital's ability to obtain ciaims-made insurance in the future,

The Hospital uses an actuary to calculate an estimate of incurred, but not reported {IBNR) claims at
year-end. This accrual is included in other acerued expenses and estimated professional lability

reserves on the Hospital's batance sheet. For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, there were ng
clalms paid,

The Hospital alse purchases claims-made medical malpractice insurance coverage for one employee

physlician. This policy contains loss limits of $1,000,000 per claitm and an annual limit of $3,000,000,
with no deductible.
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Note 6. Contingent Liabllities and Commitments {Continued)

The Hospital is involved In litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of
management, however, that the Hospital's malpractice insurance coverage Is adequate to provide for
potential losses resulting from pending or threatened litigation. Additional claims may be asserted
against the Hospital arising from services provided to patients through June 30, 2011, The ultimate cost
of the resolution of such potential claims is not consldered to be material and, accordingly, no accrual
has been made for these costs.

The medical malpractice and general liabiiity insurance costs of the Hospltal totaled approximately
$179,000 and $173,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Setlled ¢laims from
these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Worker's compensation:

The Haospital is a participant in the lllinois Compensation Trust (ICT), an organization sponsored by the
llinots Hospital Asseclation (IHA) to provide worker's compensation coverage to lllinols hospitals which
are members of IHA. The ICT Is a multi-hospltal sef-Insurance trust formed pursuant to the provisions
of the lllinots Religious and Charilable Risk Pooling Act. Member hospitals make contributions to ICT
which provides mutual insurance protection for all members of the Trust. According to the Trust
Agreement, a refund may be made to the participating hospitals if the Trust's loss experience is better
than anticipated. If, however, the Trust's loss experience is worsa than anticipated, the hospitals may
be required to make additionat contributions. Management has evaluated the potential retroactive
assessment and deemed no liability is necessary as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. The Hespital incurred
expenses of approximately $8,000, net of $41,000 dividends, and $48,000, net of $51,000 dividends,
under the ICT pragram for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Unemployment compensation:

The Hospital Is also self-insured for unemployment compensation claims through ICT. The total
expenses relating to unemployment compensation for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were
approximately $600 and $17,800, respectively,

Health Insurance:

The Hospital's empioyees parlicipate In Mercer County's self-insurance program for health insurance.
Selt-insurance Is in effect up to an individual stopfloss amount of $50,000 and aggregate stopfloss
amount of approximately $1,608,000 with coverage from a private insurance company maintained for
all claims In excess of the stop/lass amaounts. All claim handling procedures are performed by an
Independent ¢laims administrator.

The Hospital pays the County a monthly amount for each participant covered by the program. A
reserve equal to 25% of the previous 12 months’ claims experience is maintained by the County. A
refund may be made to the Hospital if the program's loss experience Is better than anticipated; i,
however, the program'’s loss experience is worse than anticipated, the Hospital may be required to
make additional contributions. Management has evaluated the potential retroactive assessment and
deemed no liability is necessary as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. Expense related to the Hospital's

health Insurarice for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $372,000 and
$375,000, respectively,
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Note 6. Contingent Liabiiities and Commitments (Continued)
Laws and regulations:

The health care industry is subject to numercus laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review
and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time. These laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, acereditation, licensure, government health care program
participation requirements, reimbursement for patient services, and Medlcare and Medlcaid fraud and
abuse. Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegatfons
conceming possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers,
Violations of these laws and regulations could result in exclusion from government health care program
participation, together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant
repayment for past reimbursement for patient services received. While the Hospital Is subject to similar
regufatory reviews, management believes the outcome of any such regulatory review will not have a
material adverse effect on the Hospital's finangial positian,

The Hospltal has been named as a defendant in various legal actions arising from normal business
activities in which damages In various amounts are claimed. The amount of ultimate liability, if any, with
respect to such matters cannot be determined, but management believas that any such liability would
not have a material effact on the Hospital's financial position,

Modicare reimbursement:

Congress passed the Medicare Modernization Act in 2003, which among other things established a
demonstration of The Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program. During fiscal year 2007, the
RAC's identified and corrected a significant amount of improper overpayments to providers. In 2006,
Congress passed the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006, which authorized the expansion of the
RAC program to all 50 states. CMS is in the process of roling out this program nationally. As such, the

Hospital may be subject to such an audit at some time In the future. The final impact of this program
cannot be quantified at this timg,

Management contract:

Effective March 2008, the Hospital entered into a one-year contractual arrangement with Genesls
Heaith System, undar which Genesis Health System (GHS) provides management consultation and
other services to the Hospital. The arrangement does not alter tha authority or responsibility of the
Board of Directors of the Hospital. During the current year, this agreement was replaced with a new
management agreement under which GHS will continue {o provide various management services
through November 2014. The new agreement afso atlows for the Hospital and GHS to move forward
with an affiliation agreement upon approval by both parties. Expenses for services received amounted
to approximately $516,000 and $370,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010.
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Note 6. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments {Continued)
Health care reform:

As a result of recently enacted federal health care reform legislation, substantial changes are
anticipated in the United States health care system. Such leglsiation includes numerous provisions
affecting the delivery of health care services, the financing of healthcare costs, reimburserment of health
care providers, and the legal obligations of health insurers, providers and employers, These provisions
are currently slated to take effect at specified times over approximately the next decade.

Current economic conditions:

The current economic environment presents hospitals with unprecedented circumstances and
challenges, which in some cases have resulted in large declines in the fair value of investments and
other assets, large declines in contributions, constraints on liquidity and difficutty obtaining financing.
The financial statements have been prepared using values and information currently available to the
Hospital,

Current economic conditions, including the rising unemployment rate, have made It difficult for certain
of the Hospital's patients to pay for services rendered. As employers make adjustments to health
insurance plans or mare patients become unemployed, services provided to self-pay and other payers
may significantly impact net patient service revenue, which could have an adverse impact on the
Hospital's future aperating results. Further, the effect of aconomic conditions on the state may have an
adverse effect on cash flows related to the Medicaid program,

Note 7. Defined Benefit Penslon Plan
Plan description:

Mercer County contributes on behalf of the Hospital to the Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund ("IMRF"),
an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of inois. Penslon
expense and the related tax revenue are racorded for the amount the County is legalily required to
contribute far the year. The plan provides retirement benefits, including annual cost-of-living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries, State law assigns the
authority to establish and amend beneflt provisions to the plan's Board of Trustees, which is appointed
by the Governor with the approval of the State Legislature. The plan Issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and requires supplementary information for the plan,
The report may be obtained by writing to the plan at lliinols Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York
Road, Suite 500, Cak Brook, Il 60523-2374, or by calling 1-800-ASK-IMRF,

20 ADDENDUM 1, PAGE 35

115



Mercer County Hospital

Notes to Baslc Financial Statements

Note 7. Defined Benefit Penslon Plan (Continued)
Annual pension cost and net pension asset:

The Haspital's annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010 were as follows:

2011 2010
Annual required contributions $ 555207 $§ 250,597
Interest on net pension abligation 3,273 -
ARC Adjustment {2,340) -
Annual pension cost 556,134 260,597
Annual contributions made 492 221 216,951
Increase In net pension obligation 63,813 43,646
Net penslon obligation;
Beginning 43,646 -
Ending $ 107,558 § 43,646
Annual Percentage
Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
{APC) Contributed Obligation
Year ended June 30:
2011 % 556,134 88.5% ] 107,559
2010 260,597 83.3 43,646

Funding pollicy:

The authority to establish and amend the requirements of plan members and the Hospltal is set forth in
state law and is vested in the Plan’s Beard of Trustees, Pian members {enrolled employees) are
required to contribute 4.50% of thelr annual covered salary for each of the calendar years 2011 and
2010. The Hospital Is required to contribute at an actuariaily determined rate. The rate was 9.92% and
10.21% of annual covered payroll for the calendar years 2011 and 2010, raspectively. Beginning
January 1, 2010, the IMRF Board of Trustees adopted an optional phase-in rate, which employers
could elect for 2010 and thereafter for employer contribution rates. Mercer County opted for the
optional phase-in rate of 8.35% and 8.50% during calendar years 2011 and 2010, respectively, creating
a net penslon obligation of approximately $108,000 and $44,000 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The information required to be presented as supplementary information is presented at
the county level in the Mercer County, lilinois financial statements. The amounts specifically related to
Mercer County Hospital, other than contributions presented above, are not determinable,
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Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Plan description and funding policy:

The Hospital participates with other funds of Mercer County in a postretirement medical plan that
pravides post-termination medical insurance coverage for the patticipant and the parlicipant's family
through age 85. The employees eligible under this plan are all full-time employges retiring under the
IMRF retirement plan. Eligible participants are responsible for payment of the entire premium at the
County rate. Prior lo the participants' or participating family members’ age 65, the coverage shall be the
insured coverage and benefits provided to Mercer County full-time employee participants under the
plan. The plan coverage terminates upon the participant reaching Medicare eligibflity (age 65).

The Hospital pays for ali or a portion of active employees' coverage, The amount depends on whether
single for family coverage is ¢lected. Upon retirement, the retired participant continuing their coverage
pays the premium including any increase in single premium after retirament, The requirad contribution
is based on projects pay-as-you-go financing requirements. The Hospital made no contributions to the
plan during the year ended June 30, 2011.

Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation:

The Hospital's annual QPEB cost (expense} is calculated based on the annual required contribution
(ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined In accordance to the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARG represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongolng basis, is projected
to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilitles over a perlod not to
exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the Hospital's annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actuarially contributed to the plan, and changes in the Haspital's annual QPEB
obligation:

Annual required contribution 4,951
interest on net OPEB obligation -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 4,951
Contributions made 3,846
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,105
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year -
Net CPEB obligation, end of year 3 1,105

The Hospital's annua! CPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obfigations for fiscal year 2011 are as follows:

Annuai Percentage
Pension Cost of APC et Pension
(APC) Contributed Obligation
Year ended June 30, 2011 $ 4,851 77.68% 3 1,105
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Kote 8. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)
Funded status and funding progress:

As of November 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial vatuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The
Hospital's actuarial accrued lability for benefits was $37,413 and the actuarial value of assets is none
resulting in an unfunded actuaria! accrued lfabllity {UAAL) of $37,413. The Hospital's covered payroll
was $5,496,111 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 0.68%. These amounts represent
the Hospital's information along with all other funds of Mercer County. The results of the November 30,
2010 valuation were rofled forward to June 34, 2011,

Actuarizl valuations of an ongoeing plan Involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the health care cost trend, Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are comparad with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future,

Actuarial methods and assumptions:

The actuarial calculations are performed in accordance with the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost
Method as aflowed under GASB Statement No. 45. The excess of the AAL over the actuarial value of
plan assets is the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability is
amortized over a maximum of 30 years in level percentage of pay doliar amounts on an open perlod
amortization basls. The sum of the normal cost and the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability Is the annual required contribution, which with interest at the valuation date, determines the
annual OPEB cost.

Economic cost assumptlons:

The rate at which projected cash flows are to be discounted is 5.0% based on estimated long-term
investment return on the investments that are expected to be used to finance the paymant of benefits.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective that involves estimates of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared o past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future,
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Note 9, Deferred Compensation Agreement

The Hospital offers its employees a defarred compensation plan created in accordance with Intemnal
Revenue Code Section 457(g). The plan, available to all hospital employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unfareseeable emergency, The assets of the plan are held in 2 trust and

are not included in the financial statements of the Hospital.

Note 10. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, mast of whom are area residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of net receivables fram patients and third-party

payors as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 was:

Medicare

Medicaid

Other third-party payors
Patients

Note 11. Related Party Transactions
Lease agreement:

2011 2010
34% 44%
16 10
34 33
16 13

100% 100%

The Hospital has entered Into a lease agreement with the Foundation for & medical office building.
Monthly rentals of $6,050 plus the payment of insurance and normal maintenance continue for the
lease term through 2015. Rent expense under this lease was $72,600 for the years ended June 30,
2011 and 2010. The total minimum rental commitment as of June 30, 2011 under this lease Is due as

follows:

Year ending June 30:
2012
2013
2014
2015

] 72,600
72,600
72,600
24,200

] 242,000

The Hospital also leases another office building from the Foundation under a lease agreement that has
annual renewal options. Rent expense under this lease was $1,200 for each of the years ended

June 30, 2011 and 2010.

Contributions:

The Foundation makes discretionary contributions to the Hospital, Contributions made by the
Foundation to the Hospital during the Foundation's years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were
approximately $35,600 and $140,000, respectively.

33
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Note 12. New and Pending Pronouncements

The Hospital implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Bafance Reporiing and Governmental Fund
Type Definition, and GASB Statement No. 59, Financial instruments Omnibus, during the year ended
June 30, 2011. The adoption of these Statements had no material effect on the financial statements.

The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following Statements not yet
implemented by the Hospltal. The Statements which might impact the Hospital are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnlbus an amendment of GASS
Statemaents No. 14 and No. 34, issued November 2010, wil! be effective for the Mospital beginning with
its year ending June 30, 2013, This Statement Is intended to improve financial reporting for a
governmental financial reporting entity by improving guidance for including, presentlng, and disclosing
information about component units and equity interest transactions of a financial reporting entity. The
amendments to the criteria for including component units allow users of financial statements to better
assess the accountability of elected officials by ensuring that the financial reparting entity includes only
organizations for which the elected officlals are financially accountable or that are determined by the
government to be misteading to exclude. The amendments to the criteria for blending alsa improve the
focus of a financial reporting entity on the primary government by ensuring that the primary
government includes only those component units that are so intertwined with the primary government
that they are essentially the same as the primary government, and by clarifying which component units
have that characteristic.

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 198% FASE and AICPA Pronouncamenis, lssued January 2011, will be effective for
the Hospltal beginning with its year ending June 30, 2013. This Statement is intended to enhance the
usefulness of the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Finanelal Reporting Standards by
incorporating quidance that previously could only be found In certaln FASB and AICPA
pronouncements. This Statement incorporates into the GASB's autharitative literature the applicable
guidance previously presented in the following pronouncements issued before November 30, 1988
FASB Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins of the AICPA’s Commiitee on Accounting Procedure. By incorporating and
maintaining this guidance in a single source, the GASB belleves that GASB 62 reduces the complexity
of locating and using authoritative literature needed to prepare state and local government financial
reports.

GASE Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferrad Quitflows of Resources, Defarred inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, issued July 2011, wiil be effective for the Hospital beginning with its year
ending June 30, 2013, This Statement is intended to Improve financiat reporting by providing citizens
and other users of state and local government financial reports with information about how past
transactions will continue to impact a government's financial statements in the future, This Statement
provides a new statement of net position farmat to report all assets, deferred outfiows of resources,
liabilities deferred inflows of resources and net position {which is the net residual amount of the other
elements). The Statement requires that deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
respurces be reported separately from assets and liabilitles, This Statement also amends certain
provislons of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statemants-and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis- for State and Local Governments, and related pronouncements to reflect the residual
measure in the statement of financlal position as net position, rather than net assets,

The Hospital's management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the
Hospital's financial statements.
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Mercer County Hospital

Required Supplementary Information, Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedute of Funding Progress

Unfunded
Actuarial {Qver- UAAL as 2
Actuarial Aceryed funded) Percentage
Fiscal Actuarial value of Lisbility AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Year Valuation Net Assets {AAL) {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payrall
Ended Date {a) (b} {b-a} {a/b) (c} [(b-a)c}
June 30, 2011 1173072010 § - $ 55897 § 56897 - % $ 5,496,111 0.68%

Tha information presented In the required supplementary schedule was determined a5 part of the actuarial valyation as of
Novernber 30, 2010. Additional informatlon follows:

The cost method used to datermine the ARC Is the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost methed,
There are no plan assets,

Economic assumplions are as follows: health care cost trend rates of 6%; discount tate of 5.0%.
The armertization method is open perlod, level percentage of pay basls.

Eal

Tha Haspltal particlpates with other funds of Mearcer Caunty in the postretirement medical plan. The amounts presented In
the required supplameniary schedule represent the Hospital's Information atong with all other furds of the County.

ADDENDUM 1, PAGE 41
35
121




Mercer County Hospital

Net Patient Service Revenue
{Hospital Only)
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

36

2011
Inpatient Qutpatient Total
Daily patient services:
Medical and surgical $ 671,502 § S 671,502
Swing bed unit 448,261 . 448,261
Extended care unit 223 - 223
1,118,986 - 1,119,986
Other nursing services:
Operating and recovery rooms 3,785 450,082 453,867
Central services and supply 123 20,886 21,009
Emargency services 72,118 3,453,681 3,625,800
Monitoring 24,857 238,465 263,322
Home health services - 1,096,107 1,066,107
Hospice 4,272 §9,410 63,682
S 105,156 5,318,631 5,423,787
Othar professional services:
Laboratory 325,135 3,564,205 3,889,340
Electrocardiology 12,437 211,794 224,231
Electroencephalography ~ 7,867 7,867
Radiology 120,735 3,365,169 3,485,904
ECHO cardiography 9,455 119,133 128,588
Pharmacy 808,927 706,800 1,513,727
Anesthesiology 549 170,393 170,942
Respiratory tharapy 260,376 87,288 347,664
Physical therapy 221,779 953,892 1,175,674
Slesp Lab - 311,457 311,457
Occupational Health - 4,392 4392
Specialty Clinic - 201,690 201,690
Clinics - 2,670,494 2,670,494
Other 35,350 675,978 711,328
1,792,743 13,050,562 14,843,295
$ 3017885 §$ 18369183 21,387,068
Less charity care 398,268
Gross patient service revenue 20,988,800
Less discounts, allowances and estimated
contractual adjustments under third-party
reimbursement programs 8,167,480
Less provision for doubtful agcounts 739,987
Net patient service revenue $ 12,081,133
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2010

inpatient Outpatient Total
5 456419 § - 3 456,419
453,351 - 453,351
909,770 - 809,770
2,332 565,635 567.967
- 38,485 38,485
47 102 2,892,187 3,039,289
12,570 199,102 211,672
- 1,198,654 1,198,654
7,178 145,937 153,113
68,180 5,140,000 5,208,180
267,796 3,426,664 3,604 460
7,064 200,431 207 492
- 4,656 4,656
112,008 3,297,042 3,400,948
16,364 67,278 83,642
735,838 670,842 1,406,678
2,639 95,782 98.421
212,975 91,804 304,778
198,044 696,124 894,168
- 2,559,187 2,559,187
30,113 840,567 870,680
1,682,834 11,951,277 13,534,111
$ 2561784 § 17001277 19,653,061
422,522
18,230,539
6,491,365
481,364
5 12257.810

37
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Mercer County Hospital

Operating Expenses
{Hospital Only)

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011
Salarles,
Wages and Supplies and
Benefits Qther Total
Nursing services:
Nursing administration s 103976 § 1,258 ¢ 105,231
Medical and surgical 877,756 62,248 940,004
Operating and recovery rooms 67,079 67,103 134,182
Intravenous therapy - 485 485
Emargency room 449,046 765,293 1,204,339
Home heaith services 346,794 73,812 420,606
Hospice 45118 40,022 85,140
1,889,769 1,000,218 2,889,987
Other professional services:

Laboratory 427 121 614,458 1,081,579
Electrocardiology . 17,014 17,014
Electroencephalography - 1,120 1,120
Radiology 421,974 139,973 561,947
ECHOQ cardiography - 219,288 219,288
Pharmacy 188,426 312,942 501,368
Anesthesiology - 152,710 152,710
Resplratory therapy 148,811 24 811 173,422
Physlcal therapy 288,877 87,380 356,267
Medlcal records 83,038 98,885 181,923
Soclal services 55,367 384 55,761
Sleep Lab 60 70,410 70,470
Occupational Health - 3,813 3,843
Spectalty Clinic 81,343 19,964 101,209
Clinics 1,115,273 633,537 1,748,810
Special Services 101,806 55,961 157,767
$ 2912098 § 2,432,482 § 5344,8658

38
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2010

Salaries,
Wages and Supplies and
Benefits Other Total
$ 97,242 % 943 § 98,185
802,978 65,149 868,127
120,108 88,161 209,270
- 234 234
450,252 788,296 1,238,548
364,636 80,331 454,967
47772 51,579 59,351
1,882,989 1,085,693 2,968,682
399,270 474 597 873.867
- 13,797 13,797
- 800 800
407 516 138,124 545,640
- 318,768 318,766
189,627 312,828 502,455
- 197,747 197,747
133,184 17,985 151,179
231,071 43,690 274,761
106,692 114,755 221,447
52,862 734 53,596
1,254,500 520,737 1,775,237
192,198 42,172 234,370

P 2966930 $ 21968732 $ 5183662
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Mercer County Hospital

Operating Expenses {Continued)
(Hospital Only)
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2014
Salaries,
Wages, and Supplies and
Beneflts Other Total
General services:
Dietary L 164,636 % 100,812 § 265,448
Operatlon and maintenance of plant 148,445 400,001 548,446
Housekeeping 78,385 24,971 103,356
Laundry 4,381 34,669 39,050
395,847 560,453 956,300
Administrative services:
Fiscal 543,790 231,626 775,415
Administrative 167,569 740,637 908,206
Disaster Plan 9,837 325 £0,162
Employee benefits 1,159,027 - 1,159,027
1,880,223 972,587 2,852,810
Depreciation and amortization - 421,436 421,435
Interest - 83,231 B3,2M
Total $ 70779838 $ 5470386 $ 12,548,321

ADDENDUM 1, PAGE 46

40
126




2010

Salarles,
Wages, and Supplies and

Benefits Other Tatal
5 161,108 % 116,643 $ 277,752
167,216 366,717 533,933
76,957 33,168 110,115
11,421 37,402 48,823
416,703 553,820 970,623
502,651 230,688 733,339
232,081 751,385 983,470
1,023,963 . 1,023,963
1,758,695 082,077 2740772
- 415,862 415,862
- 105,365 105,365
§ 7025317 § 5339649 § 12364966

41
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April 26, 2012

NN

V4
¢ GENESIS

Douglas P. Cropper
1227 E. Rusholme Street
Davenport, 1A 52803

Ilinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 W. Jefferson Street

Second Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761-0001

Re: Change of Ownership of Mercer County Hospital

Dear Sir or Madam:

I hereby attest to the following:

1.

The categories of service provided and number of beds at Mercer County Hospital
("Hospital"} will not substantially change for at least 12 months following the
proposed change of ownership as required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code §
1130.520(b)(1).

For at least two years after the proposed change of ownership, the charity care
policy at the Hospital will not become more restrictive than the policy in place at
the Hospital a year prior to the proposed change of ownership as required by 77
1ll. Admin. Code § 1130.520(b}7).

GMCM intends to maintain ownership and control of the Hospital for a minimum
of three years after the proposed change of ownership as required by 77 I,
Admin. Code § 1130.520(b)(5).

There has been no adverse action taken by the federal government, licensing or
certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of Illinois against GMCM
within three years prior to the filing of the Certificate of Exemption application
for the proposed change of ownership as required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code §
1130.520(b)(3).’

GMCM intends to close the proposed transaction on September 1, 2012, subject
to regulatory approval, in accordance with 77 JIl. Admin. Code § 1130.520(b)(8).

This information is true and correct, to the best of my knowledge.

! Please notc that GMCM is a new entity created on February 3, 2012 for the purposes of owning and operating the
Hospital, subject to regulatery approval.
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[llinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 W. Jefferson Street

Second Floor

Springfield, IL 62761-0001

p.2

GMCM authorizes the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board (“Board™) and Ilinois
Department of Public Health ("IDPH") access to information to verify documentation or
information submitted in response to the requirements of 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.230(b) or
to obtain any documentation or information which the Board or IDPH find pertinent to this
Certificate of Exemption application for the proposed change of ownership.

Sincerely,

TS g

Douglas P. Cropper
Director

Notarized:
STATE OF IOWA )
)
COUNTY OF SCOTT )
On this 24, day of &prgd in the year 2o¢2 , before me, the

undersigned notary public, personally appeared | ;m@ﬁ % gﬁog{ag(— , known to me to be

the person(s) whosc name(s) is/are subscribed to within the instrument and acknowledged that

he/she/they executed the same for the purposes thercin contained.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand an official seal.

com R, 0k

Notary Public
Natarial Seal — State of lowa
Commission Number 180292
My Comsnission Expires 07/17/43
2132861-1 ADDENDUM 2, PAGE 3
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£>GENESIS

April 26, 2012

Douglas P. Cropper
1227 E. Rusholme Street
Davenport, JA 52803

Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 W. Jefferson Street

Second Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761-0001

Re: Change of Ownership of Mercer County Hospital
Dear Sir or Madam:
I hereby attest to the following:

1. The categories of service provided and number of beds at Mercer County Hospital
("Hospital"} will not substantially change for at least 12 months following the
proposed change of ownership as required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code §
1130.520(b)(1).

2. For at least two years after the proposed change of ownership, the charity care
policy at the Hospital will not become more restrictive than the policy in place at
the Hospital a year prior to the proposed change of ownership as required by 77
I11. Admin. Code § 1130.520(b)(7).

3 Genesis Health System ("Genesis"), through a controlled subsidiary, intends to
maintain ownership and control of the Hospital for a minimum of three years after
the proposed change of ownership as required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code §
1130.520(b)(5).

4. There has been no adverse action taken by the federal government, licensing or
certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of Illinois against Genesis
within three years prior to the filing of the Certificate of Exemption application
for the proposed change of ownership as required by 77 Il}, Admin. Code §
1130.520(b)(3).

|

5. Genesis intends to close the proposed transaction on September 1, 2012, subject

to regulatory approval, in accordance with 77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1130.520(b)(8).

This information is truc and correct, to the best of my knovw'~*--- -
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Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 W. Jefferson Street

Second Floor

Springfield, IL 62761-0001

p.2

Genesis authorizes the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board ("Board") and Iilinois
Department of Public Health ("IDPH"} access to information to verify documentation or
information submitted in response to the requirements of 77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1110.230(b) or
to obtain any documentation or information which the Board or IDPH find pertinent to this
Certificate of Exemption application for the proposcd change of ownership.

Sincerely,

e Aoy

Douglas P. Cropper

President and CEQ
Notarized:
STATE OF IOWA )
)
COUNTY OF SCOTT )
On this _2¢ day of -AJ‘QHT in the year 2o12 , before me, the

undersigned notary public, personally appeared Do \;j)a,s £ G'opg.af , known to me to be

the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to within the instrument and acknowledged that

he/she/they executed the same for the purposes therein contained.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand an official seal.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires 07/17/ (> ADDENDUM 3, PAGE 3
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CATITOLOFFICE

259-5 Stratton Building
Springficld, livais 61706
217-742-5970 Fax 217-538-1253

DISTRICT OFFICE
County Qffice Building
1504 3rd Ave,

STATE OF ILLINOIS
HCOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

COMMITTEES
CHAIRMAN
COUNTIES & TOWNSIIITS
VICE CTIIAIKMAN
AGRICULTURF, & CONSERVATION
MEMBER
ENVIRONMENT & ENERGY
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Rock Igland, 1llinois 61201 PATRICK J. VERSCHOQOORE HEALTH CARE LICENSES
309-558-3612 Faxw 309-793.4764 STATE REPRESENTATIVE VETERANS' AFFAIRS
T2R0 DISTRICT

Febmary 20, 2012

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Hlinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Letter of Support for Mercer County Hospital Affiliation ) with
Genesis Health System

Dear Ms, Avery:

1 am writing to express my full support for the proposed affiliation of Mercer (County Hospital with
Genesis Health System. | believe that the affiliation is in the best interest of the c:ommunity served by
Mercer Coimty Hospitel, the people of the city of Aledo, Mercer County and surrowmding areas as it will
(i} enhance quality healthcare and other services provided to the community; (ii) pro-vide greater access to
healthcare services in the community; and (iii) promotc and enhance the various charitable and
cducational missions of Mercer County Hospital. In addition, T fecl that Genesis Health System is a
particularly good choice for the affiliation as they have successfully demonstrated the ability to deliver
these benefits after their affiliation with Illini Hospital in Silvis (which is also part of my district), over
fiftecn vears ago.

Finalty, this affiliatiofi eliminates a tax burden on the residents of Mercer County whic have been paying a
property tax levy to fund the pension costs-of the Hospital employees. This tax lewy, has grown to over
$500,000. For these reasons, [ am submitting this letter of support for the pro-posed affiliation and
encottrage the Review Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for the chawnge of ownership of
Mercer County Hospital,

Sincerely,

Mt Vara Ut

Patrick Verschoore
State Representative
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STATE -OF ILLINOIS

SENATE
SEHNATOR STATE CAPITOL
MIKE JACOBS SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOYS
627086
217/782-5957

February 20, 2012

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator o .
llinois: Health Facilities ard Scrvices Review Board
'$25 'W. Jefferson Street; 2nd Floor

Springfield, IL. 62761

Re: Letter of Support for Mercer County Hospital Affiliation with
Genesis Health System

Déar Ms. Avery:

I am writing to express my full support for the proposed affiliation of Mcrcer Counly Hospital with
Genesis Health System. I belicve that the affiliation is in the best interesy of the community served by
Mercer County Hospital, the poople of the city of Aledo, Mercer County and surrounding arcas as it will
(i) enhance quality healthcare and other services provided to the community; {ii) provide greater access to
healthcare services in the community; and (it} promote and cnhance the various charitable and
educational missions of Mcroer Caunty Hospital, Tn addition, 1 feel that Genesis Health System is a
particularly good choice for the affliation as they have successfully demonstrated the abilily to deliver
these:benéfits after their affiliation with Ilini Hospital in'Sitvis (which is also part of my district), over
fifteen yearsago.

Finally, this affiliation eliminatcs a tax burden on the residents of Mercer County who have been paying a
property tax [evy to fund the pension costs of the Hospital employces. This tax levy, has grown to over
$500,000. For these reasons, 1 am submitting this letter of support for the proposcd affiliation and
encourage the Review Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for the change of ownership of
Mercer County Hospital,

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the afiliation.

Sincerely,

-
-
oA
.

[
Mike Jacabs
State Senator
36™ District
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County Hospital
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February 20, 2012

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Mlinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, Jeflerson Strect, 2nd Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Rc Letter of Support for Mercer County Hospital Affiliation with
‘Genesis Health System

Dcar Ms, Avery:

I am vvritiig to express the filll support of the Mercer County IHospital Medical Staff for the proposed
affiliation of Mercer County Hospital with Genesis Health Sysiem. We believe (hat the afliliation is in
the best intefest of the patients in our community as it will enhance the quality of healtheare; provide
greater access to healthcare services; and allow us to successfully continue the mission of Mercer County
Hospital. We have already cxperienced many of these ¢cnhancements through our management agreement
with Genesis over the past three years. Quite frankly, prior 1o the relationship with Genesis our hospital
was on the brink of financial collapse. We have successfully overcome the financial challenges (hrough
the charige in leadership and access to a greater lovel of resources, We look forward to continued growth

-through new stato-of-the-art technology and services for our community. The Medical Staff has actively
advocated for the rcfahonchrp wilh Genesis to our County Board and the residents of the comnunity and
we anc pTcascd to sharé" that all partics suppott this affiliation.

Fpr-t_,hesc reagong, Tam s‘ut_)m:ttmg'.ﬂus letter of support for the proposed affiliation, on behalf of dur entire
Medical Staff, and encourage the Board to approve the Certificaie of Lxemption for the change of
ownership of Mercer County Hospital.

Thank you in advancé for vour consideration in af)prc-ving the affiliation.
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; Counfy Hospital

February 20, 2012

Ms, Courtney Avery

Administrator

INinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W.defferson Sirect, 2nd Floor

Springficld, TL 6276)

Re:  Letter of Support-for Mercer County Hospital Affiliation with
Genesis Health System

Dear Ms. Avery:

On behalf’ of the Mercer County Hospita] Board Dircctors, please accept this letier in support of the
- proposed affiliation of Mercer County Hospital with Genesis Health System, The Board had actively
pursued a relationship with a larger system four years ago in order to save our haspital from closure and
partner with someone who would keep this crilical resource vibrant for our community. We have found
that pattner in Genesis Tealth System. They have sutcessfully guided our organization aver the past
threc years. During this time, they have tumed around our financials, enhanced the quality of care and
proinated growth of our services which has increased access to our patlems who would have to trave)
fofty—-f' ive minutes for Ihts care. Our Board believes that the affiliation is in the best interest of our
commatnity and know that i€ will allow s to purchasé and improve upon the equipment and-services we
-offéer. We have actively pursued funding for o badly needed and IDPH mandated renovation of $11.5
million. Unforturiately, we:could not sécure funding for this project as a stand-alone entity. Genesis has
-committed to fund this project as part of our agreement.

Our hospital is the second largest employer in our county and a critical econonric asset.  The affiliation
will secture our ability fo continue 1o provide cutstanding healthcare services for aur community well into
the future, For these reasons, the Board of Directors cncourages the Review Board to approve the
Cettificate of Exemption for the change of ownership of Mercer County Hospital.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affitiation.

Sincerely,
409 NW Ninth Ave.
: Aledo, llinols 61231
.
. 309.582.5301
creer County Hospital Governing Board tax: 309.582.3737
sl e uzt-l-cﬂr-ru&gwm“ﬁm«m b '-3'ﬂw, T
2 wy«w‘mercerhospiiulg org S e
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